
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2022 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A. PledgeofAllegiance

B. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Siakel___  
Johnson___  

Callies___  
Gorham___  

C. ReviewandAdoptAgenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemshavebeenreviewedbycitycouncilandcitystaffandthereshallbenofurtherdiscussionbythe
counciltonightontheConsentAgendaitems.   Anycouncilmemberormemberofcitystaffmayrequestthatanitemberemovedfrom
theConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsbycouncil, wecananswer
thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofSeptember 26, 2022 Minutes

B. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofSeptember 26, 2022 Minutes

C. CityCouncil SpecialWorkSession Minutes ofSeptember 27, 2022 Minutes

D. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

E. Approval ofPark/Recreation Director NewHire CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

F. Approve RetailTobacco License Renewals CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Resolution 22-095

G. Change Order forGrantStreet Drainage Improvements CityEngineer
Resolution 22-096

H. LMCIT LiabilityCoverage Waiver Interim CityAdministrator Memo

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Whenyouarerecognized, pleaseraiseyourhandorusetheraiseyour
handfeature.  Pleaseidentifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthisintroduction, pleaselimit



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

yourcommentstothreeminutes.  Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilonthismatter. Themayororcouncilmayrequestthatstaff
placethismatteronafutureagendaoraskstafftoaddressitduringItem10. StaffReports. (NoCouncil Actionwillbetaken)  

4. PLANNING

A. Conditional UsePermit foraSpecial Purpose Fence Planning Director Memo
Location:  25140GlenRoad Resolution 22-097
Applicant:  Richard JeidyandVirginia Bell

ndB. Preliminary andFinalPlatfor “HighPointeEstates, 2 Addition Planning Director Memo
Location:  Southeasterly extentofCharleston Circle Resolution 22-098
Applicant:  RoyLecy

5. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve SLMPD JointPowerAgreement InterimCityAdministrator Memo
Resolution 22-090

B. Director ofPublic WorksJobDescription Discussion CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

C. Approve SCECLandscaping Expenditure Interim CityAdministrator Memo

6. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. Stream Restoration Project Update CityEngineer Memo

2. Pavement Rating Methodology andInventory Director ofPublicWorksMemo

B. MayorandCityCouncil

7. ADJOURN



Item2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Labadie, Gorham, andCallies.  

Absent: Councilmembers SiakelandJohnson

B. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. Motion passed 3/0.   

2. PARK COMMISSIONER INTERVIEW

A. Patricia Levy

Patricia Levyintroduced herself andshared information onherbackground, experience, and
explained herinterest inserving ontheParkCommission.    

TheCouncil askedquestions ofMs. Levyandexplained someofthedutiesofthePark
Commission, whatkindsofrecommendations theymaketotheCityCouncil, details, events, and
features within thevarious parks.   

MayorLabadie explained thattheconsideration ofMs. Levy’spotential appointment totheParks
Commission isontheregular CityCouncil meeting agenda forlaterthisevening.  Shenoted that
someone fromCityHallwould callMs. Levyinthemorning andinformheroftheCouncil’s
decision.    

3. ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
September 26, 2022, at6:29P.M.  Motion passed 3/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



Item2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

PLEDGE OFALLEGIANCE

A. Roll Call

Present.  Mayor Labadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; City
Attorney Shepherd; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle; CityClerk/HRDirector
Thone; Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic
WorksBrown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Councilmember Callies askedtoremove item2.F., theSLMPD JointPowers Agreement, from
theConsent Agenda andplaceitontheregular agenda.    

MayorLabadie suggested thatitbeaddedasitem8.C. underGeneral NewBusiness.    

Siakel moved, Johnson seconded, approving theagenda, asamended. All infavor, motion
passed.   

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Callies moved, Siakel seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent Agenda
and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofSeptember 12, 2022

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofSeptember 12, 2022

C. Approval ofthe Verified Claims List

D. Approve New Retail Tobacco License – Shorewood Tobacco Corp. at19905
State Hwy 7, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-088, “AResolution Approving a
License toSell Tobacco Products intheCity ofShorewood toShorewood
Tobacco Corp.”   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 2of14

E. Approve Temporary Liquor License forOktoberfest, Adopting RESOLUTION
NO. 22-089, “AResolution Approving aTemporary On-Sale Liquor License
forExcelsior Brewing inConjunction with Oktoberfest.”  

F. Approve SLMPD Joint Power Agreement, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22- 
090,  - (Removed fromConsent Agenda andplacedasitem8.C. )   

G. Approve Agreement for6070 Strawberry Lane, Adopting RESOLUTION NO.  
22-091, “AResolution Approving Agreement with theProperty Owners of
6070 Strawberry Lane, City Project 19-05”  

H. Accept Boba Tonka Bubble Tea Donation toOktoberfest Event, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 22-092, “AResolution Accepting Donations tothe City of
Shorewood 2022 Oktoberfest.”  

All infavor, motion passed.   

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Thomas Robb, 5940Boulder BridgeLane, explained thathewashererepresenting theBoulder
BridgeHOAregarding theroads intheircommunity.  Hedistributed somephotographs forthe
Council andgaveanoverview ofhispastconversations withPublicWorksDirector Brownand
CityEngineer Budde. Hestated thatwhileCityEngineer Budde acknowledged that therewere
somelargepotholes thatneeded tobefixed, ingeneral, themessage hewasgivenwasthatthe
Boulder Bridge roadsweresomeofthebestintheCity, whichhedisagrees with.  Hestated that
hehaslivedinthisneighborhood for20yearsandcanattest thattheroadshavedegraded.  He
asked thattheCityinclude millandoverlay forBoulder Bridge intheirCIPfornextyear.    

MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Robbforbringing thisconcern totheCouncil andaskedPublic Works
Director Browntoaddress thisissueduringhisstaffreport, later inthemeeting.      

TomLesser, 26245BirchBluffRoad, explained thathewasheretoasktheCouncil tovote ‘no’  
onapproval ofthedesignoftheBirchBluffRoad project.  Hestated thattheimpact totheresidents
isincomplete andexplained thattheCouncil hadnotscheduled afollow-uptownhallmeeting for
further communication andclarification oftheproject andhadjustbeenonaone-on-onebasis
withtheCityEngineer.  Heexplained thatearlier todayhereceived ananswer tooneofhis
questions thatjustraisedmorequestions andnoted thathedidnotthinktherehasbeenenough
timetodigest theanswers.  Hestated thatwithin thedesign, heandtheneighbors sawthat
CenterPoint Energy isrelocating thegaslinefromthestreet totheright-of-waywhich isinthe
rootzoneofmanyoftheexisting trees.  Hereiterated hisrequest fortheCouncil tovote ‘no’ until
therehasbeen further clarification onthedesignandexactdetails onwhatwillbehappening with
thegasline.    

MayorLabadie askedCityEngineer Budde toaddress theseconcerns duringdiscussion ofitem
7ontheagenda.    

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Martin Scheerer andDr. Nicholas Simpson, Hennepin County Emergency
Management



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 3of14

MartinScheerer noted thattheyarefromHennepin County Emergency Medical Services (EMS)  
andnottheCounty Emergency Management.  Hegaveabriefpresentation onwhattheydoin
Hennepin CountyEMSandthelocation oftheirservice area.  Heexplained thattheycover
fourteen cities including Minneapolis andthewestern suburbs.  Hereviewed callvolume dataand
notedthatinShorewood, fromJanuary throughJune, therewereone-hundred twenty-eightcalls
withtheaverage response timebeingtenminutes andforty-eightseconds foraCode3, and
abouteighteen minutes forCode2andnotedthathefeelsthereisroomforimprovement intheir
response times.  Hestated thatfromthesecalls, theyendeduptransporting about eighty-one
people tothehospital.  Heexplained therecentchange intheirhiringprocess whichallows them
tobringinEMTsandtrainthem, onthejob, tobecome paramedics.  Hestated thatthisprogram
alsorequires themtogivetheCountyaguarantee ofthreeyearsofservices following their
training.  Hereviewed theirTalent Garden program where theytakehighschoolorcollege
students thatarebrought intothehospital andareexposed toallthedifferent areaswithin the
healthcare system.  Heexplained thatthrough thisprogram theyaretraining people tobecome
emergency medical responders.  Heshared examples froma ‘typical’ dayinthelifeofa
paramedic.    

Dr. Nicholas Simpson gaveanoverview oftheirP3specialized teamthathasaccesstoultrasound
andadditional medications thattheothermedicsdonothave.  Hestated thattheyareworking on
extending thissothatallthemedics willhavetheability tohavesome diagnostic information like
thispriortogetting tothehospital.  Hereviewed someoftheother things thattheyaredoingto
elevate thelevelofcaresuchastheTechRescue TeamandSpecial Response Teams.    

Mr. Scheerer stated thatthemedical direction teamisoneofthebestinthecountry.  Heexplained
thattheverybestpeoplegothrough theirprogram andtheytrytokeep thebestofthebest.  He
notedthatinanattempt tohavemorecommunity engagement, theyformed theEMSAdvisory
WorkGroup.  Heexplained thattheCityshouldhavereceived theirbrandnewnewsletter last
monthandnotedthatoneofhisgoalswastohavebettercommunication withthecities.  Hestated
thateventhough theyareaCounty organization heasked thattheCityconsider themoneoftheir
own, suchasapoliceorfiredepartment, andencouraged themtoreachoutiftheyhavequestions
orconcerns.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatwhenpeoplecall911, itdoesnotappearasthough theyhave
achoiceastowhowillrespond.  

Dr. Simpson confirmed thatwascorrectand, ingeneral, thereisnotachoicebecause itissimply
basedongeography.  Hestated thattheydosometimes seethatthose linesarecrossed if
someone elseisreallybusybutitisprimarily determined byyouraddress.  Heexplained thatthey
justwantedtobeavailable totheCitytoanswer questions orgetinputonwaystheycanimprove
service totheresidents.    

Mr. Scheerer notedthathebelieves thedividing lineinShorewood isCountry ClubRoadsothe
western portionoftheCityiscoveredbyRidgeview Ambulance andHennepin County covers the
eastern portion.  Heexplained thattheentireState isdivided intoPrimary Services Areas (PSA).  

Councilmember Gorham stated thatthedatapresented showed thatinthesametimeperiod the
callsforShorewood moved fromone-hundred in2021toone-hundred twenty-eight in2022and
askedifthatwasjustachange indataorifitwasadangerous trend.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 4of14

Ms. Scheerer stated thatitisatrendandexplained thattheyareseeingaboutathirty-fivepercent
increase incallvolume throughout thesystem.    

Dr. Simpson statedthat theycertainly sawadipin2019-2020withCOVID because alotofpeople
werestaying homeandmanypeople, iftheyneeded help, stillchosenottocallforhelpbecause
theywereafraid togointothehospital. Hestated thathethinksbecause ofthistherewerea
number ofmedical andmental health issues thatwereleftunattended andbelieves thatsomeof
thiscallvolumemaybejustcatchingup.  Henotedthat thisisnotjustalocal trendandthe
increase ishappening nationwide.    

Councilmember Gorham askedifthecallvolumes werelarger thanpre-COVID data.   

Mr. Scheerer stated thatitisabithigher thanpre-COVID data.     

MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Scheerer andDr. Simpson fortheirreport.   

5. PARKS

A. ReportbyCommissioner HirnerontheSeptember 13, 2022ParkCommission
Meeting.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatCommissioner Hirnerwasnotinattendance tonight.   

MayorLabadie notedthattheminutes fromthelastParkCommission meeting hadbeenincluded
inthepacket.  

Councilmember Johnson notedthatheattended astheCouncil Liaison andnotedthatthePark
Commission received their firstpresentation regarding theIntegrated PestManagement Plan.  

6. PLANNING

A. ReportbyCommissioner Eggenberger onSeptember 20, 2022Planning Commission
Meeting

Planning Commissioner Eggenberger gaveanoverview ofthediscussion andaction takenatthe
September 20, 2022Planning Commission meeting.    

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Approve FinalPlansandSpecifications andAuthorize Advertisement forBidsfor
BirchBluffStreet, CityProject21-01

CityEngineer Buddestated thatonJune13, 2021, theCouncil authorized thepreparation ofthe
FinalPlansandSpecifications fortheBirchBluffRoadStreetandUtility Improvement project,  
which included watermain andstormsewer improvements.  Hestated thattheCityhasgone
throughaseriesofopenhouses andpublicengagement withresidents andneighbors inthearea.   
Hestated thattheproject details include: roadway width oftwenty-sixfeet; onstreetparking
allowed onthesouthsideofBirchBluffRoad; speed limit toremainat25MPH; thecurvedesigned
for15MPH; LeeCirclecul-de-sacincreased toaneighty footdiameter; allstopssignstoremain;  
nosidewalk ortrail; eight inchwatermain construction; fourspecificparcels remaining onTonka



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 5of14

Baymunicipal water; utilize firelandsforstormsewerdischarge toLakeMinnetonka; andpursue
ponding associated withdrainage andutilityeasement at26045BirchBluffRoad.  Hestated that
theyarestill intheprocess ofrequiring easements, right-of-entries, andcompleting theappraisal
ofwhere thestormwater pondwouldbelocated inaddition tocontinuing tomeetwithresidents to
discuss anyotherconcerns theymayhave.  Hestated thatiftheCouncil elected toapprove this
andmoveforward, theywouldopenbidsandbebackforfinalaction fromtheCouncil atthe
November 14, 2022CityCouncil meeting, withtreeremoval happening throughout thewinter
months.  Hestated thathewould expectminorutility relocations tohappen inthespring andthe
majorstreetreconstruction tohappen inJunethrough November.  Heexplained thatwithregard
totheutility relocation thatwasreferenced during Matters fromtheFloor, theCityhasbeen
coordinating withallthesmallutilities thatareinthereandexplained thattheyarepermitted
through theCity’sordinances andareallowed tobewithin theright-of-way.  Heexplained that
manytimes theutilitycompanies donotevenstart theirdesignuntil theCityhasactually approved
theproject andwhentheydo, theplanswillbesubmitted totheCityandwillbereviewed and
approved through theCitypermitting process whichgivesthemsomecontrol.  Henotedthathis
expectation isthattheywilldirectionally drill theirnewlineswhich isrelatively minorly invasive
whichshouldmeanthattherewill justbeminor impacts tothetrees.  Hestated thatthishasbeen
included intheCity’sbudgetplansandstaffrecommends approval andauthorization toadvertise
forbids.   

Councilmember Gorham askedabout theradiusdesignatBirchBluffandGrantLorenz inits
current form.    

CityEngineer Budde stated thathebelieves itiseither20or25MPH.  Heexplained thatthe
existing pavement encroaches ontotheLesser’sproperty.  Hestatedthattheyaretryingtoreduce
theradiussoitwillnolongerencroach ontheirproperty andwillalsohelpslowtraffic.    

MayorLabadie thanked CityEngineer Budde forhisefforts toholdmeetings andcommunicate
withresidents.  Shestated thattheroadwasstaked lastweekandfeelsthatmayhavecleared
upalotofconfusion about theactualparameters oftheproject.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathethinks therearealotofnicethingsabout thisproposed
project, butexplained thathewished itwerea24footwidestreetandnot26feet.  Hestated that
thereisalotofcharmalong thisstreetandlovesdrivingdownitandfeelsthatthereisabig
difference between 22feetand26feet.    

Councilmember Siakelnotedthatmostoftheroadisnot22 feetwideanditactually varies
between 22and25feetsoformostpeople, therewillbeaveryminimal impact.  Shestated that
shehasnotheardcomplaints about thewidthofthestreet.  Shestated thatshethinksCity
Engineer Buddehasdoneaphenomenal jobcommunicating andworking withtheresidents.  She
stated thatthereareanumberofresidents alongtheroadthatwantupdated infrastructure,  
including waterandnotedthatthisprojecthasbeenplanned foralongtimeandexplained that
shewasisinfullsupportofit.    

Councilmember Johnson askedaboutparking andaskedifhisassumption wascorrect thatifthe
roadwidthwasunder26feettherewouldbenoon-streetparking.  

CityEngineer Buddeanswered thatwouldbetypicalpractice, buttherearesome exceptions, for
example, Glen/Amleewhichisonly24feetwideandallows forparking ononesideofthestreet.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 6of14

Councilmember Gorham stated thatthereisnotahardandfastruleaboutnotallowing parking
atstreets narrower than26 feetandnotedthathethinksthattheCitycouldstillprovide the
infrastructure Councilmember Siakel referred towithout increasing to26feetwide.    

MayorLabadie stated thattwenty-fixfeetistherecommended widthaccording totheStateFire
Standards andcodeandexplained thatshewouldnotbecomfortable goingagainst those
recommendations.  Shestated thatshewantstodothisroadrightwhichwould include following
theStateFireCode recommendation.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatsheagreed andwould error onthesideofsafety inthis
situation.  Shestated thatparking isachallenge inthisareaandwhilesheunderstands thattrees
areaconcern, asCityEngineer Buddehasoutlined, therehavebeensomestepstakentotryto
reduce those impacts andsheisinfavorofapproving thisproject.  

Councilmember Gorham stated thattheCitydidnotcreatean ‘unsafe’ condition with22footwide
streets.    

Councilmember Siakel reiterated thataportionoftheroadisalready26feetwideandtherewere
justafewindividuals speaking uptonight.  Shenotedthatthese individuals donotrepresent the
entirestreetorneighborhood, butjustaportion.    

Siakel moved, Callies seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-093, “AResolution
Approving thePlans and Specifications for theBirch Bluff Road Reconstruction Project
and Authorizing Advertisement forBidding, City Project 21-01.” Motion passed 4-1
Gorham opposed).  

8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve Appointment ofPark Commissioner

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle stated thatPatricia Levyattended aninterview during the
Council WorkSession priortothismeeting.    

MayorLabadieexplained thatsheandCouncilmembers CalliesandGorham werepresent forthe
interview andnotedthatshefelt thatMs. Levywouldbeawonderful addition tothePark
Commission.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatheagreed andhefeltshebroughtalotofenergy andfresh
ideas.    

Callies moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-094, “A Resolution
Making anAppointment toThe Shorewood Park Commission.” All in favor, motion passed.  

MayorLabadie stated thatshewould liketoreverse theorderoftheremaining agenda items
sincePoliceChiefTholen waspresent.    

B. Approve SLMPD Joint Power Agreement (JPA), Adopting RESOLUTION NO.  
22-090 (Moved from theConsent Agenda, and Formerly item 8.C.)  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 7of14

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheaskedforthistoberemoved fromtheConsent Agenda
because shewanted theCouncil tohavemorediscussion onthisitem.  Sheaskedabout Section
7, Subd1, thatreferences thattheCommittee fundsmaybeexpended bytheCommittee.  She
askedhowthiswouldaffectdaytodayoperations because sheassumed theCoordinating
Committee didnotgetdowntohowChiefTholen runsthedepartment onaday- to- daybasis.  
Shestated thatshedidnotthinktheinternal operation details wereveryclearly statedbecause
thisdocument almost makes itseemliketheCoordinating Committee hastoagreeoneverycheck
thatiswritten.    

ChiefBrianTholen, SLMPD, explained thathedoeshandle theday-to-dayoperations and
whenever hehasaquestion, hebrings themuptothemayororthespecific cityitmayaffect.    

MayorLabadie stated thattherehasbeenaslightchange inthecheckwritingpolicy.   

ChiefTholen stated thatwascorrectandexplained thatinitially theChairoftheCoordinating
Committee wouldhavetosigneverycheckwhich causedadelay.  Heexplained thatthe
Coordinating Committee decided tohavetwosignatures necessary, himself, andhis
administrator, sohecanrevieweverybillandeverycheck thatgoesoutthedoor, withoutadelay.    

Councilmember Calliesnotedthatprocedure wasnotreally spelled outwithin theJPA.  She
referenced Subd. 2which refers toExhibit1, however thereappears toonlybeanExhibitA. She
askedwhere thingswere intheprocessofapproving theJPA.  

MayorLabadie stated thatsheknewthatGreenwood hasalready approved theJPA.  

ChiefTholen stated thatthegoalistohavethiscompleted bytheendof2022.    

MayorLabadie suggested thatifthereareconcerns raisedabout theJPA, shecouldbringthem
tothenextCoordinating Committee meeting fordiscussion.    

Councilmember SiakelaskedifCityAttorney Shepherd hadalready reviewed thisdocument.   

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thathehadnotreviewed itprior toitbeing intheagenda packet.    

Councilmember Siakelaskedifthechanges tothe JPAwereintended tobehousekeeping
matters.    

ChiefTholen explained thatthiswasalready inprocess beforehecameonboard, butbelieves
theideawastoremove language thatwasnotnecessary andstreamline howtheoperation ofthe
SLMPD isactually working.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefelt thereshouldhavebeenabitmoretimetolookthrough
itbefore itisplacedonsomething liketheConsent Agenda forapproval, butnotedthatshe
believes theentireCouncil isinfavorofhavingaJPA.  

MayorLabadie stated thatiftheCouncil felttheyneededmore timetoreview theJPA, itcan
alwaysbeplacedonafuture agenda andsuggested theOctober 11, 2022meeting.  Shenoted
thattheCoordinating Committee meeting isonOctober 12, 2022soiftherewereanyconcerns
raisedattheCouncil meeting, shecouldbringthosetotheCommittee afewdays later.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 8of14

Councilmember Callies continued withherquestions about theJPArelated toSection10andthe
change innotice fromtwentymonths downtoeightmonths.    

MayorLabadie stated thatduringdiscussion attheCoordinating Committee, itwasfeltthattwenty
months wastoolongatime.    

ChiefTholen statedthattherewerealsoconcerns aboutbudgeting, sothiswouldallowthemto
beabletobudget quicker ifacitydecided toleave.  

Councilmember Callies askedaboutSub. Para. C, Subd. 1.c. andnotedthatitappears that
something mayhavebeenleftoutorwaswrittenpoorly.  Shereferenced Section 10, Subd. 3,  
andnotedthatshefeelsitwouldprobably beunderSection9, notSection 10.  Shestated that
ExhibitAhadsuchsmallprint thatshewasnotabletoreadit, butInterimCityAdministrator
Shuklehadprovided herwithalargerprint-out.  Sheaskedforanoverview ofthereallocation
andifherunderstanding wascorrect thatitwouldbedoneveryfiveyears.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshehadnotedallthecomments outlined byCouncilmember Callies.   
Sheencouraged theCouncil totakealookattheJPAandplantobringitbacktothenextmeeting
fordiscussion priortotheCoordinating Committee meeting.   

Labadie moved, Siakel seconded, tabling discussion of theSLMPD Joint Powers
Agreement resolution andbring itback tothe October 11, 2022 City Council meeting.  All
infavor, motion passed.    

MayorLabadie notedthatiftheCouncil discovered anyother itemssuchasCouncilmember
Calliesbrought up, thattheyarecommunicated toInterimCityAdministrator Shukle orCity
Attorney Shepherd priortotheCouncil meeting.    

C. Utility Rates Review – (Formerly item 8B)  

Finance Director Rigdon statedthattheCityhasputtogether a10-yearCapital Improvement Plan
aswellasa5-yearstreet reconstruction plan.  Hestated thatwhentheybegan thisanalysis a
fewyearsago, theyfoundthatthereweresome significant shortfalls intheirprojections.  He
stated thattheCitythenbuilt insomerateincreases over thelastfewyears toaddress the
shortfall.  Hereviewed theproposed annual increases inutility ratesandthecashforoperations
fortheWaterFund.  Henoted thatthecashfortheWaterFundhasbeennegative overthelast
several yearsandexplained that thereisasimilar situation within theSewer Fund.  Hereviewed
budget detailsandexplained thatthecashbeing drawndownisdirectly occurring because ofthe
MetCouncil billforwaste waterservice whichhasshotuprapidly overthepastfewyears.  He
stated that thereissomeoperating income intheStormWaterManagement Fund, butnotedthat
thecashinthisfundhasalsobeendecreasing.  Hestated thatforthelongterm, theCityneeds
tohavesomeincome coming inandexplained thatstaff isrecommending approval ofthenew
utility rates, asoutlined.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhata ‘normal’ rateincrease wouldbeafter this5yearprogram
hasbeencompleted.   

Finance Director Rigdonstated thathistorically itwouldbeinthe3% range, butwithinflation is
currently higher thanthat.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 9of14

Councilmember Gorham stated thatinflation rightnowissomewhere between 9-11% andasked
ifthatmeant theCitywouldadjusttothatfornextyear.    

Finance Director Rigdon explained thattheCitywouldwanttoclosely review thiseveryyear.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshethinks theCity’scurrent ratesarereallyabargain and
notedthatshedidnotthinkanything thatFinance Director Rigdon wassuggesting fortherate
increases wasoutofline.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatsheagreed thatthese adjustments donotappear tobeoutof
lineandthanked Finance Director Rigdon forlayingtheinformation outthewayhehasbecause
shefeltitwasaverygoodexplanation. Shenotedthatsheagreed thattheCityshouldreview this
information periodically inorder toensure thatthefundcorrectly balances.    

Siakel moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting ORDINANCE NO. 593, “An Ordinance Titled
Utility Service Charges”.  All infavor, motion passed.   

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Administrator andStaff

1. Tree Sale update

MayorLabadie notedthatamemofromCommunications andRecycling Coordinator Moorewas
included inthepacketwhich thanked WadeWoodward forhisassistance during thetreesale.   
Shenoted thatshewouldalso liketorecognize Communications andRecycling Coordinator
Moorebecause shealsoputalotofworkintothetreesale.    

Other

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated lastweekRyanBrandt startedasaLightEquipment Operator
andtodayToddRoden alsobegan trainingandnotedthatthisisthefirsttimethedepartment has
beenuptofullstaffing inquiteawhile.  Heexplained thathecanalsoaddress thequestions that
hadbeenraisedduringMatters fromtheFloor byMr. Robbrelated tothecondition ofBoulder
Bridge roadways.  Heexplained thatbothheandCityEngineer BuddehadmetwithMr. Robbout
inthefieldandwhileportions oftheroadways wereaesthetically displeasing, theyaresuperficial
andnotstructural.  Hestated thathewentbackandtookalookattheratingsandtheyarerated
asasevenoutoften, which iswherepavement spendsmostoftheir ‘lives’.  Heexplained thata
sevenratingmeans thattheroadways have someblemishes andcracks, butnotlargeareasof
alligatoring’.  Henotedthatthereisasmallsection ofalligatoring inthephotos submitted byMr.  
Robb, butoverall, theroadways arestructurally performing well, despite theirage.  Hestated that
whentheCitybegan thePacer ratingprogram, thegoalwastotrytokeepallroadways abovea
four, which theyhavebeenabletodo.  Hestated thatoverthepasttwotothreeyears, theCity
hasputagreatdealofeffort intothemillandoverlay program, however, itisbased onthefunding
thatisavailable.  Heexplained that theyhavetriedtoaggregate thefunds intoatwo-year
program, whichmeansmillandoverlay wasdonethisyearandwouldnotbedonein2023.  He
stated thattheplansforthe2025millandoverlay program arealready fullanddonotinclude the
Boulder Bridge roadways.  Heunderstands thatthereisfrustration there, buttheCityislimitedby
thefundsandaredoingtheirbesttofollowthePaser ratingprogram objectively.  Hestated that
Boulder Bridge isslated forpatching andnotedthathehasspoken withCityEngineer Budde



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 10of14

aboutsealcoating whichcouldbuyabitmoretimetogetmorelifeoutofthepavement before
additional restoration isneeded, however thatwasdiscontinued under formerCityAdministrator
Lerud.  Heexplained thatformerCityAdministrator Lerud believed thatsealcoating was
essentially painting overtheproblems, butsomestillfeelthatsealcoating canbeworthwhile.  He
stated thathedoesnotthinkBoulder Bridge roadways willmeetthecurrent criteria forthe2025
program, butheandCityEngineer Buddehavediscussed whether thereisanywaytheycan
comeupwith fundsanddoamajorpatchandsealcoat ofthatareatotrytobuysome time.   

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshethinks thiscomesbacktotheCouncil because thereneed
tobesomestandards andaschedule thattheystickto.  Shestated thatshethinkstheCityhas
gotten intothesituation wheretheygetbeaten downbythepublicorpeople comeinandwant
something acertainwaysotheCitygetsawayfromtheirplanned calendar.  Shestatedthatshe
feelsstrongly thattherehavetobestandards andtheCityhastosticktothecalendar, regardless
of whoiscoming before theCouncil.  Shestatedthatshethinks itwillgetmoredifficult in
neighborhoods along thewestsidebecause theseareneighborhoods thathavebeentherea
longtime.  Shestated thattheCouncil needs tobalance resident needswithbeinggoodfinancial
stewards.  Shestatedthatthestandards andhowtheyarefollowed shouldbeconsistent, the
residents should betreated consistently, andfeelsthattheCityseemstobemoving awayfrom
thispiecemeal approach.    

MayorLabadie askedwhenPublicWorksDirector BrownhadmetinthefieldwiththeBoulder
Bridge residents.   

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatitwasabout threemonths ago.    

MayorLabadie askedhowoftenthePaser ratingsarereviewed.   

PublicWorksDirector Brownexplained thathetypically doestheratingseveryyear, inthelate
fall.    

MayorLabadie statedthatsheagreed withCouncilmember Siakel thattheCityneedssomesort
ofstandard, butshefeltthatthePasersystem already provides thatstandard.  Shestated that
thisisreviewed annually andlikeshowtheCitydoesthemajorconstructions/reconstructions one
yearandthenthemillandoverlays thefollowing year.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatBoulder Bridgehasbeenslated forsomehotpatching.     

MayorLabadie asked thattheCitynotify theneighbors whenthepatching hasbeencompleted
andperhaps puttogether information explaining toresidents about thePaser systemandhow
theCityusesit.   

PublicWorks Director Brownnotedthat theCityhasbegun thewatermain flushingabitearlier
thannormal.    

CityEngineer Budde reminded theCouncil thatthecontractor willbeoutdoingsomeofthemill
andoverlay ontheChristmas LakeLaneareawithin thenextweekortwo, which isabitbehind
schedule.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthetwoitemsthatwerepresented thisevening byPlanning
Commissioner Eggenberger willbeinfrontoftheCouncil attheirOctober 11, 2022CityCouncil



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 11of14

meeting.  Shenotedthatshewillbesending outletters toresidents involved, because the
Planning Commission hadreferenced theCityCouncilmeeting wouldbeonOctober10, 2022,  
however thatisColumbus DayandtheCityCouncil meeting willbeheldonTuesday, October
11, 2022.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatfollowing uponthediscussion withtheCityProsecutor atthe
lastmeeting, therewillbeadisposition report thatwillcomefromHennepin County.  Heexplained
that thisreport iscreated threeweeksaftertheendofthemonthandtheCityProsecutor willalso
providealistingofthenumber andtypeofappearances fortheCouncil alongwiththatreport.    

InterimCityAdministrator Shukleexplained thattherewere 13 candidates fortheParkand
Recreation Director position andtheyhave interviewed eightofthem.  Henotedthattheyhave
narrowed thecandidates downtofourandexplained thatthePersonnel Committee willtakepart
ininterviewing thosefourcandidates laterthisweek.  HenotedthattherewillbeaSpecial City
Council meeting heldonSeptember 27, 2022todiscuss theCityAdministrator search.    

B. Mayor andCity Council

Councilmember Callies stated thatshehadbeenoutwalking neartheSmithtown Pondsproject
andreally likedthesignage because itcontains agoodexplanation ofwhat iscoming.  Shenoted
thatshefeels likeitisgoingtobeareallybeautiful projectwhenitiscompleted, butnotedthat
thesidewalks inthatareahavealotofweedsandvegetation inthem.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thattheweather latelyhasbeenfavorable forweedgrowth.   
Hestated thatnormally theywouldapplyachemical totheweedgrowth, butastheCouncil is
aware, theCityisholdingoffuntil theIntegrated PestManagement Planhasbeenapproved.  

Councilmember Callies stated thatherunderstanding isnotthattheCitywillaccept thecompleted
report ‘asis’.  Shestated thatshethought thattheCitywould takealookatitanddecidehow
theywanttoproceed andthinks theresolution shouldbeamended totakeintoconsideration
someofthese issues, soitisnotanallornothing proposition.  Shestated thattherewereareas
inthereport thatwerenotnoticed, suchastheareanearthewater towerontheeastsidethat
wasplantedafewyearsagowithnaturalplantings suchasmilkweed. Shestated thatatthePark
Commission meeting theretheideathat themeeting wasnotterriblywellpublicized andbelieves
thattherewasgoingtobesomemoreoutreach toensure peopleknowaboutthese ongoing
discussions.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatthelastphaseofthereport isdueinMarchof2023.  He
stated thatthisissuewillrequireafairamountofpublic inputandpubliceducation, soitwillneed
tobewelladvertised.  Hestated thatCouncilmember Callie’spoint iswell takenregarding this
timeofsuspension ofapplying anychemicals because thatmeans thattheCityissuffering some
setbacks ininfrastructure andnotedthattheparks woulddefinitely takeahit.  Hestated thatthis
willneedtobeaculturalshiftandtheCityandresidents willhavetohaveahigher tolerance for
weeds Hestated thatduring thissuspension, theCitywillbetakingafewsteps backwards, but
agreed thatareas likethesidewalk shementioned willbegin todegrade theCity’sinfrastructure.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelswhatheisreferencing isapolicydecision andshe
doesnotrecall thattheCouncilmadethatkindofdecision thattheCitywasjustgoingtosuspend
everything until thisreport iscompleted.  Shestated thatshedidnotthinktheCouncil hadagreed
onwhat thecultural shiftwouldactuallybe.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 12of14

Councilmember Siakelstatedthatshefeelsthisisanother example ofsomething thathasgotten
completely unbalanced.  Sheexplained that shefeelsthattherewasgreat intention whenthe
wholeBeePollinator thingcamethrough, buttoCouncilmember Calliespoint, nothaving itbean
allornothing approach wouldbeamuchbetterplace tobe.  Shestated thatshefeelstheCity
cansay, yes, wearethefirstCitytodothis, butisclearlyneedssomerevamping.  Shestated
thatshefeelsthishasendedupweaponizing certain people inthepublic toattackpeopleand
makeitapolarizing issue.  Shestated thatshedoesnotthinktheCouncil hadasked thequestion
aboutwhatwouldhappen intheinterim timeperiod.  Sheagreed withCouncilmember Callies that
therecouldbeabetterbalancewithin thatresolution anditmaybeagoodideatoamend itfor
thatpolicy.  

MayorLabadie explained thatshedidnotdisagree, butthinkstheCouncil didgivetheorderto
haltpesticide applications until theIntegrated PestManagement studywascompleted.  Shenoted
thatwhentheCouncil gavethatorder, shedoesnotthinktheyanticipated thatitwould takethis
longtocomplete thevarious phasesofthestudy.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thattheycanreview theminutes toseeiftheCouncil actually
madethatdecision andreiterated thatshedidnotrecallordering thePublicWorksDepartment
tonotdoanythingatall.    

Councilmember Siakelnoted thatshedidnotthinkstaffhasdoneanything wrongandstated that
itmayjustbeanunintended andunforeseen consequence tothese discussions.  Shestated that
shefullyexpects thependulum toswingtheotherwayandfortheCitytostartgetting complaints
frompeopleabout theweedsandquestions aboutwhytheCitywasnotkeeping upwiththe
maintenance intheparks.  Shestated thatshefeelsCouncilmember Calliessaiditperfectly that
there justneeds tobeabalance between nothing andeverything andfeelsthatamending the
resolution maybeagoodidea.    

PublicWorksDirector Brown statedthathedoesnotbelieve therewasastatement madefrom
theCouncil withthedirection tonotapplyanychemicals butthatitfellbacktotheresolution that
waspassed fortheBee-Safesituation.  Heexplained thatdeclared thattheCitywouldnotuse
certain typesofchemicals orsystematic pesticides which iswhere theprohibition comes intoplay.   

Councilmember Calliesnotedthatshedidnotthink thedefinition wasclearandnoted thatshe
wentbackandtookalookattheminutes from2014andwhen theCouncilwasdiscussing itat
thetime, itneversaidthattheCitywouldneverusesystemic pesticides anywhere.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathealsodidnotthinktheCitywasstopping ‘coldturkey’.  

Councilmember Siakelstated thatsheunderstood whystaffwouldhave thought thattheyshould
stop “coldturkey”, because therewerepeople coming asking fordatarequests andscreaming
about purchases thatwerequitenasty.  Shestated thatifithadbeenher, shewouldhavestopped
coldturkey” after thoseactions.    

MayorLabadie statedthattheargument wasmadethatanytypeofpesticide wasinviolation of
thatresolution.    

Councilmember Callies reiterated thatshefeelsthattheCouncil needs torevisit this issueand
consider amending theresolution sooner than justwaiting forthefinalphaseofthereport.  She



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 13of14

stated thatshewould liketoatleastseeaminor amendment tothelanguage toreduce the
amountofchemicals rather than ‘abstain’ fromthem.    

MayorLabadie askedCityAttorney Shepherd toweigh inonthisdiscussion.   

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thattheCouncil coulddirectstafftobringforward anamended
resolution thatwouldbeslightly morepermissive, notafullprohibition, andclarify thattheCity
wasintheprocess ofexamining theuseoforganic material andpollinator friendly treatments.   

Planning Director Darling noted thatPhaseOneandPhaseTwooftheIntegrated Pest
Management PlanwillcometoaCouncil WorkSession onOctober 24, 2022andnotedthatthe
consultants willbepresent atthemeeting aswell.   

PublicWorksDirector Brown stated thatPhaseTwoofthestudyiswhatheconsiders the ‘meat
andpotatoes’ ofthedocument because itoutlines moreofthepractices andtheactualcosts.  He
stated thatstaffcanalsotakealookatthelanguage oftheresolution forfurther discussion atthe
WorkSession aswell.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatshebelieves thisWorkSession discussion willneedtohave
atleast twohourssetasidetoallowfordetailed discussion.  

Councilmember Siakel suggested thatbescheduled foraseparate datebecause ifthediscussion
wasgoingtotakethat long, thatwould makeforaverylongnight inaddition totheregular City
Council meeting.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshewouldagree thatthiswouldbealottoschedule inaddition
toaregular CityCouncilmeeting.   Shenotedthatshewishes thatthestudywouldhavebeen
completed priortotheCitypassing theresolution sotheyknewwhat theywouldbegetting into.  

Councilmember Siakel reiterated thatshefeelsthereneedstobeaconversation aboutbalance
andwould liketoseesome representation during thediscussions fromsomeofthesporting
leagues sotheyknowthatthisisgoingonandmakesuretheyknowthat theycanvoicetheir
opinions.   

Public WorksDirectorBrown stated thathehadbeentalking tothemweeklyandagreed thatthey
dohaveconcerns.    

MayorLabadie stated thatfromthegrumbling shehasheard, shebelieves thesports
organizations aredisappointed withthecondition oftheCity’sfields.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshewasunaware ofthatsentiment because theyhadnot
contacted theCityCouncil.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatstaffwilldotheirbesttoensure thatthesporting leagues
areatthetableforthesediscussions because insomeareas, suchasthewarning tracks, weeds
cancauseasafety issue.  

MayorLabadie stated thatthefieldswillcontinue todeclineunless theCitydoessomething and
shethinks thesportsorganizations willpulloutoftheCityparksandfindsomewhere elsetogo,  
iftheyareunhappy, whichshedoesnotthinktheCitywants.   Shereminded theCouncil that



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022
Page 14of14

October1, 2022from5:30to7:30p.m. therewillbetheOktoberfest Celebration attheShorewood
Community andEventCenterandOctober6, 2022willbetheOpenHouse atthePublicSafety
building from5:00p.m. to8:00p.m.  

10. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Siakel seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
September 26, 2022, at8:57P.M.  All infavor, motion passed.   

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



Item2C

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2022 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:01P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  Mayor Labadie; Councilmembers: Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; Interim City
Administrator Shukle; andPattyHeminover, BakerTilly.  

Absent: Councilmember Johnson.  

B. Review Agenda

Siakel moved, Gorham seconded, toapprove the agenda aspresented.  Motion passed 4/0.  

MayorLabadie explained thepurpose oftheworksession which istoconduct a
second interview withJesseDickson, fortheposition ofCityAdministrator.    

MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Dickson forbeinghere.  Interim CityAdministrator
Shukle askedquestions fromalistofagreed uponquestions asdeveloped by
Baker/TillyandtheCityCouncil.  Uponcompletion oftheinterview withMr.  
Dickson, theCityCouncil discussed this interview andthedirection theCouncil
would liketotake.  TheCouncil discussed theideaofre-posting theposition
through BakerTilly.  Ms. Heminover explained thattherewould notbeanadditional
costtodososincetheposition hasbeenadvertised as “openuntil filled.”  The
Council consensus wastore-posttheposition withanapplication deadline of
October 14, 2022, againadvertising theposition as “openuntil filled.”  Ms.  
Heminover alsosuggested increasing thesalary rangeresulting inthetopsalary
being $155,000annually.  Council consensus wastoacceptMs. Heminover’s
recommendation. Suggested interview datesareOctober 25, 26or27.  Ms.  
Heminover willworktogetanacceptable number ofcandidates scheduled forone
ofthosedates.  
ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Siakel seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
September 27, 2022, at7:32P.M.  Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2D

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood CouncilMeeting Item

Title / Subject: VerifiedClaims

MeetingDate:   October11, 2022
Preparedby: MichelleNguyen, SeniorAccountant

JoeRigdon, Finance Director

Attachments: Claimslists

PolicyConsideration:  
Shouldtheattached claimsagainst theCityofShorewood bepaid?  

Background:  
Claimsforcouncilauthorization.  
67640 - 67673 & ACH 824,741.54
TotalClaims $ 824,741.54

Wehavealsoincludedapayrollsummary forthepayrollperiodending September 25, 2022.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  
Theseexpenditures arereasonable andnecessary toprovideservicestoourresidentsandfundsare
budgetedandavailable forthesepurposes.  

Options:  
TheCityCouncilmayacceptthestaffrecommendation topaytheseclaimsormayrejectany
expenditure itdeemsnotinthebestinterestofthecity.  

Recommendation / ActionRequested:  
Staffrecommends approvaloftheclaimslistaspresented.  

NextStepsandTimelines:  
Checkswillbedistributed following approval.  



0.-'1#23'!. 

1?0& 1

@%.AB" CCCCDECFEDCDD# G#$2GCFGDHGDCDD
4567#89#:;82<=88, 

1 !%(#901K9 I,#JCJ

JCJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# LFMJNDELL4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

JCJGJJGRJCSGCCCC# JMNJHEHR# CECC$ O26G65Q< 

JCJGJJGRJDDGCCCC# JSJESJ# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJSGRJCJGCCCC# TMLHNEJC# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGJSGRJCSGCCCC# NRTETC# CECC$ O26G65Q< 

JCJGJSGRJDJGCCCC# HFTEHR# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJSGRJDDGCCCC# NCSEHT# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJSGRJSJGCCCC# JMHTRETN# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGJSGRJLJGCCCC# HSERR# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGJLGRJCJGCCCC# LMHJNEFD# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGJLGRJDJGCCCC# RDJESL# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJLGRJDDGCCCC# RSDEDT# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJLGRJSJGCCCC# HRJELT# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGJLGRJLJGCCCC# DHECJ# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGJTGRJCJGCCCC# TMSJFERL# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGJTGRJCSGCCCC# JHNEDL# CECC$ O26G65Q< 

JCJGJTGRJDJGCCCC# HSHELJ# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJTGRJDDGCCCC# LTSESN# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGJTGRJSJGCCCC# JMRJHELN# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGJTGRJLJGCCCC# RJEFT# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGDRGRJCJGCCCC# SMHNLETL# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGDRGRJDJGCCCC# DNLEHF# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGDRGRJDDGCCCC# DTLELC# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGDRGRJSJGCCCC# NRTEDR# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGDRGRJLJGCCCC# JDESL# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGSDGRJCJGCCCC# JJMSLTEND# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGSDGRJCDGCCCC# HSHEJN# CECC8P<265Q< 

JCJGSDGRJDJGCCCC# TFFEHS# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGSDGRJDDGCCCC# FDREDF# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGSDGRJSJGCCCC# DMDCTENR# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGSDGRJLJGCCCC# TJHELL# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGSSGRJCJGCCCC# FREJL# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGSSGRJDJGCCCC# NECH# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGSSGRJDDGCCCC# JHETN# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

2#G#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*DH*DCDD#G#JD"DH#$QW$%? # J



JCJGSSGRJSJGCCCC# JNFEHT# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGSSGRJLJGCCCC# JDESJ# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGLDGRJCJGCCCC# DMDDSERD# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGLDGRJDJGCCCC# JHHENH# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGLDGRJDDGCCCC# JLSESF# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGLDGRJSJGCCCC# JDDERF# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGLDGRJLJGCCCC# JDSERH# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

JCJGLSGRJCJGCCCC# JMSDNERH# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

JCJGLSGRJDJGCCCC# FFELH# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGLSGRJDDGCCCC# JCDETT# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

JCJGLSGRJSJGCCCC# JNELC# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

JCJGLSGRJLJGCCCC# HLECT# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

6789:;<66$ 6789:;<6601%*$2 #345

B'! X''K#4'>>E#Y#<Z1.#41. ! 9 I,#DCJ

DCJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# SMCRSEFC4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

DCJGCCGRJCJGCCCC# JMNFTEHF# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

DCJGCCGRJCDGCCCC# JJLELC# CECC8P<265Q< 

DCJGCCGRJCSGCCCC# HJTEDF# CECC$ O26G65Q< 

DCJGCCGRJDJGCCCC# JTJEDT# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

DCJGCCGRJDDGCCCC# JFLENR# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

DCJGCCGRJSJGCCCC# DHEDR# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

DCJGCCGRJLJGCCCC# JCTEJH# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

8>?=<7>$= 8>?=<7> 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#HCJ

HCJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# JRMLFHEDC4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

HCJGCCGRJCJGCCCC# JCMSSRENT# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

HCJGCCGRJCDGCCCC# HTFELJ# CECC8P<265Q< 

HCJGCCGRJCLGCCCC# DJCEHC# CECC= O6<2#$O)<2#$O7

HCJGCCGRJDJGCCCC# TRDEHS# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HCJGCCGRJDDGCCCC# NTNEHC# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HCJGCCGRJSJGCCCC# JMSSTECS# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

HCJGCCGRJLJGCCCC# SFSECL# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

9?867@<;>$ 9?867@<;> 01%*$2 #345

1-.%!&#: X !#9 I,#HJJ

HJJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# TMHDHENJ4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

HJJGCCGRJCJGCCCC# LMFTHEHD# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

HJJGCCGRJCDGCCCC# JFNERR# CECC8P<265Q< 

HJJGCCGRJCLGCCCC# DJCEHC# CECC:<=< 2#$O)<2#$O7

HJJGCCGRJDJGCCCC# RNFEHC# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

2#G#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*DH*DCDD#G#JD"DH#$QW$%? # D



HJJGCCGRJDDGCCCC# RTREJR# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HJJGCCGRJSJGCCCC# JMCTFESH# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

HJJGCCGRJLJGCCCC# JNTEFL# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

A8@;@<:9$ A8@;@<:901%*$2 #345

2A&A(-1?#9 I,#HDJ

HDJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# LLFEJR4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

HDJGCCGRJCJGCCCC# RCFEHC# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

HDJGCCGRJDJGCCCC# SCENS# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HDJGCCGRJDDGCCCC# SJERS# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HDJGCCGRJSJGCCCC# TLEJD# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

HDJGCCGRJLJGCCCC# DEDH# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

667<9?$ 667<9? 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#HSJ

HSJGCCGJCJCGCCCC# CECC# DMLLTEJC4O:;# OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

HSJGCCGRJCJGCCCC# JMFJRERH# CECC9 G65Q<#2<) O2

HSJGCCGRJDJGCCCC# JRSELN# CECC$< 2O#48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HSJGCCGRJDDGCCCC# JRFEHN# CECC954O# 48I625@#G#4567#:;O2< 

HSJGCCGRJSJGCCCC# DTSEJT# CECC< Q$+87<<#5I: 2OI4<#G#4567

HSJGCCGRJLJGCCCC# HNEDD# CECC= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

866A<9>$; 866A<9> 01%*$2 #345

4( %!-1?#901K9 I,#NCC

NCCGCCGJCJCGCCCC# TTMLLHEHC# CECC4O:;#OI,#5IP<:6Q<I6: 

NCCGCCGDJNCGCCCC# CECC# RJMTJFEDN) 28::#$O728++#4+<O25I) 

NCCGCCGDJNJGCCCC# CECC# FMTCJETN;< O+6;#5I: 2OI4<#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJNDGCCCC# CECC# HMJNJEJD9<,< 2O+#=56;;8+,5I)#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJNSGCCCC# CECC# DMHLTENH: 6O6<#=56;;8+,5I)#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJNRGCCCC# CECC# FMFHRESC954O* Q<,54O2<#6O\[#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJNLGCCCC# CECC# FMJJREFR$< 2O#=56;;8+,5I)#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJNHGCCCC# CECC# LMDHSEDF,< 9<22<,#48Q$<I:O658I

NCCGCCGDJNNGCCCC# CECC# JMFJCETD= 82U<2:#48Q$<I:O658I

NCCGCCGDJNFGCCCC# CECC# JTSESS:< 4#JDL#,<$#4O2<#2<5Q@#$O7O@+< 

NCCGCCGDJTSGCCCC# CECC# HSTECC;< O+6;#:OP5I):#O448 I6

NCCGCCGDJTRGCCCC# CECC# TDHEFC,< I6O+#,<+6O

NCCGCCGDJTLGCCCC# CECC# DCRECC,< I6O+#G# I58I

AA866@<@>$ AA866@<@> 01%*$2 #345

2#G#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*DH*DCDD#G#JD"DH#$QW$%? # S



B(/ )#2 #345 9::899=<;>$ 9::899=<;> 

2#G#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*DH*DCDD#G#JD"DH#$QW$%? # R



@::74%& A5A>B
67284& !- 69 :;-#!77<-=$ 5-? %'7! 

2%345 % 

0#1

CA&:9"(((( DE()E+(++-.-#F.().+,.+(++ 

01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

D@GH61I- 6J-K-1I1CIF- LI@=ML-G NO. NPJN-OINM@= 7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-/ @6L-I%A>B '"-M!4

H8& 2> !.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-.- 7%-+( DE((()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/SK.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-.- 7% 

DE(( 69 :;-M7&AB" 

KIGM#H-.-GIOIF@=- T*L7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-+ @6L-I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-G ' !AB-P%:72 -MAU-, V/R/E/+()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R+.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-G ' !AB-P%:72 -MAU

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-GP6@- I28B75  -# 7!&$7%- DV(0RES0()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-GP6@- I28B75  -# 7!&$7% 
F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-GP6@- I28B75 !-# 7!&$7%- DV(0RES0()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-GP6@- I28B75 !-# 7!&$7% 
F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1 '$:A! -I28B75  -# 7!&$7%-) DDE0+()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1 '$:A! -I28B75  -# 7!&$7% 

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1 '$:A! -I28B75 !-# 7!&$7%-) DDE0+()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1 '$:A! -I28B75 !-# 7!&$7% 

V/0KED+ 69 :;-M7&AB" 

LI@=ML-#@FMNIFH. 1IOP6@= 7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-0@6L- I%A>B '"-M!4

H8& 2> !.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LAB&9-P% 4!A%: .LH@.+- KVDR, E00()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R/.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LAB&9-P% 4!A%: .LH@.+ 
H8& 2> !.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LAB&9-P% 67#A5.+- DV0+KEKD()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R/.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LAB&9-P% 67#A5.+ 

VS(/ESR69 :;-M7&AB" 

LI@=ML#@FMNIF. OINM@= 7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-D@6L- I%A>B '"-M!4

H8& 2> !.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-.-N7%- 7%- S+,E)(()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/SD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-.-N7%- 7% 
H8& 2> !.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-..6JCF@- DKE)D()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/SD.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O %&AB-.-N7%- 7% 

SR+ESD69 :;-M7&AB" 

P61@- FIMPFI1INM- MF HM.0(+/0/.DKR7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-K@6L- I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.P61@. GBA&-+ V)KKE/0()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R,.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.P61@.GBA& 
F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.P61@.# !: %& A3 - S0E/,()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R,.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.P61@.# !: %& A3

0V(0SE+) 69 :;-M7&AB" 

D)SFW@N- XJL@NNHIN7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-, @6L-I%A>B '"-GAB

R(H&!AY> !!5= @:Q4$ 7%-7<-F7A'YA5-IA 2 %&-<7!-,(R(-H&!AY> !!5-=A% -+(V+K(E((()*+,*+(++ D().((.D,S(.(((( 

@#.67284& !- 69 :;-#!77<-=$ 5-? %'7!-Z()*+,*+(++-.--/"(0-#1\[# A3 -/ 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

V+K(E(( 69 :;-M7&AB" 

S, 1POTIHM- 1@P=PN\\-HWHMI1H- PN67!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-R@6L- I%A>B '"-M!4

J:&7> !.+(+/ NY B && !-#7 A3 K)+E,(()*+,*+(++/(/./ 0.D+(S.(((( 

J:&7> !.+(+/ NY B && !-H\]:- DKRE+(()*+,*+(++/(/./ 0.DD((.(((( 

V(D)ES( 69 :;-M7&AB" 

1PNNIHJM@- OI#@FM1INM-- JG-FI?IN I7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-S@6L- I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-H&A& -P%:72 -MAU-+ V,KSER,()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R0.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-H&A& -P%:72 -MAU

V,KSER, 69 :;-M7&AB" 

1HFH. 1N-OIGIFFIO- 6J1#-#=@N-DKR7!" 69 :;-H Q4 %: "-) @6L-I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.1HFH.#! -+ V++KE((()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/R,.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-O < !! '-6728.1HFH.#!  

V++KE(( 69 :;-M7&AB" 

KJ#M 1-C@N^ 7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-/( @6L-I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LH@.J#M 1-C@N^-, 0SE((()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/S0.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-LH@.J#M 1-C@N^ 

0SE(( 69 :;-M7&AB" 

IF@7!" 69 :;-HQ4 %: "-// @6L-I%A>B '"-M!4

F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1N.#IF@-O '4:&$7%- DV+0/E)0()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RK.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1N.#IF@-O '4:&$7% 
F.().+,.+(++# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1N-#IF@-C % <$&-I28B75 !- DVSS0E(/()*+,*+(++ R((.((.+/RK.((((# F-CA&:9-((((+E()E+(++-1N-#IF@-C % <$&-I28B75 ! 

V//DE)D69 :;-M7&AB" 

KV)SSE)+ M7&AB-<7!-69 :;-F4%" 

M7&AB-7<-N42> !-7<-69 :;

@#.67284& !- 69 :;-#!77<-=$ 5-? %'7!-Z()*+,*+(++-.--/"(0-#1\[# A3 -+ 



9963%& @4@=A
56173& !- 589:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6! 

1%234 % 

0

B@& 98"))))( C()C,),,-.-().)+.,),,.0$'D 0@$A$%2

01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

EF0GHIJKL- 0?G<GMN-KOKLJ0K- GM56!" 58 9:-KP3 %9 "-(? 5Q-J%@=A '"-L!3

R/FFSM D A && !-#6 @2 C,E()*)+*,),,()(.(+. T,)E.)))) 
R/FE( A$&4.#6 @2 -+/+ CER()*)+*,),, F)(.)).T,)E.)))) 

R/FE( A$&4.KU9-/( C+(()*)+*,),, F)(.)).TT)).)))) 
R/FE( A$&4.#6 @2 -+/+ CER()*)+*,),, F((.)). T,)E.)))) 

R/FE( A$&4.KU9-/( C+(()*)+*,),, F((.)). TT)).)))) 
R/FE( A$&4.#6 @2 -+/+ CER()*)+*,),, F,(.)).T,)E.)))) 
R/FE( A$&4.KU9-/( C+(()*)+*,),, F,(.)).TT)).)))) 

R/FE( A$&4.KU9-/( C+(()*)+*,),, F+(.)).TT)).)))) 
R/FE( A$&4.#6 @2 -+/+ CES()*)+*,),, F+(.)).T,)E.)))) 

V/T(C/E58 9:-L6&@A" 

V/T(C/EL6&@A-;6!-58 9:-W3%" 

L6&@A-6;-M31= !- 6;-58 9:

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-X()*)+*,),,-.--(",/-#0Y# @2 -( 



9963%& @4@=A
56173& !- 589:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6! 

1%234 % 

0

B@& 98")))), C()C,),,-.-?#.().((.,),, 

01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

D? E?0FG-#HGI-5JKILJ<- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

P+P)QRRB3$ A'$%2-M% 79&$6%.G86! S66'- TQCT+()*((*,),,()(.(/. DD)).)))) 
P+P,/,PB3$A'$%2-M% 79&$6%.G63& 8 86! - QPC/)()*((*,),,,)(.)). DD)).)))) 

R(CQ+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

E>?K5HE- M0?UMKU- GJ< IMJKG6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

MK>,TTP)/ V6%$9@-0$%6A&@*5R+T-567$ !- P/C))()*((*,),,()(.(/. D,,(.)))) 

P/C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Q?<< MHE-B<?5VIJ#-5J0#?KW6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-P? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

TT+TJ&& @-G@A-U!@Y A-L6@' T+Z/))C))()*((*,),, D)D.)).DRT).)))) 

T+Z/))C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

0HLM5? K-HKUMKHHLMKU- IHGIMKUZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-D? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

MK>.)/,DQ/ UA %*?1A L'.0@%$& 63.G&!  &-( Z),DC,+()*((*,),, D)Q.)).DRT).)))) 

Z),DC,+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

0HLM5? K-<HU?<-# B<MGOMKU-- 5JL#JL?IMJK6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G.(Q-X6A$6*M%& !% &-G377A 1 %&-#@2 PC))()*((*,),,()(.( P.DD)).)))) 

RDD,),,- G.(Q--G377A 1 %&-H'$&$%2-#@2 ZPT)C,P()*((*,),,()(.( P.DD)).)))) 

Z+TPC,P58 9:-I6&@A" 

T(Q? L5#JMKI-<?BG-JX-HEHK-# L?MLMH6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-R? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D)TE!32-I 2- QPCQ+()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP)+.)))) 

QPCQ+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

RB<?5VGIJKH- 5JKIL?5IJLGZ-<< 56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-Q? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G$AY !S66'#>\[(. G$AY !S66'-#@!:-+ RZPT+ C+T()*((*,),, D),.)).DD)).)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -( 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

RZPT+ C+T58 9:-I6&@A" 

BJWHL- XJLE- IL 5VG6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-T? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

R,)RE317- I!39:-#@!& QP)CRR()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,,(.)))) 

Q#D,D,, E317-I!39:-#@!& C/P()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,,(.)))) 

T+,C+/ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

T/^? GJK-U?LW-5?L<GJK6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-/? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

0@!.G7&.,),, 0$A@2 -L $1=3! 1 %&.0@!-& 8!6328-G7&.,),,-( D(CTD()*((*,),,()(.( T.DPP(.)))) 

D(CTD58 9:-I6&@A" 

PR5HKIHL# JMKI-HKHLUW. U?G6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-()? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

D)+-V%$28 2 -L'- P/CPR()*((*,),, R)(.)).DP/D.)))) 

T(,+-B63A' !- B!$'2 - PPC+,()*((*,),, R)(.)).DP/R.)))) 
D,))-G1$&8&6S%-L'-(,/ C)/()*((*,),,()(. P,.DPT).)))) 
R)))-H3! :@-L6@'- D(CQR()*((*,),,()(.+,. DPT).)))) 

Q++-563%&! 4-5A3=-L'- PPC+,()*((*,),,()(.(/. DPT).)))) 
Q/D+RTT+.)/,P,,+ QP+-563%&! 4-5A3=-L'.G5H5-+/ CRR()*((*,),,,)(.)). DPT).)))) 
TR+)(T)R.)/,P,,,) RP)-0@%6!-L'-,) CT)()*((*,),,()(.+,. DPT).)))) 

P+QCQ( 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PQ5HKI LW-<MKV6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-((? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

DQ),,/DG 7,,/+,. DQ).,,/D.RD,.#_- RRCRR()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 
DQ)RPD)G 7,,/+,. DQD.RPD)./T/.5O-(,) CPT()*((*,),,()(.(/. DP,(.)))) 
DQ)QT(/G 7,,/+,. DQ).QT(/.,R(.GG55-(,+ CP,()*((*,),,,)(.)). DP,(.)))) KS-<$%  

P(,CPR58 9:-I6&@A" 

DD5MIW- JX-H 5̀H<GMJL6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(,? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

P!'-a&!.,),,._@& ! a3@!& ! A4-_@& !- @2 -/ Z)/+CPQ()*((*,),, R)(.)).D,R(.)))) 

Z)/+CPQ58 9:-I6&@A" 

DQ5MIW- JX-0J KE6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-(P? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

D&8-a&!.,),, X$! -GY9-b-#!6& 9&$6%-#@41 %&- RZ+/QCQ+()*((*,),,()(.,,. DD)).)))) a3@!& ! A4

RZ+/QCQ+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

D/ 5MIW- JX-IJKV?-B?W6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(D? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

DPX$! -G7!$%:A !-?%%@3A-X  - P,+C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DD)).)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -, 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

P,+C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

D+R5JLH- b-0?MKZ-<# 6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-(+? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

L+/T)(P_ @& !1@$%-B! @:- DRTCPD()*((*,),, R)(.)).DD)).)))) 

DRTCPD58 9:-I6&@A" 

RQH50-# B<MGOHLG- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(R? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

PD,# O.5 G0^-.-I16=$A -?%& %%@-++ CP+()*((*,),,()(.( T.DP+(.)))) 
PP/RJ!'C-K6C-+/)- Q/C/+()*((*,),,()(.( P.DP+(.)))) 

P+CP) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Q/ H 5̀H<GMJL- XMLH- EMGILM5I6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(Q? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D&8-a&!.,),, B3$A'$%2- R+Z(T/CD)()*((*,),,()(.,,. DR,).)))) 

D&8-a&!.,),, J7 !@&$6% DZDP/ C+R()*((*,),,()(.,,. DD)).)))) 

Q/ZR,TC/R58 9:-I6&@A" 

TRXHLU GJK--_?IHL_JLVGZ-<< 5C-K6C,+(T6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-(T? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D/PQ+,_ @& !-0 & ! 3!98@ PZD+TC/,()*((*,),, R)(.)).D,R+.)))) 

PZD+TC/, 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Q+QUJKWH?- OJ0HGZ- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-(/? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

DR,+B %&2!@ @H 9!6S-L ;3%'-.-,DR,+-B %&2!@ @4-(( ZQPQC+)()*((*,),, TT).)).,,)).)))) 

ZQPQC+) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

UJ#OHL-GI?IH-JKH-5?<< 6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,)? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

QD( 06%& 8A4-L %&@A- T/C++()*((*,),, R)(.)).DD)).)))) 
QD( 06%& 8A4-L %&@A- T/C++()*((*,),, R((.)). DD)).)))) 

QD( 06%& 8A4-L %&@A- T/C++()*((*,),, RP(.)).DD)).)))) 

RTCR+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

UL?MKUHL- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,(? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

D++T+PR+RO@!'- O@& R(CQD()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,D+.)))) 

R(CQD58 9:-I6&@A" 

D(QLJBHLI- O?KGJK6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,,? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

5AA#86% 5AA-#86% -L $1=3! 1 %&.@̂%-.-E9.,),,- PR)C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -P



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

PR)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

O?_VMKGZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,P? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

RP)P(PP58 1$9@A @& !-I! @&1 %&- PZR,,CPR()*((*,),, R)(.)).D,D+.)))) 

PZR,,CPR58 9:-I6&@A" 

T+ OHKKH# MK-5J KIW-?55J KIG-LH5HM>? B<H6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-,D? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

T)PLH5)))() TR.>$ S-L96!' '-E6931 %& C))()*((*,),,()(. P(.DD)).)))) L96!'H@ @41 %& 

C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

T/RO HBG5O- GHL>M5HG6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,+? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

QD))TG5H5-.-- 0@& QDCTR()*((*,),,,)(.)). DD)).)))) 
QRQR( 5$&4-O@AA-.- 0@& CQP()*((*,),,()(.(/. DD)).)))) 

QQC+/ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

JGO-^?KGHK6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,R? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

B@'2 !#:.G7&,, Hc7 % L $1=3! 1 %&-@&-B@'2 !-#@!:-( PC/T()*((*,),,()(.+ P.D,D+.)))) 

PC/T58 9:-I6&@A" 

DPV<0-HKUMKHHLMKUZ-- MK5C6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-,Q? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

T/TD?%& %% @-M% 79&$6%-GY9- RZ())C))()*((*,),,()(.)). PD(D.)))) 

RZ())C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

IM0JIOW- 0?LV-VJGHV6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,T? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

5AA#86% ,),,- 5AA-#86% -L $1=3! 1 %&-.-@̂%-&8!6328-E9.,),,- PR)C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 

PR)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

DQELH_-VLMHGH< 6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-,/? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G 7& 1= !.,),, B3$A'$%2-0@$%&C-G !Y$9 D(,C))()*((*,),,,)(.)). DD)).)))) 
G 7& 1= !.,),, HY %& 62!@1* 5A@ G !Y$9 C))()*((*,),,,)(.)). D,DT.)))) 

ZP,PC)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

KJ-Ha M#0HKIZ- MK56!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-P)? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

P./,/,+) G !Y$9 -I66A9@&- RDQC))()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,,(.)))) 

RDQC)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -D



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

R,< BH.IH5O6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-P(? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

P),D)PT06& 6!-X3 A-<3= -(,/ C(D()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,(,.)))) 

C(D58 9:-I6&@A" 

T( 0HWHL- 5JKIL?5IMKUZ- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-P,? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G&S%#'.G8S'J@:#>\[,.G1$&8&6S%-#6%'.G86! S66'-J@: E!@$%@2 -#! 6dC- PTZP) RC),()*((*,),, D(,.)).DRT).)))) 

PTZP) RC), 58 9:-I6&@A" 

0MKKHGJI?- EH#?LI0HKI-- JX-LH>HK H6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-PP? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

P!'-a&!.,),,.G@A I@ca3@!& ! A4-_@& !-G@A I@c-.-, Z(P+C))()*((*,),, R)(.)).,)T(.)))) 

Z(P+C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

P(P0M5OH<< H-IO IO?J-KU WHK6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-PD? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

G 7& 1= !.,),, 0$A@2 --L $1=3! 1 %&-/ QCR)()*((*,),,()(.(+. DPP(.)))) 

QCR) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

P,+ JK-GMIH- G?KMI?IMJK-.I_MK-5MIMHG6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-P+? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

D(+,/D5@& 89@!&-# @!:.,RR++-_.-R,%'-G&- QTC)+()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD().)))) 

D(+,/+ X!  1@%-#@!:.R)))-H3! :@-L'- D,+CQ)()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD().)))) 
D(+,/RG$AY !S66'-#:.+ Q++-56Y$%2&6%-L- QTC)+()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD().)))) 

D(+,/QG63& 8-G86! .+ P++-G&-?A=@% B@4- QTC)+()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD().)))) 
D(+,/T58!$ 1@ L'.+R,+-0 !!4-<%-, Q(C/T()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD().)))) 

P(CTP58 9:-I6&@A" 

D+,# LHO?<<-H<H5ILM5- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-PR? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

QX!  1@%-#@!:-.-HA 9&!$9-L7@$!-,+) C))()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD)).)))) 

C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

RT+ BLHKE?-# LM55J6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-PQ? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

K6Y.E9.,),,._ AA% AA Hc7 % K6Y-.-E9.,),,- T)C))()*((*,),,()(.( P.D()(.)))) 

T)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PPR# L5O?GH-#J_HL6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-PT? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

3@AX  ? 99&-\[T)))./))).)QDP.T,,P-.-?%%3@A-X  - D/C//()*((*,),,()(.( P.DDPP.)))) 

L ;$AA.)/.)Q.,),,? 99&-\[T)))./))).)QDP.T,,P-( Z)))C))()*((*,),,()(.( P.D,)T.)))) 
L ;$AA.)/.)Q.,),,? 99&-\[T)))./))).)QDP.T,,P-,) C//()*((*,),,()(.( P.D,)T.)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -+ 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

Z)Q)C/T58 9:-I6&@A" 

Q/ L-b-L-H 5̀?>?IMKU6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-P/? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G.L8@=#>\[,-.-< G-.-L8@=$A$&@&$6%-#!6d 9&-( RRZ/)PCPQ()*((*,),, R((.)). DRT).)))) 

RRZ/)PCPQ58 9:-I6&@A" 

G?XHIW-> HOM5< H-GJ< IMJKG6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-D)? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

RPM% @AA- L@'$6.<$28& U!@78$9 6-KS-I!39:-( Z,/)C))()*((*,),, D)P.)).DRD).)))) 

Z,/)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Be))+)( E@%$@-b-G&3@!&- G983A1@% 6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-D(? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

L ;3%'-58 9:-))T)T(.)))Z-,RD,+--G&!@S= !! 4-5&-++ C++()*)+*,),, R((.)).,)().)))) 
L ;3%'-58 9:-))T)T(.)))Z-,RD,+--G&!@S= !! 4-5&-, PCT)()*)+*,),, RP(.)).,)().)))) 

L ;3%'-58 9:-))T)T(.)))Z-,RD,+--G&!@S= !! 4-5&-, PCT(()*)+*,),, R,(.)).,)().)))) 

PC(R58 9:-I6&@A" 

P++ GOLHE. K.UJ-MK56!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-D,? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D)/)/ G8! '' '-GY9- RDC)T()*((*,),,()(.( P.DD)).)))) 

RDC)T58 9:-I6&@A" 

DTHE_?LE-^C-GO V<HZ--^!C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-DP? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

J9&.)D.,),, M%& !$1-5$&4-?'1$%$ @&6!-GY9"-)/*,(*,,--& 8!6328-()*) D*,,-+ Z/R,C+)()*((*,),,()(.( P.DD)).)))) 

Z/R,C+) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PR) GJ IO-<?VH-0MKKHIJKV?-# J<M5H-EH#?LI0HKI6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-DD? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D&8-a&!.,),,.EGa3@!& ! A4.-E =&-G !Y$9 -+, Z,PRCQ+()*((*,),,()(.,(. DR,).)))) 

Z,PRCQ+ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Be))+)) H!$9-b-B6%%$ -G7@!! 1@% 6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-D+? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

L ;3%'-58 9:-))Q)(R.)))Z-+RQ/--O@!'$%2-<%-()+ CT/()*)+*,),, R((.)).,)().)))) 

L ;3%'-58 9:-))Q)(R.)))Z-+RQ/--O@!'$%2-<%- D+CP/()*)+*,),, RP(.)).,)().)))) 
L ;3%'-58 9:-))Q)(R.)))Z-+RQ/--O@!'$%2-<%- D+CPT()*)+*,),, R,(.)).,)().)))) 

RCRR58 9:-I6&@A" 

T( G#<MI-LJ5V-0?K?UH0HKIZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-DR? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

T+D)+ 53 6'$@A-G !Y$9 .5O-B3$A'$%2- DQ,C))()*((*,),,()(.(/. DD)).)))) 

T+D)R53 6'$@A-G !Y$9 .#_ B3$A'$%2- P+TC))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DD)).)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -R



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

TP)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PRRBL 5H-GI?LV6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-DQ? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

5AA#86% ,),,- 5AA-#86% -L $1=3! 1 %&-.-@̂%-&8!6328-E9.,),,- PR)C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 

PR)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

RGI?IH-JX-0K.0MKKHGJI?- EH#?LI0HKI- JX-OH?<IO6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-DT? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

P!'-a&!.,),,.GGa3@!& ! A4-_@& !-G3!98@!2 PZT,+C))()*((*,),, R)(.)).,)T,.)))) 

PZT,+C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

DIOH- 09EJ_H<<-?UHK5WZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-D/? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

D,),TB@9: 2!63%'-58 9:.L4@%-B!@%&-b-I6''-L6' %-( Q)C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DD)).)))) 

Q)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PIOH-a HGIHLG- 0M.KM.I?K.V?-5O?#IHL\[T+T6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-+)? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

G7&(Q.,),,.L % G7&-(Q.,),,-L %&@A.JY !7@$'-L ;3%'-(/ C))()*((*,),,,)(.)). PD().)))) 

C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

R/DIM0HG?>HL-JXX-GMIH- GH5LHI? LM?<Z-MK5C6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-+(? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

0,QRR( 563%9$A-0  &$%2-+ RTC))()*((*,),,()(.( P.DD)).)))) 

0,QRR(# A@%%$%2-0  &$%2-,)+ C+)()*((*,),,()(.( T.DD)).)))) 
0,QRR(# @!:-0  &$%2-(/) C+)()*((*,),,()(.+,. DD)).)))) 

RDC)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

PTDIJI?<-# LMKIMKU- GHL>M5HG6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+,? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

P+,/ KS A && ! D)C))()*((*,),,()(.( P.DP+(.)))) 
P+,/ GG55- M% C))()*((*,),,,)(.)). DP+(.)))) 

P+,/# @!:-M% C))()*((*,),,()(.+ P.DP+(.)))) 

D)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

TP KMXMLGI- 5JL#JL?IMJK6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-+P? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

G7&.,),,.?9&(+R,T+Q 6!1 R)(CTP()*((*,),,()(. P,.DD)).)))) 

R)(CTP58 9:-I6&@A" 

RPT>?<< HW-#?>MKU6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+D? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

0bJ#>\[,-.-,),,- 0$AA-b-JY !A@4-#! 6d9&- Q(ZRP)CTT()*((*,),, D(R.)).DRT).)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -Q



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

Q(ZRP)CTT58 9:-I6&@A" 

P/,>?<<HW.LM5O- 5JC-MK5C6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-++? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

P(,)/_ @& !1@$%-B! @:.-GS  &S@& !- 563!&- b-53!Y -(, Z,/,C)Q()*((*,),, R)(.)).DD)).)))) 

Z,/,C)Q58 9:-I6&@A" 

TT0?IIOH_-LJBHLI->? K<MIO6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+R? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

5AA#86% 5AA-#86% -L $1=3! 1 %&.3̂% -&8!6328- G7&.,),,-(,) C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 

C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

D),_? IHL-5JKGHL>? IMJK- GHL>M5HGZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+Q? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

R,D_ @& !1@$%-B! @:-f-(/+,)-G8@'4-O$AA L6@'- P,PC(P()*((*,),, R)(.)).DD)).)))) 

P,PC(P58 9:-I6&@A" 

VH-^?0HG-_ HBHL6!" 58 9:-G N3 %9 "-+T? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

5AA#86% 5AA-#86% -L $1=3! 1 %&.@̂%-&8!6328-E9.,),,- PR)C))()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP,(.)))) 

PR)C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

D)T_ 0-0 H<<HL-b-GJKG- MK56!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-+/? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

T(,)QL6@'- 0@$%&-( D,C,/()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,+).)))) 

T(P(+ L6@'-0@$%&-, Z,T)C,,()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,+).)))) 
T(D,PL6@'- 0@$%&-( Z(/TC)+()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,+).)))) 
T(R(TL6@'- 0@$%&-/)( C/,()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,+).)))) 

T(RRTL6@'- 0@$%&-( ZP/DC)Q()*((*,),,()(. P,.D,+).)))) 

Z/(RC++ 58 9:-I6&@A" 

D((` 5H<-HKHLUWZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-R)? 5O-H%@=A '"-I!3

Q/QP,Q//+, D,+P-G1$&8&6S%-L'-( Z)DRCDR()*((*,),, R)(.)).DP/+.)))), D,+P-G1$&8&6S%-L' 
Q/QP,TQ(/+ QP+-563%&! 4-5A3=-L'- Q(+CQ+()*((*,),,,)(.)). DPT).))))+ QP+-563%&! 4-5A3=-L' 

Q/QPRTP(/+ Q++-563%&! 4-5A3=-L'-() RCR(()*((*,),,()(.(/. DPT).))))+ Q++-563%&! 4-5A3=-L' 
Q/QRD( RRD+ Q))-563%& 4-L'-(/-+ RCTD()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP//.))))+ Q))-563%& 4-L'-(/ 
Q/QRD( RRD+ Q))-563%& 4-L'-(/-.- 28&- P(+CPP()*((*,),,()(. P,.DP//.))))+ Q))-563%& 4-L'-(/-.- 28& 

Q/QQ()))P, T(,+-B63A' !- B!$'2 -E!$Y - PZTQTCRD()*((*,),, R)(.)).DP/R.)))), T(,+-B63A' !- B!$'2 -E!$Y
Q/QQPTTP+ D/P(-G8@'4-M @A%'-L6@'-, PC/D()*((*,),, R((.)). DPT).)))) D/P(-G8@'4-M @A%'-L6@' 

RZ(DPC+Q58 9:-I6&@A" 

T// g-GWGIH0GZ- MK5C6!" 58 9:-GN3 %9 "-R(? 5O-H%@=A '"-X@A

TPPRQEG-?17A$;$ !-I!63=A 866&. 563%9$A-58@1= !-( Z,,/C))()*((*,),,()(.(/. DD)).)))) 

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -T



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

Z,,/C)) 58 9:-I6&@A" 

Q+RZT()CRDI6&@A-;6!-58 9:-L3%" 

R( I6&@A-6;-K31= !-6;-58 9:

56173& !- 58 9:-#!66;-<$ 4-> %'6!-\\()*)+*,),,-.--,"+/-#0\]# @2 -/ 



2E

MEETINGTYPE
RegularMeeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  Approving Hire ofJanelle Crossfield asPark/Recreation Director
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, October 11, 2022
Prepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/Human Resources Director
Reviewed by:   EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator

Policy Consideration:  Pursuant toShorewood Personnel PolicySection3.08Allnew, rehired,  
promoted orreassigned employees shall complete asix (6) month probationary period upon
assuming theirnewpositions.  Thisperiod shall beused toobserve theemployee’swork habits
andability toperform thework theyarerequired todo.     

Background:  Thecitymostrecently recruited qualified candidates forthePark/Recreation
Director position afterTwilaGrout retired.  Thecityreceived 13wellqualified applications forthe
position, whichclosedonSeptember 9, 2022.  Staffnarrowed downthecandidate poolto8
candidates forfirst-round interviews.  Candidates were interviewed byInterim CityAdministrator
EdShukle, Planning Director MarieDarling, andCityClerk/HRDirector Sandie Thoneon

rdSeptember 22and23.  Wewere fortunate tohaveaveryqualified candidate pool.    

Four (4) candidates werecalledbackforfinalist interviews withstaffandthePersonnel
Committee, consisting ofCouncilmember PaulaCallies andCouncilmember NatGorham.   
These interviews wereheldonSeptember 28, 2022.  Inaunanimous decision, itwasagreed to
offertheposition toJanelle Crossfield.  Janelle iswellqualified withaBachelor’sdegree in
Recreation, Park, andLeisureStudies fromtheUniversity ofMN, andaMaster’sdegree in
Organizational Leadership fromBethelUniversity.  Shehasproven skillsandexperience, which
includes mostrecently asaRecreation Supervisor fortheCityofBrooklyn Center andformerly
asaSeniorandGeneral Programs Manager fortheCityofMinnetonka.  Itwasagreed tomeet
salary requirements andstaycompetitive thattheposition would include theleadstaffposition
working withtheParkCommission.   Wearelooking forward toadding Janelle toourteamand
hercontributions toboththeParksandCommunity Center inthenearfuture.    

Financial Considerations: Staff isrecommending Janelle’scompensation ratebesetat
Grade11, StepFofShorewood’sCompensation Planof $83,616annually.  Theposition willbe
reviewed atthe6-monthanniversary forconsideration ofpermanent appointment.  Theposition
isexempt, PERAeligible, andreceives acomplete benefit package.      

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve Janelle Crossfield’s
hireasaprobationary employee inthecapacity ofPark/Recreation Director fortheCityof
Shorewood.   Motion, secondandsimplemajority voterequired.  Ifthecouncil approves his
appointment, herfirstdayofemployment isanticipated tobeNovember 3, 2022.   

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
sustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2FTitle/Subject:   Retail Tobacco License Renewals
MEETING TYPEMeeting Date:  Tuesday, October 11, 2022
Regular MeetingPrepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector

Attachments:    Resolution 22-095

Background:  Pursuant toSection 302 (SaleofTobacco) and1301 (Municipal Fees) of
Shorewood CityCoderetailers within thecitylimitswhowishtosell tobacco products are
required toobtainalicense fromthecity.  TheShorewood CityCodeprovides thatanapplicant
complete anapplication andpayalicensing fee.  Theannual renewal periodforTobacco
Licenses isNovember 1through October 31.    

Thefollowing Shorewood Businesses havesuccessfully submitted acomplete application,  
successfully passedabackground investigation through SouthLakeMinnetonka Police
Department (SLMPD), paidthecurrent annual tobacco license feeof $250andarecompliant
withallrequirements forobtainingatobacco renewal license andhaveagreed toabideby
Shorewood CityCodeChapter 302Saleoftobacco requirements.  Thissectionofcodeincludes
providing access tothepolicedepartment during regular business hoursandanannual
compliance check.   

Applicant Address
CubFoods #1636 23800StateHighway 7
Holiday Stationstores, LLC 19955StateHighway 7
Lucky’sStation 24365Smithtown Road
Shorewood Smoke ShopPlus 23710StateHighway 7

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Thelicensing feescollected asrevenue offset the
expenseofissuing thepermits pursuant toShorewood CityCodeSection1301 (Municipal
Fees).    

Recommendation/ Action Requested:    
Motion: Staff respectfully requests thecitycouncil approve Resolution 22-095License
Renewals totheBusinesses listedabovetoSellTobacco Products fortheperiodofNovember
1, 2022through October 31, 2023.    
Motion, Second, and Simple Majority required.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding thecommunity withqualitypublic
services, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbaseandsoundfinancial
management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-095

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGLICENSESTO
RETAILERSTOSELLTOBACCOPRODUCTS

WHEREAS, Sections 302oftheShorewood CityCodeprovide forthelicensing ofthe
saleoftobacco products inthecity; and

WHEREAS, theShorewood CityCodeprovides thatanapplicant shall complete an
application andpayalicensing fee; and

WHEREAS, thefollowing applicants havesatisfactorily completed anapplication and
paidtheappropriate fee.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDbytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
asfollows:  

ThataLicense forthesaleoftobacco products beissued foratermofoneyear,  
fromNovember 1, 2022toOctober 31, 2023, consistent withtherequirements
andprovisions ofChapter 302oftheShorewood CityCodetothefollowing
applicants:  

Applicant Address

CubFoods #1636 23800 State Highway 7
Holiday Stationstores, LLC 19955 State Highway 7
Lucky’sStation 24365 Smithtown Road
Shorewood Smoke ShopPlus 23710 State Highway 7

ADOPTEDbytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood this11thdayofOctober 2022

ATTEST:      JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk



2G
MEETING

TYPE
Regular
Meeting

CityofShorewoodCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject: GrantStreetDrainageProject, ApprovalofChangeOrderNo. 1
StormSewerandDriveway; CityProject18-04

MeetingDate: October1, 2022
AndrewBudde, CityEngineerPrepared by:  

Reviewed by: LarryBrown, DirectorofPublicWorks
Change OrderNo. 1andResolutionAttachments:   

thB, 2022,  theCityCouncilawarded theconstructionackground:  OnFebruary14
contract forGrantStreetDrainage Project toSchneider Excavating & Grading, Inc. in
theamountof $238,991.30.   

Duringconstruction, anexistingCityofExcelsior watermain wasidentified tobein
conflictwiththeproposed stormsewer. Thestormmanhole wastobeconstructed on
topofthewatermain withonly0.10’ ofverticalseparation. Inordertoavoidthisconflict,  
Citystaffandthecontractor worked throughmultiple ideasforredesign. Itwas
concluded thatthebestmethod wastorelocate theproposed manholeandadjust the
stormseweraccordingly. Thissolutionavoided anywatermain shutdowns andrepairs.  
Sincethemanholes andstormsewerhadalready beenbuiltanddelivered tothesite,  
therewassignificant extraworktoreconstruct andmovetheassociated items. The
workalsorequired resetting somestructures andpipepreviously notintheproject, in
ordertomakethenewgeometric anglesworkinthestormsewer. Becauseofthis, more
curbandpavement needed toberemoved andreplaced aswell. Thedrivewayat5925
GrantStreetwasfullyregraded andpavedinordertoassure thatdrainage would
convey properly inthislocation. Thedrainageonthisproperty iscrucial totheproject. If
thedriveway hadremained asitexisted, itmayhavereduced theeffectiveness ofthis
theconstruction project.  Schneider Excavating responded verypromptly withthe
revision requests toensure theprojectschedule wasmaintained.   

Financial Considerations: Costs forthisprojecthavebeenbudgeted forintheCity’s
Capital Improvement PlansandwillbepaidforfromStormSewerUtilityFund.  TheCIP
budgetamount is $430,000whichincludes construction, engineering, and
administration.  Theproposed change orderwillincrease thecontractamount to
277,964.24.    

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
soundfinancial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership. Page1



Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staffrecommendsapproval oftheResolution
approving ChangeOrder1fortheGrant StreetDrainageproject toSchneider
Excavating & Grading, Inc. intheamountof $38,972.94.  





10/5/22



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-096

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGCHANGEORDER1TOTHE
GRANTSTREETDRAINAGEPROJECT, CITYPROJECT18-04

WHEREAS, onFebruary 14, 2022, theCityhasentered intoanagreement with
Schneider Excavating & Grading, Inc. fortheGrantStreet Drainage Project inthe
amount of $238,991.30; and

WHEREAS, during construction, stormsewerconflicts withCityofExcelsior watermain
wereencountered andrequired relocation ofproposed infrastructure, including
additional street, stormsewerandcurb replacements; and

WHEREAS, therevision required theregrading andpavingofanadjacent residential
driveway, inordertomaintain thedrainage design; and

WHEREAS, Schneider Excavating & Grading, Inc. completed alltheworkrequired to
accomplish therevisions foratotalof $38,972.94.  

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approves Change OrderNo. 1andauthorizes increasing thecontract amount to
277,964.24withSchneider Excavating & Grading, Inc., fortheGrantStreetDrainage

Project.   

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this11 dayof
October, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2HTitle/Subject: LMCITInsuranceRenewal
Meeting Date: October 11, 2022 MEETING
Prepared By:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULAR

Background:  TheCityCouncil isrequired bytheLeagueofMinnesota Cities Insurance Trust
LMCIT) toannually decide iftheywishtowaiveornotwaivethemonetary limitsonmunicipal tort

liability insurance established byMinnesota Statute 466.04.  Thecurrent statutory liability limits
are $500,000perclaimant and $1,500,000peroccurrence.  TheCityCouncil mustalsomakea
separate decision whetherornottopurchase additional liability insurance fromtheLMCIT.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Traditionally thecityhasnotwaived liability limits
andpurchased additional liability insurance.  Theproposed 2023budget isbeingprepared asif
thatpractice continues.  

Options: TheCityCouncil candothefollowing:  

1. Notwaive thestatutory tortlimits.  
2. Waive thestatutory limitsandnotpurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  
3. Waive thestatutory limitsandpurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  

RecommendedAction:  Staff recommends thattheCityCouncil passamotion tonotwaive
statutory tortlimits.  Seeattached formthatIwillsignandsendtoLMCITupontheCityCouncil
approving thisrecommended action.  

NextStepsandTimeline:  Staff isworking through theinsurance renewal process forthe
November 1renewaldate.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



LIABILITY COVERAGE – WAIVER FORM

Members whoobtain liability coverage through theLeague ofMinnesota Cities Insurance Trust
LMCIT) must complete andreturn this formtoLMCIT before themember’seffective dateof

coverage. Return completed form toyour underwriter oremail topstech@lmc.org.  

The decision towaive ornotwaive thestatutory tort limits mustbemade annually bythe
member’sgoverning body, inconsultation with itsattorney ifnecessary.  

Members whoobtain liability coverage from LMCIT must decide whether towaive thestatutory tort
liability limits totheextent ofthecoverage purchased.  Thedecision hasthefollowing effects:  

Ifthemember does notwaive thestatutory tort limits, anindividual claimant could recover nomore
than $500,000onany claimtowhich thestatutory tort limits apply.  The totalallclaimants could
recover forasingle occurrence towhich thestatutory tort limits apply would belimited to $1,500,000.   
These statutory tort limits would apply regardless ofwhether themember purchases theoptional
LMCIT excess liability coverage.  

Ifthemember waives thestatutory tort limits and doesnotpurchase excess liability coverage, asingle
claimant could recover upto $2,000,000forasingle occurrence (under thewaive option, thetortcap
liability limits areonlywaived totheextent ofthemember’sliability coverage limits, andtheLMCIT
peroccurrence limit is $2,000,000). The totalallclaimants could recover forasingle occurrence to
which thestatutory tort limits apply would alsobelimited to $2,000,000, regardless ofthenumber of
claimants.  

Ifthemember waives thestatutory tort limits andpurchases excess liability coverage, asingle claimant
could potentially recover anamount uptothe limitofthecoverage purchased.  The totalallclaimants
could recover forasingle occurrence towhich thestatutory tort limits apply would alsobelimited to
theamount ofcoverage purchased, regardless ofthenumber ofclaimants.  

Claims towhich thestatutory municipal tort limits donotapply arenotaffected bythisdecision.   



LMCIT Member Name:  

Check one:  
o Themember DOES NOT WAIVE themonetary limits onmunicipal tort liability established byMinn. 

Stat. § 466.04. 

o Themember WAIVES themonetary limits onmunicipal tort liability established byMinn. Stat. § 
466.04, totheextent ofthelimits oftheliability coverage obtained fromLMCIT. 

Dateofmember’sgoverning body meeting: _____________________________________________ 

Signature: Position: ________________________________ 

2





TheCityAttorney reviewed therequest. Aspecific interpretation onthismatterwould
constitute attorney-clientprivileged information inappropriate forapublicdocument.  However,  
henotedtherequest istobuildafencewhollyontheapplicants’ property inaccordance with
CityCodeprovisions foraspecial purpose fence.  Furthermore, hestatedMinnesota Statute
466.03, subd. 6provides forimmunity fortort liability fordiscretionary acts (theperformance or
failure toexerciseorperformadiscretionary function orduty).  

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Theapplication feesareadequate tocover thecostof
processing therequest.  

Recommendation / Action Requested:  StaffandthePlanning Commission recommend
approval oftherequest, subject tothefindings andconditions intheattached resolution.    

Proposed motion:  Movetoadopt theattached resolution approving aconditional usepermit
forRichard JeidyandVirginia Ballforproperty locatedat25140GlenRoad, asrecommended
bythePlanning Commission.    

Anyactiononthisrequest would requireasimplemajority.  

Next Steps and Timelines:  Iftheitemisapproved, theapplicant couldsubmitazoning
permit request.    



RESOLUTION22-097

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGA
CONDITIONALUSEPERMITFORASPECIALPURPOSEFENCEFOR

THEPROPERTYLOCATEDAT25140GLENROAD

WHEREAS, Richard JeidyandVirginia Ball (the “Applicant”) hasapplied fora
conditional usepermit foraspecial purpose fenceonproperty legally described as:  

Theeast118feetofLot8, Block1, CaseyAddition, Hennepin County, Minnesota

WHEREAS, Shorewood CityCodeSection 1201.03(f)(11) allows fortheconstruction of
special purpose fences andfences thatvary inheight, location anddesign fromthe
regulations forresidential zoning districts uponapproval ofaconditional usepermit; and

WHEREAS, theApplicant hasapplied foraconditional usepermit fortheconstruction
ofaprivacy fencewithsix- andseven-foottallsections along thewestproperty linefrom
thefrontproperty linetotherearproperty line; and

WHEREAS, theApplicant isproposing thefencetomitigate conflict withthe
neighboring property owners and, consequently, theproposed fencewould varyfrom
thetypical requirements inheight, location anddesign; and,  

WHEREAS, thePlanning Commission considered therequest foraconditional use
permit foraspecial purpose fenceandheldapublichearing atitsregular meeting on
September 20, 2022, atwhichtimetheplanning staffmemorandum wasreviewed and
comments wereheard bytheApplicant andthepublic; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil considered therequest foraconditional usepermit fora
fenceatitsregular meeting onOctober 11, 2022, atwhich timethePlanning
Commission’srecommendations andcomments andletters fromthepublic were
reviewed.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA FINDS ASFOLLOWS:  

FINDINGS

1. Thesubject property islocated inanR-1C, Single Family Residential zoning
district.   

2. Theshared property linehasbeenthepointofconfrontation between thetwo
property owners foratleast17years.    

3. Theproposed fencewouldbelocated 2-3inches inside theApplicant’sproperty.    
4. Theproposed fencewasfoundtonotobstruct trafficvisibility alongGlenRoad.   
5. TheApplicant’sproposal isidentified onplansdatedJuly25, 2022andAugust1,  

2022 (“Plans”).  
6. Theproposed fencemeets thecriteria foraspecial purpose fenceunderCityCode

Section 1201.03(f)(11) asitisproposed anddesign tomitigate conflict between



neighboring property owners and, consequently, differsdimensionally fromother
fences expressly permitted underCityCode.  

CONCLUSIONS

1. TheApplicant’srequest forafencetobeinstalled asshown onthePlans is
hereby approved basedontheabove findings.  

2. Therequest hassatisfied thecriteria forgranting aconditional usepermit fora
fenceunder theShorewood CityCode, subject tothefollowing condition:  
a. Thefence isconstructed according tothePlansprovided totheCity.  
b. Prior toconstruction ofthefence, theApplicant must request andreceive a

zoning permit.    
3. Theconditional usepermit shallexpire oneyearafterapproval unless the

applicants havecompleted thefenceorrequested anextension asallowed by
CityCode.  

4. TheCityClerk ishereby authorized anddirected toprovide acertified copyof
thisresolution forfilingwiththeHennepin County Recorder orRegistrar of
Titles.  

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA
ththis11 dayofOctober, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

2







































CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page2of10

A. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR ASPECIAL PURPOSE
FENCE
Applicant: Richard Jeidy and Virginia Ball
Location: 25140 Glen Road

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftherequest foraConditional UsePermit fora
Special Purpose Fencetoprovideabarrier toreduce confrontations between theapplicant and
theiradjacent neighbor.  Sheexplained thattheCity’sfenceregulations allowforthistypeof
application tobereviewed asaCUPrather thanavariance.  Shestated thatthefence isproposed
tobeafullprivacy fenceatsixfeetinheight forthemajority ofthelengthoftheproperty linewith
seven feetsectionsatthecommon confrontational areas.  Shereviewed theCity’sfence
regulations thattypically require frontyard fences tobeaminimum of25% openandamaximum
offourfeethigh, however, theapplicant hasstated thatashorter fencethatis25% openwould
notstoptheongoing confrontations.  Shestated thatstaff recommends approval oftherequest.   
Sheexplained thatstaff received seven letters regarding thisapplication, fiveoftheletterswere
fromtheEnghousehold at25170 GlenRoadwhichexpressed concern about theapplication, and
twolettersofsupport, onefromKimberly andRobertKelly, 24975GlenRoadandtheother from
JenandMatthew Lafontaine, 25165GlenRoad.    

Commissioner RiedelaskedPlanning Director Darling toexplain thedifference between a
variance andCUP, specifically thecriteria related tofences.    

Planning Director Darlingexplained thatavariance isanapplication proposing something thatis
notinkeeping withthezoning regulations orwouldbesomething thatiscontrary tothe
requirements.  Shestated thataCUPisanallowed useinthezoning district andexplained that
thedifference between thetwowasessentially avariance isanexception totherulesandaCUP
isanallowedusewhere theywould lookatmoreconditions thanwithjustapermitted use.    

Commissioner Huskins askediftherewereanypre-existing easements between thesetwo
properties thatthefencemayormaynotimpact.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatshehasnotseenanyeasements shownontheapplicants’  
survey.  Shenotedthattherearedrainage andutilityeasements ontheadjacent property.    

Commissioner Huskins askedifaninterimCUPpermitwould applytofencing underany
conditions.  

Planning Director Darling answered thatitdidnotandwasnotanoption inthisscenario asthe
ordinance wouldneedtonametheuseasaninterimconditional usepermit..    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedwhatwould happen ifasubsequent owner tookthefence
down.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatitwouldbeapermanent approval, soifitwasremoved, they
couldreinstall it.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askediftherewereanyrequirements formaintenance afterthefence
isputup.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatitwouldbethesameforanystructure andwouldneedtobe
maintained.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page3of10

Commissioner Riedel stated thattheCity’scode isverycomplex whenitcomes tofencing and
theCommission haddiscussions inthepastaboutcleaning upthecode.  Hestated thatPlanning
Director Darling outlined inthestaffreporthowthisfencediffers fromtherequirements thatwould
notrequireaCUP.  Hestated thathisunderstanding isthatpeopleareallowed toconstruct a
fence, withapermit, ifitisatleast threefeetfromtheproperty lineandifitwouldberightonthe
property line, thereisarequirement thattheygetpermission fromtheadjacent owner.  Heasked
ifhisunderstanding wascorrect thatthisCUPsuperseded thatrequirement.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattherequirement ofthreefeet fromtheproperty line isnot
quitecorrectandexplained thatitisthreefeet, ifthereisanadjacent fence because thatspace
wouldallowformaintenance ormowing between thefences.  Shestated thatifthedesire isto
putthefencerightontheproperty line, theCityrequires sign-offfromtheadjacent neighbor.  

ChairMaddyasked iftheCityregulated vegetation, forexample arborvitae, toacertainheightor
setback.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCitydidnotregulate vegetation.    

Richard Jeidy, 25140GlenRoad, explained thebackground andreason behindhisrequest for
thisfencing wasthattheywereattempting tominimize confrontation thattheyhavebeenputting
upfor17yearsfromtheirneighbor.  Heexplained thatthefinalstrawwasthevulgar insults tohis
wifeandchasing hisdogwithashovel.  Hestated thattheyareasking fortheability tohave
peaceofmindandwalk intheirownyardwhile feelingbothcomfortable andsafe.    

Commissioner Huskins askedifMr. Jeidyhadgivenanyconsideration tomaintenance ifthefence
wassoclosetotheneighbors property lineandaskediftherewasareason itneeded tobethat
closetotheline.    

Mr. Jeidyexplained thatthereason theyhavechosen vinylasthefencematerial wasbecause it
islowmaintenance.  Hestated thattheabilitytohaveitonthelotlinewillallowhimtokeeptrees
andbushes thatwouldnotbedisturbed andstated thathereallywouldliketohavefullusageof
hislawn.    

Commissioner Riedel stated that thereisalotofexisting vegetation andaskedfordetailson
which lottheywereon.    

Mr. Jeidystatedthat themapleandpineinthefrontareonhislotandexplained thattheyhad
gonethrough mediation through theCityonthearborvitae thatcomes rightupagainst thelotline.   
Hestated thatoriginally thisindividual ownedbothhomesandthingskindofmelded together
which isthereason forthecloseness oftheedging tothearborvitae.  Hestated thathehas
trimmed itbackovertheyearsbecause hewassupposed tomaintain hissideofthevegetation,  
whichhehasdone.  Hestated thatinthehopesofgettingapproval ofthefencing, hehastrimmed
backthearborvitae attheendoftheproperty.  Hestatedthathisrequest istoplacethefence
about2-3inches offtheproperty line.    

Commissioner Eggenberger asked ifthearborvitae would essentially growintothefence.   

Mr. Jeidystatedthatitcould, butarborvitae doesnotreally ruborwearonvinyl fencing andnoted
thattheyareplanning touseaveryhigh-end, durable vinyl.  Hereiterated thathewould liketo
getasmuchuseofhisyardaspossible anddidnotthinkthearborvitae orothervegetation will
beanissueforthefencing.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page4of10

ChairMaddyopened thePublicHearing at7:24 P.M. noting theprocedures usedinaPublic
Hearing.    

Richard Eng, 25170GlenRoad, stated thathewastheadjacent property owner.  Hestated that
theCityneeds togobackandcheck theirrecords regarding theeasement because thereisan
easement forutilityanddrainage whichwasdonewhenthelotwassplit in1987.  Hestated that
heholdstherecordsofthatandexplained thatitislocatedrightatthelotline.  Hestated thathe
wouldquestion licensing fortheapplicants dogandaskedwhyitwouldberunning around and
notcontained.  Heclarified thathedidnothitthedogandwasdefending himself froman
aggressive dog.  Hestated thattherequest isforvinyl fencing andhewantedtopointoutthat
vinylcrackssoitwillnotbemaintenance free.  Heexpressed concern about theabilityofthe
installation crewdigging holesanddoingtotheworktobeabletoputupthisfencewithout having
totrespass onhisproperty.  Hestated thatheisnotopposed toafence, buthehasnumerous
plantings intheareaandwouldpreferchain linkorsplitrail.  Hestated thathehadhisproperty
surveyed in2011andallthemarkers wereremoved within3weeks.  Heexplained thathehad
contacted thepolicedepartment andwastoldthatitwasacivilmatter. Hestated thatheagain
hadhisproperty surveyed thispastJulyandtoldthesurveyor not toputanymarkers onthe
property line.  Henotedthatbasedonhissurvey results, thelocation thattheywant toputtheir
fencing isjustabout3inchesaway fromtheedgeofhisarborvitae. Hestated thatonadviceof
counsel, hehashiredanexpertwithaPhDinbiology andanotherPhDinforestry whoassessed
theareainAugust whotoldhimthathisarborvitae wouldbedeadwithinafewyearsifthe
proposed fencing isputup where theyareproposing.  Hestated thathewentoutandgotan
estimate forthereplacement costs forhisarborvitae whichwouldbe $26,309.22.  Hestated that
hecannot stopthemfromputting upafence, butwhenthatfenceaffects hislandscaping thenit
willbecomeanissueforhim. Hestated thathefeelsthefencing, asproposed, willnotstop
confrontation because therewillbefutureproblems withhisvegetation orhistreespushing on
their fence.    

Commissioner Eggenberger notedthatittakes2-3daystoerectafenceandaskedifMr. Eng
wasimplying thathewouldnotallowtheconstruction crewtobeonhisproperty.   

Mr. Engreiterated thatiftheyareallowed toputupa7foottallfencehequestions whatwould
happen tohislandscaping, sohewould notallow thecrewtobeonhisproperty.  

Commissioner Huskins stated that therewassafety issuebrought upinthedocument Mr. Eng
hadpresented thathewouldnotbeabletoseetrafficarriving intothecul-de-sacarea.      

Mr. EngstatedthatthisiswherehefeelstheCityhasitwrongandhasnotdoneenough research.   
Hestated thatsincetheyhavebuilt thecul-de-sac, carscomeandwhiparound thecul-de-sac
without stopping, andnotedthatthereisalsoadeercorridornearbyandhefeelsatall fenceto
thestreetwillmakeitdifficult forhimtoseeandhaveappropriate reaction time.    

Commissioner Riedelaskedhimtopointonthediagram whatlineofsightwouldbeimpaired by
thefencing andnoted thathebelieved theonly thingthatwouldbeobscured bythefencing would
behishomeandnottheroad.    

Mr. Engstated thathewillnot beabletositinhisliving roomandseethemailman orany
emergency vehicles.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page5of10

Commissioner Riedel stated thatthelineofsightfrominsidehishomehasnobearing onsafety
fortraffic.  

Chair Maddy stated thathebelieves hewasreferring toanimals orsomething moving frombehind
thefence intotraffic.  

Mr. Engstatedthathewasalsoconcerned withtheeffectofthisseven footfencing onhishome
valueforresale.    

JoeLugowski, 24710GlenRoad, referenced thesizeofthedogbeingdiscussed andexplained
thatitisalittlepoodle.  Hestatedthathehadnevermetthedogbeforebutwhenhestopped over
theretoday, thatdogliterally jumped intohiscar, wagged itstailandlickedhim. Hestated that
theroadisbrand-newandinyearspast itwasonly10-11feetwideandfulloftrees, but the
current visibility ontheroadisextremely good.  Hestated thatcarshave increased theirspeed
andnotedthathehadevenstopped somecarsthathefeltweregoingtoofastbecause heisat
thebeginning ofthestreet.  Heexplained thathedidnotsharetheconcerns thatweregiven by
Mr. Engregarding visibility.   

ChairMaddy closed thePublic Testimony portionofthePublicHearing at7:46P.M.  

ChairMaddynotedthatincluded inthereportareaccusations andrebuttals which the
Commission hasread.    

Commissioner Riedelstated thathethinks thedistinction between avariance andaCUPis
relevant.  Hestatedthathemaynotbeinclined tograntavariance whenithastodowithadispute
between neighbors buttheCodehastheCUPprovision forfencesandtherearesituations where
itmakessense todeviate fromthefourfoot, 25% openrule.  Hestated thathefeelsthatthis
request seems reasonable ineveryrespectandwouldprovideasolution towhatappears tobea
veryserious concern.  

Commissioner Holkerstated thatsheagreed andnoted thatpeace inaneighborhood isvery
important toherandifthisactionwillhelpthat, shewouldbeinsupportoftherequest.  Shestated
thatshegrewupinthisneighborhood andherparents still livethere. Shenotedthatthenewroad
isavastimprovement overwhatwasthereanddoesnotseeanyconcerns withregard tosight
lines.   

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathehasservedonthePlanning Commission forfiveyears
andhehasnevermetaproposal toputupaprivacy fencethatheliked.  Hestated thatheabhors
privacy fencesunlesstheyscreen machinery oreyesores andthinks theyarebadfortheCity.   
Hestatedthatthere isanoldWelshproverb thatsays, “Alittleamong neighbors iswaymorethan
riches inawilderness.”, butheplanstovoteforrecommending approval forthisCUP.   

Commissioner Huskins stated thathewillalsosupport thisrequest, butnotedthatheisconcerned
about thepotential lossoflandscaping oftheadjacent property, butherecognizes thatisa ‘what
if’ scenario inthefuture.    

ChairMaddy stated thattothrowoutanopposing viewpoint fromRobert Frost, “Goodfences
makegoodneighbors.”, andexplained thatthepointofthepoemisthatmanytimesfences aren’t
reallyneeded.  Hestated thatwiththisbeingabehavioral issue, hehatestoseetheCitygettoo
involved inwhatoneneighbor saysabout another andviceversabecause itmakeseveryone
uncomfortable andnotedthathewashopeful thatitwillgetresolved.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page6of10

Commissioner Riedel stated thathedoesnotknowthelegal intricacies inthissituation, butif
something ispermitted bythezoningcodeorapproved oftheCouncil, itisnotcleartohimthata
neighbor canthensuefordamages, forinstance, totheir landscaping.  Hestated thathedidnot
intendtoopineonthatissue, buthewouldhopethat thereisnolegalactionsurrounding thisand
hopes thattheneighbors canresolve theirdifferences.    

ChairMaddy asked thatitbeincluded inthereport fortheCouncil thatifthearborvitae dieandit
canbeattributed totheCUPthatwasgiven, whether thatwouldconstitute atakingbytheCityor
whatother legal liabilities theremaybeinthatsituation.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatshewillhavetheCityAttorney lookintothis issueprior to
theCouncil meeting.    

Riedel moved, Huskins seconded, recommending approval of theCUP foraSpecial
Purpose Fence at25140 Glen Road, subject toacquisition ofabuilding permit. Motion
passed 4/1 (Maddy opposed).  

Planning Director Darling stated thatthisitemwillcomebefore theCityCouncil onOctober 10,  
2022.    

Mr. EngaskedPlanning Director Darling ifhecameintotheCitytomorrow andaskedforafence
permit thatdidnotrequire anyvariances whether itwouldbeapproved.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCityhasastandard permit, soifnovariances were
needed, itwouldbeapproved.    

Mr. Engaskedifthatmeant thatifhedidthatandgotthefenceputup, thentheapplicant would
havetohavehisfencing offset threefeet.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatMr. Jeidy’sapplicant wasthefirstapplication, soifMr.  
Engapplied forpermit toinstallafence, hewould needtokeephis3feetaway fromMr. Jeidy’s
fenceandnottheotherwayaround.    





















4B

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Preliminary andFinalPlatforHighPointe Estates Second Addition

Applicant: RoyLecy
Location:  Ontheeastsideofthesoutheasterly extentofCharleston Circle

Meeting Date:     October 11, 2022
Prepared by:    MarieDarling, Planning Director

Review Deadline: December 29, 2022

Attachments:    Engineers’ Memodated September 14, 2022
Draftminutes fromtheSeptember 20, 2022meeting
Planning StaffMemorandum
Covenants andDevelopment Agreement forHighPointEstates
Resolution approving aPreliminary andFinalPlat

Background:  Seeattached memorandum fordetailed background onthisitem.   The
applicant proposes torecordanewplattochange thelegaldescription oftheparcel froman
outlot toalotnumber sothatitmaybeconsidered abuildable lot.   

AttheirSeptember 20, 2022meeting, thePlanning Commission votedunanimously to
recommend approval oftheitem, subject totheconditions listed inthestaff report.    

Summary ofPublic Notice:  Notice ofthepreliminary platapplication waspublished inthe
official newspaper atleast10daysprior totheplanning commission public hearing and
mailed notice wassenttoallproperty owners within 750feetofthesubject property.   

AttheirSeptember 20, 2022meeting, thePlanning Commission votedunanimously to
recommend approval oftheitem, subject totheconditions listed inthestaff report.  The
primary issueraisedatthemeeting wasrelated tothecondition ofCharleston Circle.  

Homeowner Association Documents
TwoPlanning Commissioners asked theapplicant ifthelotwouldbeincluded intheHOA.    

Theapplicants representative indicated thatitwould.  However, revised HOAdocuments
submitted justbefore themeeting appear tocontradict thisstatement andstaffdonot
believe theapplicant’srepresentative wasawareofthesituation.  Staff reviewed theHOA

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

C:\\Users\\sthone\\Desktop\\CAFMemo.docx



documents submitted whichshow thattheapplicant andtheresidents ofHighPointEstates
haveagreed toremove thesubject property fromthehomeowners association.    

Regardless ofwhether ornottheproperty ispartoftheHOAdocuments, itremains partof
theoriginal PUD, butthePUDhasveryfewrestrictions onanydevelopment. Boththeoriginal
declaration ofcovenants fortheHOAandthedevelopment agreement areattached.  The
differences aresummarized below:  

Minimum house size:  Theoriginal HOAminimum house sizepermitted inthe
development was1,500square feetor2,400square feetfortwo-storyhomes. In
Shorewood, theminimum house sizepermitted is30feetby22feet.  Whilesomeofthe
narrowest homes inShorewood haverequested variances totheminimum width (22
feet), alltherecent single-family homes constructed havebeen larger than1,500square
feet.    
Building materials/roofpitch:  Insteadofthedesign requirements oftheHOA, thehome
wouldbedesigned basedonthepreference ofthenewhomeowners orthebuilder.    
Fence styles:  Thehome wouldbesubject tothesameShorewood fence requirements as
theother lotsonCharleston Circle.    
Wetland/Buffer Protection: Conservation easements were included intheoriginal
development agreement (notHOAdocuments) andarerequired byCityCode.   

Condition ofCharleston Circle
Aresident expressed concern thattheroadway hadacrack initandthatconstruction traffic
would damage theroadway.  

TheCommission asked ifthePublic Works department couldbeconsulted onananswer for
thisconcern.  After themeeting, Public Works Director Brown reviewed theconcern andsaid
thatsomecracking isalways present onroadways.  Hesaidtheroad isinverygood condition
8outof10inthepavement management ratingsystem) andhewouldnotanticipate normal

construction traffic tocause damage totheroadway.    

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Theapplication feescover thecostofprocessing the
request.  Developments arerequired topayfeesforutilityconnection (sewer only) andpark
dedication.  These feesarecollected prior totherelease ofthefinalplatforrecording.    

Recommendation / Action Requested: StaffandthePlanning Commission recommend
approval oftherequest forapreliminary andfinalplatforHighPointe Estates Second
Addition onproperty located ontheeastsideofthesoutherly extentofCharleston Circle,  
subject tothefindings andconditions intheattached resolutions. Should theCityCouncil
determine another courseofaction ismoreappropriate, staff recommend referring theitem
backtostaff todraft theappropriate findings-of-fact.    



Proposed motion:  Movetoadopt theattached resolution approving apreliminary andfinal
platforHighPointe Estates Second Addition, forRoyLecy, subject tothefindings and
conditions intheattached resolution.    

Anyactiononthisrequest would require asimple majority.    

NextStepsandTimelines:  IftheCityCouncil approves therequest, theapplicant would need
tosubmit revised plans andtheother information listedprior torecording thefinalplator
requesting abuilding permit.  



RESOLUTION22-098

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGAPRELIMINARYANDFINALPLATFOR
NDHIGHPOINTEESTATES2 ADDITIONFORROYLECYFORPROPERTY

LOCATEDATTHESOUTHERLYEXTENTOFCHARLESTONCIRCLE

WHEREAS, RoyLecy (the “Applicant”), hassubmitted arequest foraPreliminary andFinalPlat
tochange thelegaldescription oftheparcel legallydescribed as:  

OutlotD, HighPointEstates, Hennepin County, Minnesota; and,   

WHEREAS, theapplicant submitted therequest forthepreliminary andfinalplatinthemanner
required forthereviewofsuchapplications under theShorewood CityCodeandunderChapter
462ofMinnesota Statutes, andallproceedings havebeendulyconsistent thereunder; and,   

WHEREAS, thepreliminary andfinal isconsistent withtheShorewood Comprehensive Plan
andtheintentoftheregulations andrequirements ofthelawsoftheStateofMinnesota andthe
CityCodeoftheCityofShorewood.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
RLSandvariances areherebyapproved, subject tothefollowing conditions:  

1. Thelotlineadjustment ishereby approved, inaccordance withtheplanssubmitted on
August2and31, 2022 (the “Plans”) andsubject totheconditions listedbelow.  

2. Priortorecording theplat, theapplicant shallcomplete thefollowing:  
a. Anychanges tothewetland delineation required bytheMCWD shallbeincorporated

intothePlansandthelegaldescriptions fortheconservation easement forthewetland
andwetland buffer.    

b. Submit thefollowing:  1) arevised finalplatwithdrainage andutilityeasements overthe
wetland andwetland buffers; 2) aseparate legaldescription andexhibit foranaccess
easement overthesouthwesterly tipoftheparcel toprovideaccess tothecity’sproperty
tothesouth; and3) revised plansandpermitsconsistent withtheengineering memo
datedSeptember 14, 2022.  

c. Submit executed conservation easements overthewetland andwetland buffers andan
executed access easement.  

d. Payrequired utilityconnection feesandparkdedication foroneadditional lot.  

3. Priortoconstruction ofahomeonthenewlot, provide thefollowing:  
a. Proofofrecording fortheplat, easements, andotherrecorded documents.   
b. Astormwater management planconsistent withtheCityandwatershed district

requirements.    
c. Arevised treepreservation inventory withthesize, species, condition, andstatusofthe

treesonthesite.  
d. Alandscaping planshowing therequired treereplacements consistent withCityCode

andthetreepreservation policy.   

4. Theapproval fortheplatrequest shallexpire in180daysiftheApplicant hasnotrecorded
theplatwithHennepin County.  TheApplicant mayrequest anextension totheapproval
subject totherequirements ofSection 1202.03Subd. 3.c.    



ADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this11thdayof
October, 2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

2



MEMORANDUM

Date: September 14, 2022

To: Marie Darling, Planning Director

From: Andrew Budde, PE/MattBauman, PE

Subject: HighPointe EstatesSubdivision/ FinalPlatEngineering Review
CityofShorewood
Project No.: 0C1.123603

Local
Surface Water Management Planand Engineering Standards: 

CivilEngineering Plansdated12/19/2019
Stormwater Management Plandated12/18/2019
Wetland Delineation Report dated 5/23/2022

This review included thedocuments listed aboveprimarily dealing withgrading, modelling and
stormwater management.   

1.Theproposed stormwater management proposed generally meets theCitys Surface Water
Management Planrequirements.  Additional review andcomments willbeprovided during
building permit application. 

a.Note theapplicant willberequired tocomplete astormwater maintenance agreement
forthelong-termcare oftheraingarden facilities. 

b.Theraingarden facilities willneedtobeoutside ofthedrainage andutility
easements. 

2.Anaccess easement should beincluded withthe platforthesouthwestern tipoftheproperty
between thecul-de-sacandthewetland sotheCitycanreach thewetland inthefuture. 

3(7$ 4® /³§¤±²0« 2¤ µ¨¤¶(¨¦§¯®¨³¤ %²³0®¨³¤ %²³3´¡£ 0 %¦ -¤¬®



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page7of10

NDB. PUBLIC HEARING – PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR HIGH POINTE ESTATES 2
ADDITION

Applicant: Roy Lecy
ndLocation: High Pointe Estates 2 Addition -  Southeasterly extent of

Charleston Circle

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisapplication isarequest fromtheproperty owner for
aPreliminary Plattoalter thelegaldescription sothatitcanbeconsidered abuildable lot.  She
notedthattheproperty islocated ontheeastsideofthecul-de-sacatCharleston Circle andwas
created asaremnant propertyoroutlotwiththeHighPointeEstates subdivision thatcouldbe
combined withadjacent properties inthefuture foralargersubdivision.  Shestated thatafter
twentyyears, theproperty ownerhasrequested thisaction tomoveforward withthesaleofthe
property asabuildable lotwhichrequires changing thelegaldescription oftheproperty.  She
stated thattheproperty morethanmeets therequirements forlotareaandwidthasoutlined in
thestaff reportandexplained the requests foreasements around theperimeter oftheproperty
alongwithwetland, conservation, andaccess easements.  Shegaveabriefoverview ofthe
stormwater management planandtreepreservation inventory thattheapplicant hassubmitted.   
Staffrecommends approval subject totheconditions listedinthestaffreportandengineers
memo.  Shenotedthattherewasasmall typographical error inthereportandclarified thatthere
arenovariances needed forthisapplication.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thattherewasmention ofchanges inthewetland delineation and
askedifthatwastheboundary ofthewetland.   

Planning Director Darling reviewed theproperty boundary andnotedthat thewetland hasbeen
delineated andexplained thatthereisasmallamountofwetland thathasgrown beyond the
property lineintothisproperty, sotheywillbelooking foreasements.  Sheexplained thatthe
wetland delineation hasbeensubmitted tothewatershed sothoseboundaries aresubject to
change untilafter theyhavegotten their fullapprovals through thewatershed district.    

Commissioner Holkerstated thatshewould liketounderstand whattheoriginal intentwasforthis
outlot. Shestated that inreading through theinformation, itsounds liketherewasnota
commitment toleaveitempty.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwascorrectandexplained thatthisparticular lotwascreated
inordertocombine itwithadjacent properties forfuture larger subdivisions, butthesubdivision
neveroccurred because theywereneverabletoacquire additional property, sotheywould like
tomove forwardontheirownandmakethisisabuildable lot.    

RuthLecy, 5630GlenAvenue, Minnetonka, stated thatMarkandRoyLecyhaveowned this
property for20yearsanddeveloped HighPointeEstates fromit.  Sheexplained thattheysimply
wanttochange OutlotDintoasingle family lotinorder tobuildonehomeonit.  Shestated that
shebelieved thattheyhadsubmitted allthenecessary paperwork totheCityandnotedthatshe
alsohassigned formsfromtheHOAatHighPointeEstatesapproving thisproposed change.   

Commissioner Riedelaskedifthisproperty wouldbesubject totheHOAofHighPointeEstates.  

Ms. Lecystated thatwascorrect.    

ChairMaddyaskediftheproperty owners hadanyissueswiththeconditions ofapproval that
havebeenrecommended bystaff.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page8of10

Ms. Lecystated that theydonotandexplained thattheyhavedoneagreatdealofdevelopment
intheareaandarewellawareoftheparameters thathavetobemet.     

LindaEsenther, 5960Glencoe Road, stated thattheylive rightnext tothisproperty andhave
livedtherefor37years.  Sheexplained thattheydonotobject tothisproposal because theyhave
enough landandnotedthatshehadinitiallybeenconfused because shethought theywere
requesting variances.  Sheaskedhowshecouldgetaccess tothewetland delineation report.  
Shestated thatshewouldalsoencourage theconstruction company tohaveameeting withthe
neighbors intheareasothattheneighborhood understands thattheyarekeeping thewetland
andwildlife andwillnotbeencroached upon.  Shestated thatshewould liketheneighborhood to
havemoreaccess toinformation sotheycanbesurewherealltheboundaries arelocated.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatshehadnotincluded themostrecentwetland delineation in
thestaffreport, butitisavailable tothepublicandinvitedMs. Esenther tostopbyCityHalland
shewillmakeheracopyoftheinformation.    

Ms. Esenther askedifresidents hadaccess tothelargerfilebecause theinformation inthepacket
wasjustasummary oftheinformation.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheapplication isallpublic information andsheiswelcome
tostopbytomorrow andlookthrough theinformation.    

Bentley Graves, 5980Charleston Circle, stated thathewasnotopposed tothisrequest and
supports buildingahomehere, butwouldechothepoints madebyMs. Esenther.  Heexplained
thattherehasbeenalotofquestions upanddownhisstreetsoifMr. Lecywouldbewilling to
comeoutandspeakwiththeneighbors, itwouldallowthemtogettheirquestions answered.    

NeilRanden, 5960Charleston Circle, stated thatwhenhefirstreceived theinformation he
assumed theaccess pointwouldbeHighPointe Roadandisabitconfused about theaccess.   
Hestated thatitiscurrently verypeaceful hereandwillincorporate another driveway.  Hestated
thattheyhaveonlylivedherefor1.5yearsandkeeping theareathewayitisrightnowis
important.  Hestatedthathedoesnotwanttoseeabunchofthetreeswipedoutandnoted stated
thattheareaisovergrown anditwilltakealotofworktogetincleared outandquestioned, in
relation totheenvironment, where thatwouldallgo.    

Commissioner Riedelaskedifthedriveway wouldcomefromCharleston Circle.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwascorrectandwouldalsobethehome’sstreetaddress.   
Sheexplained thatthislothasnoaccess toHighPointeRoad.  

ChairMaddy clarified thatwhile thisispartoftheHighPointeAssociation, theaccess forthe
property wouldbeoffofCharleston Circlewithonedriveway.    

Ms. Esenther shared somehistoryontheproperty andexplained that thereason whytheywere
notabletodevelop itfurther isbecause theyneverwanted toselltheirproperty.    

BonitaWylie, 5970 Charleston Circle, askedwiththeconstruction, where theywouldbedragging
thetreesandeverything out.  ShestatedthatCharleston Circlehasahugecrack initrightnow
anddoesn’tthinkthepatchwillbeabletohandle bigtruckscoming inandhauling allthismaterial
away.  SheaskediftheCitywould immediately comeinandfixtheroadway oriftheresidents
wouldhavetodrive through potholes andcracked pavement.  Shenotedthatthere isamanhole



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
Page9of10

right inthemiddleoftheroadsothiscouldeffect thesewer too.  Shestated thatshewasnot
saying thatthisproperty should notbebuilton, buttherearesomehidden areasthatshewould
liketoknowwhattheCitywilldotoprevent therestofthepeopleonthecul-de-sacfromhaving
togothrough majorconditions because ofthisproject.  Shestated thatshehaslivedherefor36
yearsandwouldhatetoseethesewergoout.  Shestated thatshealsodoesnotwanttoseeall
thebigtreesgoneanddescribed thedeerandotherwildlife that livethere.  Sheexpressed
concern forthechildren thatplayinthecul-de-sacwhenallthelargeconstruction equipment
comes tothearea.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thatMs. Wylie’sconcerns arevalid andexplained thatthose
concerning impacts from construction willbeaddressed intheconstruction permitting andthe
burden willbeonthedeveloper tomitigate theimpacts.  Henotedthathelivesonaone-lane
roadandwhensomeone doesconstruction, theimpactontheneighborhood issignificant, sohe
understood herconcern.    

ChairMaddy askedPlanning Director Darling toensure thatPublicWorks isawareoftheissues
ontheroadway thatwereraisedbyMs. Wiley.    

ChairMaddy closed thePublic Testimony portion ofthePublic Hearing at8:17P.M.  

Commissioner stated thathedidnotseeanyreason tovotefordenialofthisrequest.    

Commissioner Huskins notedthattheCommission isalsonotheretocomment onthestructure
thatwillbebuiltontheproperty.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatthewetland reporthasbeensubmitted toherforCityreview,  
butitisreviewed initsentiretybytheMinnehaha CreekWatershed District whowillbetheones
holdingatechnical evaluating panelonthesite.  Sheexplained thatthemajority ofthewetland
wasdedicated totheCity during theoriginal subdivision.  Sheconfirmed thatthehome would
takeitsaccess offCharleston Circleandthattherewouldbetreeremoval.  Shestated thatshe
assumes thatthetreeremoval will look ‘heavy’ because theywillhavetotakeoutallthetrees
around thewhere theyareshowing thebuilding pad.  Shestated thattheapplicant will identify
exactly which treeswillbeimpacted duringconstruction, whichwillberemoved, andwhere they
willbereplanting.  Shestated thatshewillfollowupwithPublicWorks related tothecrack inthe
streetandconfirmed thatalltheconstruction accesswillbeonCharleston Circle because itisthe
onlyaccess tothislot.  Sheencouraged residents tocallthepolice iftheconstruction isoccurring
outsideofthenormal construction hours.  Shestated thatMr. Lecyknows theCity’sstandard
construction hoursandwouldnotanticipate therebeinganyproblems inthisarea.  Shenoted
thatconstruction hoursare7a.m. to7p.m. onweekdays and8:00a.m. to6:00p.m. onSaturdays
withnoworkallowed onSundays.    

Huskins moved, Holker seconded, recommending approval ofthePreliminary Plat for
Outlot DHigh Pointe Estates (PID 3411723340032), subject totheconditions included in
thestaff report. Motion passed 5/0.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatthisitemwillgobefore theCityCouncil onOctober 10, 2022.   





Page2

BACKGROUND

Context:  Thisparcel wasplated asOutlot DinHighPointe Estates subdivision andPUDin2003.  The
outlot wascreated sothatthelandcould befurther subdivided inthefuturewithother neighboring
properties.    

Thesubject property isnotwithin theShoreland orFloodplain Overlay District.  Themajority ofthe
wetland tothesouth isonaseparate parcel owned theCityofShorewood, butwetland buffers willbe
required forthenewlot.  

Theadjacent properties, except theoutlot forthewetland, arealldeveloped withsingle-family homes

Applicable Code Sections:  

Section 1201.02  (Definitions)  OUTLOT. Alotremnant orparcel ofland leftoverafterplatting, which is
intended asopen spaceorother use, orwhich isreserved forfuture development andforwhich nobuilding
permit shallbeissued.  

Section 1202.05Subd. 2. e. Lotremnants/outlots. Remnants oflandbelow minimum lotsize, except in
instances ofcluster zoning, shallbeadded toadjacent lotsrather thanremaining asunusable parcels.  
Outlots maybeused, iftheycarrywithitaneasement infavorofthecity, foropen space toguarantee that
thesamewillnotbedeveloped forbuilding purposes. Outlots may alsobeusedtosetaside landtobe
platted atalater time. Inthese casesaresubdivision sketch fortheoutlot shallberequired. Building
permits shallnotbeissued foroutlots orremnants.  

ANALYSIS

Theapplicant isrequesting approval oftheplatnottosubdivide theproperty buttoprovide alot/block
legaldescription thatwould allow theparcel tobesold fordevelopment.  When theproperty wasoriginally
platted, theoutlot wassetaside tobecombined withotheradjacent properties foralarger subdivision that
what ispossible onitsown.  After20years, thedeveloper wants tosell theproperty.  HOA documents
werealready recorded against theparcel andthosewillcarryoverafter thenewlegal isrecorded.    

LotWidth/Area:  Section 1202.05Subd. 2. c. ofthesubdivision regulations requires thatalllotshave
adequate frontage onacity-approved street.  Additionally, section 1201.12ofthezoning regulations has
specific areaandwidth requirements fornewly created lots.  Thecurrent andproposed lotareas andwidths
areshown below.    

EXISTING REQUIRED INR-1C
LotArea LotWidth* LotArea LotWidth*  

Parcel 79,415sf. ± 155ft. 20,000sf 100feet
Asmeasured atthefrontsetback

Setbacks:  Theapplicant hasindicated thathehasadequate areaforahouse tobeconstruction onthehome
consistent withminimum structure andwetland buffer setbacks.    



















































CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

5ATitle/Subject:  ResolutionApprovingRevisionstoSLMPDJPA
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 11, 2022 MEETING
Prepared by:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator TYPE

RegularReviewed by:  JaredShepherd, CityAttorney
MeetingAttachments:  Resolution22-090

PolicyConsideration:  Pursuant toMinnesota StateStatutes …  

Background:  TheCityofShorewood ispartofaJointPowers Agreement (JPA) for
police services under theSouthLakeMinnetonka Public Safety Department (SLMPD).   
TheJPAestablishes thepolice department andtheJPAdocument hasbeen
undergoing somerecent review bytheCityAdministrators/Managers ofShorewood,  
Excelsior, Greenwood andTonka Bay, cities thatformtheSLMPD.  

AttheSeptember 26, 2022Regular CityCouncil Meeting, theCouncil removed theitem
fromtheConsent Agenda andmoved itGeneral/NewBusiness.  Councilmember Callies
brought upsomeconcerns whichwerenotedandarenowincorporated intothe
proposed draftwhichhasbeeneditedbyCityAttorney Shepherd.  

TheCityofShorewood isbeingasked toapprove arevised JointPowers Agreement
JPA) priortoJanuary1, 2023.  

FinancialConsiderations: None

ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve the
proposed draftoftheJPAasrecommended bystaff.  
Motion, Second andApprove.  

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



RESOLUTIONNO. 22-090
CITYOFSHOREWOOD

HENNEPINCOUNTY
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHESOUTHLAKEMINNETONKAPOLICE
DEPARTMENTJOINTPOWERSAGREEMENT

WHEREAS, theparties totheJointPowers Agreement (“JPA” or “Agreement”) arethe
municipalities ofShorewood, Excelsior, Greenwood, andTonka BayoftheStateof
Minnesota which havetheresponsibility forproviding forlawenforcement within their
respective citiessoastoenforce theordinances ofthesecitiesandthelawsofthe
StateofMinnesota;  

WHEREAS, theoriginal police department JPAfortheparties wasexecuted in1973;  

WHEREAS, theupdated Agreement ismadepursuant toMinnesota Statutes, Section
471.59;  

WHEREAS, thegeneral purposes oftheAgreement aretocontinue employment ofa
full-timeChiefofPolice toactonbehalfoftheparties totheAgreement andtoprovide
assistance totheChiefofPolice intheformofpoliceofficers, community service
officers, administrative staff, police facility, equipment, andsupplies asmaybe
necessary soastoprovide theparties withlawenforcement services inthedischarge of
theduties imposed uponsaidmunicipalities toprotect andserve thehealth andwelfare
oftheircitizens andproperty located within theircities; and

WHEREAS, itistheopinion oftheparties tothisAgreement thatcontinued jointaction
tooperateajointpolice department toserve thefourcommunities willcontinue toresult
inahigher standard ofpolice service, closer control ofthepolice forcebythe
municipalities itserves, andmoreefficiency andfinancial savings tothecommunities.  

NOW, THEREFORE, ITISRESOLVEDthattheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood,  
Minnesota approves theupdated SouthLakeMinnetonka Police Department Joint
Powers Agreement draftdated08-30-22withaneffective dateof01.01.23and
authorizes themayor tosigntheAgreement onbehalfofthecity.  

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis11thdayof
October, 2022.     

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



SouthLakeMinnetonka PoliceDepartment
JointPowers Agreement
TOPROVIDE FULL-TIMEPOLICEPROTECTION ANDSERVICE FORTHE
CITIESOFEXCELSIOR, GREENWOOD, SHOREWOOD, ANDTONKABAY

DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFECTIVE DATE

ThepartiestothisJointPowersAgreement (“JPA” or “Agreement”) arethemunicipalitiesofExcelsior, Greenwood,  
Shorewood, andTonkaBayoftheStateofMinnesotawhichhavetheresponsibilityforprovidingforlawenforcementwithin
theirrespectivecitiessoastoenforcetheordinancesofthesecitiesandthelawsoftheStateofMinnesota. Theoriginal
policedepartmentJPAforthepartieswasexecutedin1973.ThisupdatedAgreementismadepursuanttoMinnesota
Statutes, Section471.59.  

Section 1: General Purpose
ThegeneralpurposesofthisAgreementaretocontinueemploymentofafull-timeChiefofPolicetoactonbehalfofthe
partiestothisAgreementandtoprovideassistancetotheChiefofPoliceintheformofpoliceofficers, communityservice
officers, administrativestaff, policefacility, equipment, andsuppliesasmaybenecessarysoastoprovidethepartieswith
lawenforcementservicesinthedischargeofthedutiesimposeduponsaidmunicipalitiestoprotectandservethehealth
andwelfareoftheircitizensandpropertylocatedwithintheircities. ItistheopinionofthepartiestothisAgreementthat
continuedjointactiontooperateajointpolicedepartmenttoservethefourcommunitieswillcontinuetoresultinahigher
standardofpoliceservice, closercontrolofthepoliceforcebythemunicipalitiesitserves, andmoreefficiencyandfinancial
savingstothecommunities.   

Section 2: Definition ofTerms
ForthepurposeofthisAgreement, thetermsinthissectionshallhavethefollowingmeanings:   

A. “Committee” meanstheorganizationcreatedunderthisAgreement, thefullnameofwhichisthe “Coordinating
CommitteefortheSouthLakeMinnetonkaPoliceDepartment.”  

B.  “Committeemember” meansamemberoftheCommittee.   
C. “Council” meansthegoverningbodyofthegovernmentalunitwhichisapartytothisAgreement.  
D. “Governmentalunit” meansacityormunicipality.  
E. “OperatingCommittee” meansthechiefadministrativeofficerofeachoftheparties.  
F. “Originalparty” meansagovernmentalunitwhichelectstobecomeoneoftheoriginalpartiestothisAgreement.  
G. “Laterparty” meansagovernmentalunitwhichentersintothisAgreementatsometimeaftertheCoordinating

Committeeisoriginallyconstituted.  
H. “Party” meansgovernmentalunitwhichentersintothisAgreement.  
I. “SLMPD” meansthe “SouthLakeMinnetonkaPoliceDepartment,” whichshallbethenameofthepoliceforcecreated

hereunder.  
J. “Unanimousagreementoftheparties” meansthatthemeasureisapprovedbyamajorityvoteofcouncilmembers

presentatthecouncilmeetingsofeachoftheparties. Ifoneormoreofthecouncilsdoesnotapprovethemeasureon
amajorityvote, thereisnounanimousagreement.  

K. “ICR” meansIncidentCallReportsascompiledforeachofthepartiesbytheSLMPD. TheICRnumbersusedforthe
fundingformuladonotincludecitations.  

L. “SupplementalServices” meansanyadditionalpoliceservicesrequestedandpaidbyanyofthepartiesseparatefrom
theoperatingbudget.  

Section 3: Governing Body
Subdivision1. TheCommittee, consistingofoneCommitteememberfromeachparty, shallbethegoverningbody. Each
CommitteemembershallhaveanequalvoiceintheaffairsoftheCommittee.   

Subdivision2. ThepersonholdingtheofficeofmayorofapartytothisAgreementshallbeaCommitteememberandserve
ontheCommitteeasrepresentativeofsaidparty. AnalternateCommitteemembermaybeappointedbythecouncilof
eachpartyfromthemembersofsaidcounciltoserveforatermofonecalendaryearandrepresentsaidpartyonthe

South Lake Minnetonka Joint Powers Agreement  |  DRAFT 08.30.22 FOR 01.01.23 EFF DATE  |  Page 1of7



Committee intheabsenceofthemayor. TheCommitteememberandalternateshallservewithoutcompensation fromthe
Committee.   

Subdivision3. AmajorityoftheCommitteemembersshallconstituteaquorumatmeetingsoftheCommittee.  

Subdivision4. AvacancyontheCommitteeshallbefilledbythecouncilofthepartieswhosepositionontheCommittee is
vacant. NoCommitteemembershallbeeligibletovoteonbehalfofhis / herpartyduringthetimethatsuchpartyisin
defaultonanyfinancialpayment requiredtobepaidunderthetermsoftheAgreementnorshallthevoteofsuchpartybe
countedforthepurposesofdeterminingaquorum.   

Section4: Officers & Meetings
Subdivision1. Thechairandvicechairshallbedeterminedonarotatingbasisatthefirstmeetingofeachyear. Thechair
shallfacilitatemeetingsandexecuteallfinancialandlegalinstrumentsoftheCommittee. Thevicechairshallassumeall
dutiesofthechairintheeventthechairisunabletofulfillthedutiesoftheposition.  

Subdivision2. RegularmeetingsoftheCommitteeshallbeheldonceeachquarterasfollows: ThesecondWednesdayof
January, thesecondWednesdayofApril, thesecondWednesdayofJuly, andthesecondWednesdayofOctober. Any
regularmeetingdatemayberescheduledbyunanimous agreementofCommitteemembers. Thepurposeoftheregular
meetingsshallbetosetbudgets, reviewexpenditures, anddiscuss / takeactiononotheroperatingmatters. Special
meetingsshallbeatthecallofanyCommitteemember. Noticeofsuchameetingshallbepostedandprovidedbythe
SLMPDinaccordancewithstatestatutes.   

Subdivision3. BusinessoftheCommitteeshallbeconductedaccordingtoRobertsRulesofOrder.  

Section5: Powers & DutiesoftheCommittee
Subdivision1. ThepowersanddutiesoftheCommitteeshallincludethepowerssetforthinthissection.  

Subdivision2. Itshallestablishqualifications anddutiesforthepositionofChiefofPoliceoftheSLMPD.  

Subdivision3. ItshallhiresaidpersontoactasChiefofPolicefortheSLMPDatsuchsalaryandinaccordancewithsuch
termsandconditionsofemploymentasitshalldetermine. Italsohastheauthoritytodisciplineandterminate theChiefof
Police.  

Subdivision4. Itshallapprovenewpositions (e.g. DeputyChief, DrugTaskForceOfficer, etc).  

Subdivision5. ItshallapproveunioncontractsbyunanimousvoteoftheCommittee.  

Subdivision6. Itshallprovideofficespace, equipment, andsuppliesasnecessarytoaccomplish thedutiesand
responsibilities oflawenforcement withintheboundariesoftheparties.  

Subdivision7. Itshallselectaqualifiedaccounting / auditingfirmtopreparefinancialstatementsandconductanannual
financialaudit. Allofitsbooks, reports, andrecordsshallbeavailableforandopentoexaminationbythepartiesat
reasonable times.   

Subdivision8. Itmayaccumulate reasonablereservefundsforthepurposesashereinprovidedanditmayinvestfundsof
theCommitteenotcurrentlyneededforitsoperationsinamannerandsubjecttothelawsofMinnesotaapplicabletocities.   

Subdivision9. ItmaycollectmoniesfrompartiessubjecttothisAgreement. ItmayrecommendchangesinthisAgreement
tothepartieswhichshallbeeffective, however, onlyuponunanimousagreementofthegoverningbodiesofallparties.  

Subdivision10. Itshallexercisegeneralsupervisionoverthelawenforcementandstandardsoflawenforcement forthe
parties.   

Section6: OperatingCommittee
ThepowersanddutiesoftheOperatingCommitteeshallincludethefollowing:  

A. AdvisingtheCoordinating Committee.  
B. MeetingwiththeChiefofPoliceoncepermonth.   
C. Participating inlabornegotiationsonarotatingbasis.   
D. OtherdutiesandprojectsasassignedbytheCoordinating Committee.  

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page2of7



Section7: FinancialMatters
Subdivision1. Exceptasotherwiseprovidedherein, theCommitteefunds \[JS1\]maybeexpendedbytheCommittee in
accordancewithproceduresestablishedbylawfortheexpenditureoffundsbyMinnesotacities. Orders, checks, and
draftsshallbesignedbytwopersons. AuthorizedsignersshallbetheCommittee chair, Committeevicechair, Chiefof
Police, 2ndincommandofficer, andtheSLMPDadministrator.  

Subdivision2.   

A.  TheallocationforfundingtheSLMPDoperations, otherthanforanyparty’sseparatelycontractedservices, shallbeset
takingintoconsideration theMemberCities’ taxcapacity, ICRstatistics, andpopulationusingtheformulashownonthe
attachedExhibit1A.   

B.  Theoperations fundingpercentageswerelastrevisedinJuly2021for2022-26budgetsandshallcontinuetobe
reviewedandadjustedinfive-yearincrements (in2026for2027-31budgets, etc). Thecomparisonofthetaxcapacity,  
ICRs, andpopulationwillbemadeforeachsubsequent five-yearperiodwiththedataasshowninExhibit1A.   

C.  EachMemberCityshallfundtheSLMPDthefullamountoftheallocationpursuanttothetermsoftheJPA.  

D. TheApprovedAnnualOperatingBudget\[JS2\] foreachyearshallbedetermined inadvancebyunanimousagreementof
theparties. Ifthepartiesdonotunanimously agreeontheApprovedAnnualOperatingBudgetbySeptember1stof
eachyear, theamountofthepreviousyear’sApprovedAnnualOperatingBudgetwillbeincreasedbythelesserofthe
followingtoarriveattheApprovedAnnualOperatingBudget:  

a)  Theincreaseintheregion’sConsumerPriceIndexforAllUrbanCustomers (CPI-U) basedonthepreviousJune- 
to-JuneinformationavailableinJulyofeachyear; or

b) Thepercentage increaseinthemostrestrictivestatutorylevylimitapplicabletothebudgetyearplacedonanyof
thepartiesoverthelevylimitforthatpartyfortheprioryear.  

c) Intheeventthat (a) or (b) decreases, theoperatingbudgetshallremainthesame.  

Theabove (a), (b), and (c) paragraphsapplyonlytooperatingexpensesnotgovernedbywageorbenefit increases
requiredbyanyunioncontracts. Allpartiesmustpaywageorbenefitincreasesasrequiredbyunioncontracts; other
expensescanhaveceilingsappliedper (a), (b), and (c) aboveAdoptionofanApprovedAnnualOperatingBudget
pursuanttothissubdivisionshallentitleeachpartytofullandcompleteSLMPDservicesfundedbytheSLMPDannual
operatingbudgetandprecludedeliveryofmultipletiersorlevelsofservicestoparties.   

E . PartiesmaycontractwiththeSLMPDforsupplemental servicesdeliveredbyseparately dedicatedpersonneloutsideof
theapprovedbudgetbyunanimousagreementoftheparties. Theamountchargedforsupplemental servicesshallbe
cappedat115% oftheactualhourlycostofpay, insurance, uniforms, gear, andtrainingforanofficerwith1yearof
service. Agreement toprovidesuchsupplemental servicesshallnotbeunreasonably withheld.   

F. Byunanimousagreement, thepartiesmayestablishaCapitalImprovement Fund (CIF) forcapitalimprovements for
policefacilities. TheCIFfundingformulashallbecalculatedannuallyinMaybasedonthemostcurrentNetTax
CapacityplusIncrementforeachofthepartiespostedontheHennepinCountywebsite. CIFbudgetsmustbe
approvedbyaunanimousagreementoftheparties. TheCIFshallonlybeusedfornewbuildings / facilitiesorthe
expansionofexistingbuildings / facilitiesandnotforthereplacement ofcarpet, roofs, HVACsystems, etc. inthe
existingbuildingsorformaintenanceofexistingbuildings.  

Section8: Duration
ThisAgreement shalltakeeffectJanuary1, 2023andcontinueunlessamendedbyunanimousagreementoftheparties.  
Anypartymayrequestreviewofthisagreementatanytime.  

Section9: AddingParties
Subdivision1. Anyothergovernmental unitmaybecomealaterpartytothisAgreementuponunanimousagreementofthe
partiestothisAgreement.    

Subdivision2. Detailsregardingprocess, funding, additionalpersonnel, etc. willberecommended bytheCommitteeand
mustbeapprovedbyunanimousagreementofthepartiestothisagreement.  

Subdivision3. IntheeventthatapartyisaddedtothisAgreement, suchpartyshallhavenoownership interestinthe
building.   

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page3of7



Section10: Withdrawal
Subdivision1. AnypartymaywithdrawfromthisAgreement subjecttotheprovisionsbelow:  

A. WrittennoticeofwithdrawalmustbemadebyfilingnoticewiththeCommitteebyMay1forwithdrawal commencing
January1eightmonthsafterMay1.  

1) NoticeafterMay1willrequirethewithdrawingpartytowaitanadditionalyear.  
2) NoticebeforeMay1willnotadvancethecommencement ofthewithdrawal; withdrawalwillcommenceonJanuary
1eightmonthsafterMay1.  

B. Allcapitalequipment remainsthepropertyoftheSLMPD.  

C. Awithdrawingpartyshallnotparticipate inbBudgetapprovalmovestoamajorityoftheparties.forthecalendaryearin
whichitswithdrawalcommences.   

D. Awithdrawingpartyshallcontinuetohaveanownership interestinthebuilding. Theownership interestshallnot
includearightofuseoroccupationbutshallentitlethepartytoitsproratashareofanyrevenuegeneratedthroughthe
lease, sale, orotherconveyanceofthebuilding. Theproratashareshallbecommensurate withthepercentagebased
onthemostcurrentAdjustedNetTaxCapacityforeachofthepartiespostedontheHennepinCountywebsite.  

Subdivision2. Intheeventthecorporateexistenceofapartyisterminated, orapartyisconsolidatedwithanother
municipalitynotapartytothisAgreement, thentheobligationsofsuchpartyhereundershallceaseasoftheeffectivedate
ofsuchterminationorconsolidation. Ifsaideffectivedateshalloccuratatimeotherthantheendofabudgetyear, the
withdrawingparty’sfinancialobligation forthebudgetyearinprogressatthetimeofsaideffectivedateshallbepro-rated
forsuchbudgetyearasofsaideffectivedate. Thewithdrawalofapartyunderthissubdivisionshallnotautomatically
terminatethisAgreementortheobligationsoftheremainingparties. Followingsuchawithdrawal, thepercentageofthe
approvedbudgetpayableforeachremainingpartyshallbecalculatedbydividingaparty’spercentage, assetforthin
Section7, bythesumofthepercentagesofallremainingparties.  

Subdivision3. IntheeventthatapartyisaddedtothisAgreement, suchpartyshallhavenoownership interestinthe
building. \[JS3\]  

Section11: Dissolution
Cashassetsandproceedsfromnon-cashassetsheldbytheCommitteeatthetimeofdissolutiontothisAgreementshall
bedividedanddistributedtothepartiesinproportiontothecontributionsmadebythepartiestothetotalcostoflaw
enforcementduringtheperiodofthisAgreement. Ifthecitiescannotagreewithrespecttothevalueofnon-cashassets,  
twoappraiserswillbeselectedbytheCommitteetoappraisethenon-cashassets. Thetwoappraiserssoselectedwill
selectathirdappraiser. Thevaluesasdeterminedbyamajorityoftheappraisersshallbeattributedtothenon-cashassets
inquestion. Costofappraisersshallbepaidbythepartiesusingthefundingformulaatthetimeofthedissolution.  

Section12: Officers & Employees
Subdivision1. TheChiefofPoliceemployedbytheCommitteeshallserveasChiefoftheSLMPDandshallhavethe
followingdutiesandbeinvestedwiththefollowingauthority:  

A. Shallbeinfullandcompletechargeofallpersonnelmattersandemployeesofthedepartment includingswornand
non-sworn.  

B. Shallsetstandardsofperformanceofpoliceofficersandnon-swornemployees.  
C. Shallbeincompletechargeofallmattersrelatingtolawenforcementandtoitsadministration, includingassignmentof

dutyandresponsibilities toallemployees.  
D. Shallinterviewandconsiderapplicationsforemploymentofallemployeesandshallmakeallhiringandtermination

decisions.  
E. Shalldisciplineallemployees, sworn, andnon-sworn.  
F. Shallberesponsible foralllaborgrievancematters. SuchactionsshallbeinaccordancewiththelawsoftheStateof

Minnesotaandoutstandingcontractualagreementsgoverningthesame.  

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page4of7



Subdivision2. TheChiefofPoliceshallberesponsible fordevelopingnewjobdescriptions forvariouspositionswithinthe
departmentdeemednecessaryfortheefficientoperationofthedepartment.   

Subdivision3. ItshallbethedutyandresponsibilityoftheChiefofPolicetocommunicate directlywiththerespective
councilsofthemembercitiesintheeventtheChiefofPolicedeemsitnecessarytoreceivedirectiononanymatterarising
outoforinvolvingthejurisdictionofanyparticularcouncil.  

Subdivision4. AllpoliceofficersCommittee, includingtheChiefofPolice, shallenforceandbeprovidedauthorityto
enforcethelawsofthepartiestothisAgreement throughproperactionofthecouncilofsaidparties. TheCommittee shall
assumeallobligationswithregardtoWorker’sCompensation, PERA, withholdingtax, insurance, unionnegotiations, fringe
benefits, SocialSecurity, andthelikeforallemployees includingtheChiefofPolice, allpoliceofficers, communityservice
officers, andadministrative staff.   

Section13: Prosecution – ViolationofOrdinances & Laws
TherespectivepartiestothisAgreementshallberesponsible forandpaythecostofallprosecutions forviolations
occurringwithintheirrespectiveboundarieswhicharesubjecttoprosecutionbyaparty’smunicipalattorney, including
expensesincurredbyreasonofpoliceofficersmakingtheirservicesavailableforcourtappearances insuchprosecutions.  
Allreturnsoffinesfromdistrictcourtshallbethesolepropertyofthepartyinwhosejurisdiction theoffenseoccurred.  

Section14: DisputeResolution
WhenanypartyhasadisputeregardingtheAgreement, thatpartymayinitiateadisputeresolutionprocessbysubmittinga
writtenstatementoutliningthedisputetotheCommitteeatoneofitsregularlyscheduledmeetings. Themembersofthe
Committeewillthenbringthatdisputetotheirrespectivecouncilsattheirnormallyscheduledcouncilmeetings. The
Committeewillmeettodiscussthedisputeatitsnextregularlyscheduledmeetingafterthecouncilsofallpartieshave
reviewedthestatementofdisputeattheirregularlyscheduledcouncilmeetings; theCommitteehasa90-dayperiodto
resolvethedisputecommencingwiththismeeting.  

Ifthedisputeisnotresolvedwithinthe90-dayperiod, theaggrievedpartyhastherighttodemandthattheCommittee
forwardthedisputetoanappropriatemediationservice. Thecostsofthemediatorwillbepaidforbytheaggrievedparty
unlessdecidedotherwisebymajorityconsentoftheCommittee.   

Ifthemediationprocessdoesnotbringconsensusregardingresolutionofthedisputed issue, theaggrievedpartymay
submittheissuetobindingarbitration90daysfollowingthecommencement ofmediation. Thisdatemaybeextendedwith
unanimousconsentoftheCommittee. Theaggrievedparty’srighttosubmitthedisputetoarbitrationexpires150daysafter
thecommencement ofmediation. ThisexpirationdeadlinecanbeextendedwithunanimousconsentoftheCommittee.  
Thepartiesshallsharethecostofthearbitrationprocessinthesameproportionastheyaresharingtheoperatingbudget
atthetimethedisputeresolutionprocessisinitiated. Eachpartyshallbearthecostsofitsownrepresentation inthe
mediationandarbitrationprocesses. Thearbitratororarbitrationpanelshallbeselectedbymutualagreementofthe
partiesandshallhavetheauthoritytoorderthatanypartybringingafrivolousorunfounded disputeberequiredtopaythe
costsofthearbitrationprocess. TheprovisionsofMinn. Stat. § 549 .211shallbeusedtodeterminewhetheradisputeis
frivolousorunfounded. Intheeventthatthepartiescannotagreeonanarbitratororarbitrationpanelwithin30daysofthe
dateonwhichtheaggrievedpartyinitiatesarbitration, theaggrievedpartyshallselectonearbitrator, theotherpartiesshall
selectanother, andthetwoselectedarbitratorsshallselectathird.  

RepealofMemorandumofUnderstanding
TheMemorandumofUnderstanding datedFebruary13, 2002isherebyrepealed.  

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page5of7



TheCitiesofExcelsior, Greenwood, Shorewood, andTonkaBayhavecausedthisAgreement tobeexecutedintheir
behalfbytheirproperofficersdulyauthorizedbyresolutionoftheirrespectivecitycouncils.  

BYTHECITYOFEXCELSIOR

ToddR. Carlson, Mayor Date

BYTHECITYOFGREENWOOD

DebraJ. Kind, Mayor Date

BYTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD

JenniferLabadie, Mayor Date

BYTHECITYOFTONKABAY

AdamJennings, Mayor Date

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page6of7



ExhibitA
Referenced inSection7

ARBITRATION REALLOCATION FORMULA FOR SLMPD OPERATING FUND | 2017- 2021REALLOCATION FORMULA FOR SLMPD OPERATING FUND | 2022- 2026

Revised 02- 05- 16
Revised 07. 07. 21 – CORRECTION MADE TO FOOTER YEARS ON 05. 19. 22

POPULATIONBASELINEPOPULATION 2010- 2014
POPULATION BASELINEPOPULATION 2015- 2019

o of f  % % o fof

20052006200720082009AverageAvg. Total20102011201220132014AverageAvg. Total20102011201220132014AverageAvg. Total20152016201720182019AverageAvg. Total

Excelsior 2, 380 2, 395 2, 437 2, 382 2, 360 2, 39119. 4371%             2, 188 2, 203 2, 235 2, 284 2, 273 2, 23718. 9299% Excelsior 2, 188 2, 203 2, 235 2, 284 2, 273 2 , 23718. 9299%   2 , 262 2, 225 2, 352 2 , 321 2, 566 2 , 34519. 1470% 

Greenwood 759 814 818 804 806 800 6. 5056%                 688 688 698 693 689 691 5. 8501% Greenwood 688 688 698 693 689 6915.8501%  7 02 703 724 7 06 708 7095.7852% 

Shorewood 7, 551 7, 499 7, 611 7, 582 7, 618 7, 57261. 5616%             7, 307 7, 312 7, 438 7, 524 7, 425 7, 40162. 6413% Shorewood 7, 307 7, 312 7, 438 7, 524 7, 425 7 , 40162. 6413%   7 , 458 7, 496 7, 708 7 , 693 7, 934 7 , 65862. 5208% 

Tonka Bay 1, 545 1, 525 1, 534 1, 532 1, 549 1, 53712. 4957%             1, 475 1, 477 1, 499 1, 492 1, 488 1, 48612. 5787% Tonka Bay 1, 475 1, 477 1, 499 1, 492 1, 488 1 , 48612. 5787%   1 , 509 1, 558 1, 526 1 , 550 1, 541 1 , 53712. 5469% 

12, 235 12, 233 12, 400 12, 300 12, 333 12, 300100. 0000%          11, 658 11, 680 11, 870 11, 993 11, 875 11, 815100. 0000% 1 1, 658 1 1, 680 1 1, 870 1 1, 993 1 1, 875 1 1, 815100. 0000%   1 1, 931 1 1, 982 1 2, 310 1 2, 270 1 2, 749 1 2, 24899. 9999% 

TAX CAPACITYBASELINETAX CAPACITY 2011- 2015TAX CAPACITYBASELINETAX CAPACITY 2016- 2020

of   % ofof% of

20112012201320142015AverageAvg. Total20162017201820192020AverageAvg. Total20062007200820092010AverageAvg. Total20112012201320142015AverageAvg. Total

Excelsior 3 , 779, 156 3 , 716, 579 3 , 579, 833 3 , 649, 970 4 , 226, 789 3 , 790, 46513. 3031%  4 , 638, 729 4 , 973, 275 5 , 436, 784 5 , 774, 617 6 , 235, 205 5 , 436, 96715. 9172% Excelsior 3, 334, 776 3, 917, 784 4, 245, 911 4, 397, 510 4, 235, 792 4, 026, 35513. 3040%    3, 779, 156 3, 716, 579 3, 579, 833 3, 649, 970 4, 226, 786 3, 790, 46513. 3031%

Greenwood 3 , 379, 736 3 , 171, 651 3 , 085, 462 2 , 895, 345 3 , 241, 439 3 , 154, 72711. 0719%  3 , 387, 471 3 , 749, 653 3 , 960, 542 4 , 090, 777 4 , 444, 257 3 , 915, 86411. 4640% Greenwood 2, 447, 073 2, 894, 806 3, 377, 856 3, 688, 315 3, 713, 570 3, 224, 32410. 6539%    3, 379, 736 3, 171, 651 3, 085, 462 2, 895, 345 3, 241, 439 3, 154, 72711. 0719%

Shorewood 1 6, 775, 778 1 5, 908, 723 1 5, 114, 127 1 4, 865, 833 1 6, 027, 049 1 5, 738, 30255. 2353% 1 6, 798, 414 1 7, 582, 141 1 8, 738, 484 1 9, 376, 580 2 0, 198, 532 1 8, 498, 47354. 1558% Shorewood 14, 477, 835 16, 319, 066 17, 798, 714 18, 513, 585 18, 269, 931 17, 075, 82656. 4224%  16, 775, 778 15, 908, 723 15, 114, 127 14, 865, 833 16, 027, 049 15, 738, 30255. 2353% 

SouthLakeMinnetonkaJointPowersAgreement  |  DRAFT08.30.22FOR01.01.23EFFDATE  |  Page7of7Tonka Bay 6 , 353, 445 5 , 988, 563 5 , 554, 383 5 , 356, 098 5 , 796, 033 5 , 809, 70420. 3898%  5 , 882, 972 6 , 190, 423 6 , 590, 064 6 , 681, 790 6 , 730, 124 6 , 306, 54818. 4630% Tonka Bay 4, 609, 014 5, 358, 772 6, 148, 162 6, 748, 501 6, 824, 277 5, 937, 74519. 6197%    6, 353, 445 5, 988, 563 5, 554, 383 5, 356, 098 5, 796, 033 5, 809, 70420. 3898%

3 0, 288, 115 2 8, 785, 516 2 7, 333, 805 2 6, 767, 246 2 9, 291, 310 2 8, 493, 198100. 0001% 2 9, 855, 742 3 1, 344, 715 3 3, 186, 305 3 5, 474, 934 3 6, 891, 981 3 4, 157, 852100. 0000% 24, 868, 698 28, 490, 428 31, 570, 643 33, 347, 911 33, 043, 570 30, 264, 250100. 0000%  30, 288, 115 28, 785, 516 27, 333, 805 26, 767, 246 29, 291, 307 28, 493, 198100. 0001% 

ICR BASELINEICRs 2011- 2015ICRBASELINEICRs 2016- 2020

of   % of
of% of

20112012201320142015AverageAvg. Total20162017201820192020AverageAvg. Total20062007200820092010AverageAvg. Total20112012201320142015AverageAvg. Total

Excelsior19512116219226932354 2 , 26135. 6634% 23982129181918721700 1 , 98435. 7071% Excelsior21592044231620862150 2, 15135. 3597% 19512116219226932354 2, 26135. 6634% 

Greenwood286270332360401 3305.2016% 376352319383387 3636.5416% Greenwood341352382352385 362 5. 9574% 286270332360401 330 5. 2016% 

Shorewood26802610328433733175 3 , 02447. 7005% 27962697271426212516 2 , 66948. 0415% Shorewood31422823319029282831 2, 98349. 0334% 26802610328433733175 3, 02447. 7005% 

Tonka Bay659606677822861 72511.4346% 577577525551467 5399.7098% Tonka Bay596537695598509 587 9. 6495% 659606677822861 725 11. 4346% 

5 , 576 5 , 602 6 , 485 7 , 248 6 , 791 6 , 340100. 0001%   6 , 147 5 , 755 5 , 377 5 , 427 5 , 070 5 , 555100. 0000% 6, 238 5, 756 6, 583 5, 964 5, 875 6, 083100. 0000%             5, 576 5, 602 6, 485 7, 248 6, 791 6, 340100. 0001% 

ColumnAColumn BColumn CColumn DColumnAColumn BColumn CColumn D

Totals for Totals forTotalsforTotals for1/ 3 Pop1/ 3 Tax Cap1/ 3ICRs1/3 Pop1/ 3 Tax Cap1/ 3 ICRsDifferenceArbitrationC+ D = New1/ 3 Pop1/ 3 Tax Cap1/ 3ICRs1/3 Pop1/ 3 Tax Cap1/ 3 ICRsDifferenceArbitrationC+ D = New

2005-2010- 2200901422006-011- 2201001522006-011- 220100155 5-- Y Ye earar A A v vgg 202010-15- 20201420202011-16- 20201521202011-16- 20201521 5- 5Y- earYea Ar vgAv gC olCoum l. n A A&  & B B Al A loll cac ta iotinon Al A l loloc ca ati to i n n

Excelsior6. 4790% 4. 4347% 11. 7866% 22. 7003% 6. 3100% 4. 4344% 11. 8878% 22. 6322%- 0. 0681% 27. 0000% 26. 9319% Excelsior6. 3100% 4. 4344% 11. 8878% 22. 6322% 6. 3823% 5. 3057% 11. 9024% 23. 5904% 0. 9582% 27. 0000% 27. 9582% 

Greenwood2. 1685% 3. 5513% 1. 9858% 7. 7056% 1. 9500% 3. 6906% 1. 7339% 7. 3745%- 0. 3311% 8. 0000% 7. 6689% Greenwood1. 9500% 3. 6906% 1. 7339% 7. 3745% 1. 9284% 3. 8213% 2. 1805% 7. 9302% 0. 5557% 8. 0000% 8. 5557% 

Shorewood20. 5205% 18. 8075% 16. 3445% 55. 6725% 20. 8804% 18. 4118% 15. 9002% 55. 1924%- 0. 4801% 50. 0000% 49. 5199% Shorewood20. 8804% 18. 4118% 15. 9002% 55. 1924% 20. 8403% 18. 0519% 16. 0138% 54. 9060%- 0. 2864% 50. 0000% 49. 7136% 

Tonka Bay4. 1652% 6. 5399% 3. 2165% 13. 9216% 4. 1929% 6. 7966% 3. 8115% 14. 8010% 0. 8794% 15. 0000% 15. 8794% Tonka Bay4.1929% 6. 7966% 3. 8115% 14. 8010% 4. 1823% 6. 1543% 3. 2366% 13. 5732%- 1. 2278% 15. 0000% 13. 7722% 

TTO O TATA LL333.3. 33332%333% 3 33.3. 3 3334%333% 3 33.3. 3 3334%334% 1 100.00. 0 0000%001% 33 33.. 33 3333%33% 33 33.. 33 3334%32% 33 33.. 33 3334%33% 100. 990001%. 9998% 100.1000000%. 0000% 100. 99 0001%. 9997% 

In 2021 the formula will be adjusted for 2022- 2026 using Column B percentages as the new baseline numbers for Column A. In 202 6 the formula will be adjusted for 202 7- 203 1 using Column B percentages as the new baseline numbers for Column A, 

The numbers for the new averages will be from 2015 to 2019 for population and from 2016 to 2020 for tax capacity and ICRs. and the numbers for the new averages will be from 2020- 2024 for population, and from 2021- 2025 for tax capacity and ICRs. 

Going forward the same reallocation formula is used every 5 years. Going forward the same reallocation formula is used every 5 years. 

Tax Capacity Source: Hennepin County ' Adjusted Net Tax Capacity' 
Tax Capacity Source: Hennepin County ' Adjusted Net Tax Capacity' 

ICR Source: SLMPD - does notincluded citations
ICR Source: SLMPD - does not include citations

Population Source: Met Council
Population Source: Met Council



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  PublicWork’sDirectorJobDescriptionDiscussion 5BMeeting Date: Tuesday, October 11, 2022
RegularPrepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
MeetingReviewed by:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator

LarryBrown, Director ofPublic Works

Background: TheCityCouncil accepted theresignation ofDirector ofPublic Work’s
LarryBrown atitsregular meeting onSeptember 12, 2022.  LarryBrown hasbeen
employed bytheCityofShorewood for27years.  HislastdaywillbeDecember 28,  
2022. Inaccepting hisresignation andconsidering hisreplacement, Council directed
staff toresearch comparable jobdescriptions fromothercitiesandconsider changes to
thetothejobdescription beforeauthorizing theadvertisement andrecruitment forthe
position.    

Staffhasperformed theresearch necessary toeffectively conclude that thefollowing
attached Public Works Director position description orJD (JobDescription) isbeing
recommended withanyrevisions oradditions asthecouncil mayrecommend asa
superior Position Description incomparison totheprevious version created in2013
alsoincluded foryourreference). Theupdated version includes reference totheCity’s

Mission Statement, Management Philosophy, CoreCityValues/Attributes.  Inaddition,  
theupdated JDincludes ournewperformance standards forahighperforming culture
integrated intoourperformance evaluation program in2021.    

Staff researched approximately 20jobdescriptions andsalary ranges.  TheFollowing
Salary Ranges willshowacomparison toothercitieswhohaveasimilarposition:  

Shorewood Director ofPW                                                  $117-$141K

CITY TITLE PAYRANGE

Bloomington Director ofPW                                                   $149-$199K
Lakeville PWDirector                                                        $147-$183K
NewHope Director ofPW & Engineering                      $ 122-$148K
Minnetrista PWDirector                                                         $103-$119K
Becker Public Services Director                                  $ 105-$137K
Maplewood PWDirector/CityEngineer                          $ 125-$155K
Chaska PWDirector                                                         $104-$156K
WhiteBearLake PWDirector/CityEngineer                            $ 137-$185K
Richfield PWDirector                                                        $126-$162K
Andover PWDirector/CityEngineer                            $ 117-$143K

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Inreviewing theSalary ranges ofsimilar positions, staff feltcomfortable keeping the
position intheGrade18ontheCompensation Schedule for2023attached.  Staffwillbe
bringing backaproposal foracompensation study forallpositions inearly2023to
understand better ifourpositions arestaying inlinewithmarket salaries andthatwe
remain competitive inthejobmarket andforretention ofourverywellqualified and
talented staff.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Noneatthistime

ActionRequested: Staff isrespectfully requesting citycouncil approve theAdvertising
ofthePublic Works Director position asdelineated intheUpdated JobDescription and
theSalary Gradeof18ontheShorewood 2023 Compensation Schedule witharangeof
116,989to $140,386. Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       





POSITION DESCRIPTION

POSITION TITLE: Public Works Director
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works
ACCOUNTABLE TO: CityAdministrator
FLSA STATUS:  Exempt

PRIMARY OBJECTIVE

Toprovide leadership intheplanning, coordinating, directing, communicating, and
evaluating ofacomprehensive publicworks program thatwillinsure themosteffective
service tothepublicconsistent withCityCouncil policies, federal, state, andmetropolitan
regulations.     

CITYVALUES & EXPECTATIONS

Develops, supports andmodels apositive andproductive workplace culture based
onthecity’scorevaluesofrespect, integrity, communication, positive attitude,  
teamwork, andresponsiveness.  Allows employees tobesuccessful byproviding
opportunities forincreased responsibilities andcreating apositive workculture.    
Supports andadvances organizational development effortssuchasdeveloping a
highperforming organization, employee engagement, workforce development,  
inclusion, equity, andperformance measurement efforts.    
Works cooperatively withothers; responds tointernal andexternal customers alike
providing exceptional customer service.  Develops andmaintains respectful and
effective working relationships withcoworkers andcommunity members;  
consistently bringsahighlevelofself-awareness andempathy topersonal
interactions.    
Proactively resolves conflicts basedonthegreater goodoftheteam, thecity, and
thecommunity toensure arespectful andinclusive workplace.    
Embrace theCity’sMission, Managements Philosophy andCorevalues/Attributes
bycarrying outonesdutieswithahighdegree ofprofessionalism, honesty, and
truthfulness.    

October 2022 1



ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OFTHEPOSITION

Serves asDirector ofPublic Works
Responsible forplanning, organizing, directing andcoordinating theconstruction,  
operation andmaintenance ofStreets, Parks, Water, Sanitary Sewer, andStorm
Sewer facilities, including liftstations, ponds, wells, andwater towers.  
Mustbeabletoworkcooperatively withothers, evenduring emergencies and
challenging situations, maintain apositive workattitude, andnotnegatively impact
themorale ofothers.  
Mustmaintain anattitude ofrespect andprofessionalism atalltimes.  

Directs andOversees Streets andParks
Plans, directs, andoversees themaintenance ofmunicipal streets andparks
including scheduling ofpatching, snowandiceremoval, stormwaterpipes,  
ditches, andwetland systems, andsweeping ofCitystreets andparking lots.  
Ensures proper andtimely maintenance oftraffic signalsystems.  
Ensures proper maintenance andoperations ofallequipment andbuildings.  

Directs andOversees Utility Divisions
Coordinates andoversees theactivities oftheUtilitydivision, including the
operation andmaintenance oftheCity’sdrinking waterandsanitary sewer
systems, including water towerpainting, replacement ofpumps, liftstation
systems, inflow/infiltration control anddatabase management.  

Budget andPlanning Responsibilities
Coordinates preparation ofthe5-yearCapital Improvement Program related to
utilities andequipment purchases.  
Ensures approved equipment andutilityprojects intheCIPthatarecompleted on
timeandonbudget.  
Develops, administers, andmonitors theannual publicworksoperating budgets.  
Prepares andimplements longrangeplans fortheDepartment.  
Provides leadership inefforts tostreamline, improve, andseekcontinuous
improvements.  

Project andProgram Management
Coordinates Safety Programs including mandated OSHA training andcertification,  
equipment safety inspections, development anddocumentation of department
standard operating procedures, coordination ofmonthly department safety
program meetings, oversees department policies, procedures, andpractices to
ensure safetyandefficiency.  
Responsible formaintenance oftheCity’semergency preparedness
communications systems, including emergency generators, radios, alarms, and
outdoor warning sirens.  

October 2022 2



Coordinates planning andresponse foremergency management forthe
Department andworksclosely withtheEmergency Management Director to
prepare andrespond toemergencies andcriticalevents.  
Monitors department operations toensure compliance withapplicable laws,  
regulations, rules, policies, andordinances.  
Consults withstaffonoperations todetermine workprogress, changing priorities,  
problems, hazards, safety, andmaterials andequipment needs.  
Responsible formaintenance ofcomplete andaccurate department records.  
Receives, investigates, andresponds toresident concerns andcomplaints ina
timelymanner.  

ServeasCommittee Representative
Represents Cityinintergovernmental matters, including MnDOT, Hennepin
County, Metropolitan Council andotheragencies ofLocal, State, County or
Federal government.  
Attends CityCouncil meetings asnecessary andother meetings asrequested.  

Performs otherduties asapparent orassigned

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES
DIRECT SUPERVISION:  

CityEngineer
Public Works LeadSupervisor
LightEquipment Operators (Utility)  
LightEquipment Operators
LightEquipment Operator - ShopTechnician
Seasonal Public Works Employees

Supervises employees intheDepartment eitherdirectlyorthrough subordinate supervisors.   
Responsible fortheoverall direction, coordination, andevaluation ofthisunit.  Carries out
supervisory responsibilities inaccordance withtheCity'spolicies andapplicable laws.  
Responsibilities include interviewing; training; planning, assigning, anddirecting work;  
evaluating performance; rewarding; disciplining; suspending; transferring; adjusting
grievances; addressing complaints andresolving problems ofemployees.  Responsibilities
alsoinclude theability toeffectively recommend: hiring, promoting, demoting, and
discharging ofemployees.  

EDUCATION and/orEXPERIENCE

Bachelor'sofScience (B.S.) Degree inCivilEngineering, sevenyearsofprogressively
responsible related municipal experience and/ortraining; orequivalent combination of
education andexperience.  

October 2022 3



OTHER KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS ANDABILITIES

Ability tobeaninnovative andcreative thinker withproven leadership skills
Ability todevelop andmaintain effective working relationships withawidevariety
ofcityofficials, othergovernmental agency representatives, developers, the
general public, andothers
Ability toensure thatstaffoftheDepartment areusedtomaximum effectiveness
andaredeveloped totheir fullpotential
Ability toreadandinterpret documents suchassafety rules, operating and
maintenance manuals, technical andprocedure manuals.   
Ability toprepare reports andcorrespondence.    
Ability togivepresentations before CityCouncil, otheragencies, groups of
customers; andemployees.    
Ability tomaintain records, complete forms, andprepare reports.   
Ability tocreate andanalyze statistical data.    
Ability tocommunicate effectively withotherstaff, elected andappointed officials,  
consultants, regulatory agencies, contractors, media, andthegeneral public.     
Considerable ability todetermine shortandlong-termgoalsandestablish
procedures.  
Ability tomakearithmetic computations usingwhole numbers, fractions and
decimals.    
Ability tocompute rates, ratiosandpercentages.    
Ability tocalculate volumes, grades, elevations, etc. forprojects.    
Ability tousescales toscaleplans, maps, elevations, etc.  
General knowledge ofcomputer operations andsoftware programs, including
WordandExcel.  
Knowledge ofmunicipal public works maintenance operations including streets,  
sewerandparksmaintenance, shopandequipment repairs.  
Ability tointerpret plansandspecifications forconstruction projects.  
General knowledge ofequipment andproducts utilized inDepartment.  
Knowledge ofMNDOT, State, County andlocal lawsandordinances.  
Knowledge ofOSHA rulesandregulations.  
Knowledge ofthe “Employee Right toKnow – Material Safety DataSheets and
Information”.  
Knowledge ofGISmapping andengineering forconstruction projects.  
Ability tobeavailable evenings andweekends torespond toandassess off-hour
workrequirements ofdepartment, including weather related conditions.   

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS

ValidMinnesota ClassDDrivers License orbecome solicensed within6months of
employment.  

October 2022 4



Incompliance withtheAmerican withDisabilities Actthefollowing represents thePhysical
andEnvironmental Demands: Theposition requires anequalamount oftimespent
standing, walking, andsitting.  Lifting, pushing/pulling, orcarrying objects weighing upto
ten (10) pounds isregularly required, withamaximum ofonehundred (100) pounds
occasionally required.  Climbing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, twisting, and
bending aresometimes required.  Repetitive movements ofthehandsaresometimes
required. Audio, visual, andverbal functions areessential functions toperforming this
position. Whileperforming theduties ofthisjob, theemployee frequently works inoutdoor
weather conditions.  Theemployee occasionally worksnearmoving mechanical parts; in
high, precarious places; andisfrequently exposed tofumesorairborne particles, toxicor
caustic chemicals, andriskofelectrical shock. Theemployee isoccasionally exposed to
wetand/orhumid conditions, extreme heat; andvibration.  

October 2022 5



POSITIONTITLE:  DirectorofPublicWorks
DEPARTMENT:  PublicWorks
ACCOUNTABLETO: CityAdministrator
SUPERVISES:  CityEngineer, LightEquipmentOperator, Shop

Technician, UtilitiesLeadSupervisor, Utility
Operator, SeasonalPublicWorksEmployees

OBJECTIVE ANDSCOPE

Responsible forplanning, organizing, directing andcoordinating theconstruction, operation and
maintenance ofStreets, Parks, Water, Sanitary Sewer, andStorm Sewer facilities, including lift
stations, ponds, wells, andwater towers.  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OFTHEPOSITION

A. Serves asDirector ofPublic Works

1. Mustbeabletoworkcooperatively withothers, evenduring emergencies and
challenging situations, maintain apositive workattitude, andnotnegatively impact
themorale ofothers.  

2. Must maintain anattitude ofrespect andprofessionalism atalltimes.  

B. Oversees Streets andParks.  

1. Plans, directs, andoversees themaintenance ofmunicipal streets andparks
including scheduling ofpatching, snow andiceremoval, storm waterpipes,  
ditches, andwetland systems, andsweeping ofCitystreets andparking lots.  

2. Ensures proper andtimely maintenance oftraffic signal systems.  

3. Ensures proper maintenance andoperations ofallequipment andbuildings.  

C. Oversees Utility Divisions

January 2013 1



1. Coordinates andoversees theactivities oftheUtility division, including the
operation andmaintenance oftheCity’sdrinking water andsanitary sewer
systems, including water tower painting, replacement ofpumps, liftstation
systems, inflow/infiltration control anddatabase management.  

D. Budget andPlanning Responsibilities

1. Coordinates preparation ofthe5-yearCapital Improvement Program related to
utilities andequipment purchases.  

2.  Ensures approved equipment andutility projects intheCIPthatarecompleted on
timeandonbudget.  

3. Develops, administers, andmonitors theannual public works operating budgets.  

4. Prepares andimplements longrange plans fortheDepartment.  

5. Provides leadership inefforts tostreamline, improve, andseekcontinuous
improvements.  

E. Project andProgram Management

1. Coordinates Safety Programs including mandated OSHA training and
certification, equipment safety inspections, development anddocumentation of
department standard operating procedures, coordination ofmonthly department
safety program meetings, oversees department policies, procedures, andpractices
toensure safety andefficiency.  

2. Responsible formaintenance oftheCity’semergency preparedness
communications systems, including emergency generators, radios, alarms, and
outdoor warning sirens.  

3. Coordinates planning andresponse foremergency management forthe
Department andworks closely with theEmergency Management Director to
prepare andrespond toemergencies andcritical events.  

4. Monitors department operations toensure compliance withapplicable laws,  
regulations, rules, policies, andordinances.  

5. Consults withstaffonoperations todetermine work progress, changing priorities,  
problems, hazards, safety, andmaterials andequipment needs.  

6. Responsible formaintenance ofcomplete andaccurate department records.  

7. Receives, investigates, andresponds toresident concerns andcomplaints ina
timely manner.  

January 2013 2



F. Serve asCommittee Representative

1. Represents City inintergovernmental matters, including MnDOT, Hennepin
County, Metropolitan Council andother agencies ofLocal, State, County or
Federal government.  

2. Attends CityCouncil meetings andother meetings asrequested.  

G. Performs other duties asapparent orassigned

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervises employees intheDepartment either directly orthrough subordinate supervisors.   
Responsible fortheoverall direction, coordination, andevaluation ofthisunit.  Carries out
supervisory responsibilities inaccordance with theCity'spolicies andapplicable laws.  
Responsibilities include interviewing; training; planning, assigning, anddirecting work; evaluating
performance; rewarding; disciplining; suspending; transferring; adjusting grievances; addressing
complaints andresolving problems ofemployees.  Responsibilities also include theability to
effectively recommend: hiring, promoting, demoting, anddischarging ofemployees.  

EDUCATION and/orEXPERIENCE

Bachelor'sofScience (B.S.) Degree inCivil Engineering, seven yearsofprogressively
responsible related municipal experience and/ortraining; orequivalent combination ofeducation
andexperience.  

OTHER KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS ANDABILITIES

Ability toreadandinterpret documents suchassafety rules, operating andmaintenance
manuals, technical andprocedure manuals.   
Ability toprepare reports andcorrespondence.    
Ability togivepresentations before CityCouncil, other agencies, groups ofcustomers;  
andemployees.    
Ability tomaintain records, complete forms, andprepare reports.   
Ability tocreate andanalyze statistical data.    
Ability tocommunicate effectively withotherstaff, elected andappointed officials,  
consultants, regulatory agencies, contractors, media, andthegeneral public.     
Considerable ability todetermine short and long-termgoals andestablish procedures.  
Ability tomake arithmetic computations using whole numbers, fractions anddecimals.    
Ability tocompute rates, ratios andpercentages.    
Ability tocalculate volumes, grades, elevations, etc. forprojects.    
Ability tousescales toscale plans, maps, elevations, etc.  
General knowledge ofcomputer operations andsoftware programs, including Word and
Excel.  

January 2013 3



Knowledge ofmunicipal public works maintenance operations including streets, sewer
andparks maintenance, shop andequipment repairs.  
Ability tointerpret plans andspecifications forconstruction projects.  
General knowledge ofequipment andproducts utilized inDepartment.  
Knowledge ofMNDOT, State, County andlocal lawsandordinances.  
Knowledge ofOSHA rulesandregulations.  
Knowledge ofthe “Employee Right toKnow – Material Safety Data Sheets and
Information”.  
Knowledge ofGISmapping andengineering forconstruction projects.  
Ability tobeavailable evenings andweekends torespond toandassess off-hourwork
requirements ofdepartment, including weather related conditions.   

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS

Valid Minnesota ClassDDrivers License orbecome solicensed within6months ofemployment.  

Incompliance with theAmerican With Disabilities Actthefollowing represents the
Physical andEnvironmental Demands: Theposition requires anequal amount oftimespent
standing, walking, andsitting.  Lifting, pushing/pulling, orcarrying objects weighing uptoten
10) pounds isregularly required, withamaximum ofonehundred (100) pounds occasionally

required.  Climbing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, twisting, andbending are
sometimes required.  Repetitive movements ofthehands aresometimes required. Audio, visual,  
andverbal functions areessential functions toperforming thisposition. Whileperforming the
dutiesofthis job, theemployee frequently works inoutdoor weather conditions.  Theemployee
occasionally works nearmoving mechanical parts; inhigh, precarious places; andisfrequently
exposed tofumes orairborne particles, toxicorcaustic chemicals, andriskofelectrical shock.  
Theemployee isoccasionally exposed towetand/orhumid conditions, extreme heat; and
vibration.  

January 2013 4



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

5CTitle/Subject:           Approve SCEC Landscaping Expenditure
Meeting Date:  October 11, 2022 MEETING
Prepared by:  TwilaGrout, ParkandRecDirector TYPE

RegularReviewed by: EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator
MeetingAttachment:  Quote fromMangold Horticulture

Photos ofShrubs

Background:  Thispastspring theShorewood Community & EventCenter exterior was
painted, andwehavereceived greatcompliments onthepainting.  Toevenmakethe
center lookbetter thecreeping juniper shrubs infrontofthebuilding needreplacing and
thebrushalong thewalkway needs toberemoved andreplaced withfresh looking
shrubs.     

Staff reached outtotwolandscape companies andMangold Horticulture whoprovides
landscape services tothecommunity center fromspring through fall. Mangold
Horticulture istheonlycompany thatprovided aquote.    

ActionRequested: Staff recommends theCityCouncil approve thequotefrom
Mangold Horticulture toremove theoldshrubs andplantnewshrubs.    

Approval requires asimple majority.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    













MEMORANDUM Item6A1
RegularMeeting

Date: October4, 2022

From: DanDonayre, NaturalResourcesProjectManager

Subject: ShorewoodStreamRestoration
BMIProjectNo.: 0C1.127231

Wehavebeenexploringthe possibility ofrestoring astream reach thatlieswithin Freeman Park. This is
anintermittent stream haserosional, floodplain connectivitywith bedandbank issues.Afteraninternal
walkofthereach withour natural resource engineers andnaturalresourcespecialistwe determinedthat
thereach might beeligiblefor stream credits throughthe CleanWater Actmitigation program.Our
thoughtswere initiallyverified during afield review oftheSmithtown PondswithaCorps ofEngineers
Project Manager in2021. 

Thefirststepindeterminingif theArmy Corpsof Engineers (Corp) willconsider thereachacceptable for
themitigationprogram istosubmit aDraft Prospectus.During theprocessindevelopingthis document,  
wemade several fieldvisitsto survey thesiteanddetermine which restorationtechniquescould beused
andwherethey could beused.Asthisprocess progressed, Iwasintouch withtheCorpStream Team
giving themperiodic updates onourprogress. InAugustIhadan on-sitemeeting withtheCorps to
review another ofourrestoration sites. Theyexplainedthatthe Wilmington(NC) District andSavana
GA) Districtstreamexperts were makinga sitevisit toMinnesotaas atrainingsession forStPaulproject

managers. After several conversations, itwasdecidedthat thegroup shouldvisit theShorewood siteand
giveusaninitial overview oftheirthoughts before submittalof anydocumentation. 

Being that thestream mitigation program isnewinMN, StPaulproject managersrely heavilyon the
Wilmington andSavanah Districts forguidance. Attheon-sitemeeting, theserepresentativeswere
extremelyknowledgeableand gavegreat guidanceassociatedwith thisreach andwhat theyarelooking
forinaqualitystream restoration. Although thisreach meets someoftheprincipalconceptsfor
restoration, therearesome major hurdles thattheCorps pointed out: 

TheSmithtown Ponds project willregulate flowswithin thedownstream portionof thereach
where thebest locationsfor restorationare located. Themeasurement forthesuccessof the
restorationand credit releasesis based onbankfullevents. Withflows beingregulated inthis
manner, itisunlikelythat annualbankfullevents willoccur. 
Theupstream portion ofthereach islocated withina citypark. Theexperiencefrom thesouthern
districtas thataconservationeasementplaced inparks serving athletic facilities havea high
likelihoodof being encroached upon. Forthisreason, theydiscourage mitigation within these
typesof parks. 
Inorder torestore thisreach, treeswithin thesurrounding riparian zonewillhaveto beclearedin
order tocomplete thereconstructionof thebanks andfloodplainconnectivity. Once restored, they
arestabilizedusing herbaceousspecies thatrequire light forestablishment. Thesouthern districts
haveseen smallerequipmentused torestorestreamsin forestedareas, buttheissue isthelackof
vegetationestablishmentundera treecanopy that leads tothefailure ofthose projects. 



Name:Shorewood StreamRestoration
Date:   October5, 2022
Page:   2

Although thesubject stream reach haspotentialfor restorationandtheproductionof credits, these three
items make itdifficult toachievethe ultimate goal. Thepond design canbemodified toallow forbank
fullevents, butthesettingof therestoration andtreeclearing leadustorecommend thatthisproject beset
aside. Wewill continue tolocate other areasfor restoration thatcould producestream orwetland credits
forthecity. 

Thank you, 

DanDonayre, PWS
Natural Resources Project Manager



6A2

MEETING
TYPE

REGULAR

CityofShorewoodCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject: Pavement Management Methodology andPavement Inventory
MeetingDate: Tuesday, October 11, 2022
Prepared By:  LarryBrown, DirectorofPublicWorks
Attachments: Pavement Inventory

Background: This itemisfollow-upinformation requested bytheCityCouncil, relatedtothe
discussion ofthecondition oftheroadways withintheBoulderBridge subdivision and
maintenance methodology regarding timingofbituminous overlays andschedulingof
roadways forreconstruction.  

Noaction isbeingrequestedatthistimeforthisitem.  

TheCityofShorewood ownsandmaintains 52milesofasphaltpavement.  Theownership,  
maintenance, andreconstruction ofthisinfrastructure represents oneofthemostsignificant
costs thatacityincurs.  Havinganaccurate andeffectivepavement inventory system iscritical
toproperly managing theinvestment ofpavements.    

Eachyear, inlateOctober, thePublicWorksDepartment performsaPavement Management
Inventory (PMI) utilizingwhatisknownasthePASER - Pavement Surface Evaluation and
RatingSystemthatwasdeveloped byEngineersattheUniversity ofWisconsin, Madison.    
Thissystemofevaluation hasbeenutilizedbymanyagencies acrossthenation, toevaluate
andmanage pavement inventories.   

Whenaddressing PMIs, thereareavastarrayofprograms thatrangefromprograms that
equireveryintensive datacollection, andoftentimecostlyprocesses, tothosethataresimpler
toperformwithminorprocesses andcostsinvolved.       

Therecertainly areprosandconsassociated witheachmethodology used.  Manyofthese
inventories involvehaving technicians countandmeasure eachcrackintheasphalt, for
example, asameasureofstressanddeterioration.  Thistypeofinventory isverylaborious
andcostlytoperform.   Othersystems includeafallingweightwhichmeasures theresulting
deflections inthepavement andresultant vibrations through thestrataofpavement and
subgrade soils, toevaluate subsurface conditions.  Staff isoftheopinion thatallthese
methods leadtoverysimilar, ifnotidentical results.      

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound
financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Staffoptedtodrawupontheexperience fromtheengineering departmentfrom theCityof
Hopkins.  Hopkins hadcontracted tohaveasoilstestingfirmevaluate everyroadway utilizing
at “Dynamic hammer”andsensors.  Theresultwasaverysophisticated (andexpensive)  
modelofexactlywhatwasoccurring withthestructureofeveryroadway.  Certainly, thiswasa
veryvaluable tool.  However, itwaslaterdiscovered thatthedataobtainedhadaverylimited
shelf life, aseachyearthenormal frostcyclesofwinter tooktheirtollandchanged the
subgrade condition.  Toparaphrase theCityEngineeratthetime, “PMIprograms, suchas
PASER, resultinthesameorsimilaranswer thatthatthesophisticated programs arriveat, and
isasystemthatisfarlessexpensive, iseasilyunderstood bystaff, CityCouncils, andthe
public, andcomparatively canbeupdated easily.   

Verysimply, under thePASERMethod, eachpavement isratedoncondition fromaratingof1
to10.  Whilethemethodofevaluation isadetailed review, thecoveroftheprocess isagreat
summaryoftheresult, asshownbelow: 



Ultimately, thequestionbecomes, howisthisdatausedoncepavements havebeenrated?   Inresponse, the
CityofShorewood haspreviously consideredandapprovedwhatisknownasthePavementReconstruction
DecisionMatrix, asshownbelow.   

TheCityhasadoptedagoalofkeepingourpavements ataPMIindexof4orgreater.  Havingstatedthat, this
reallyreflectsnotonlyamaintenance goal, butultimatelyafinancialcommitment tothefutureofthe
infrastructure.     

Thechartsbelowdemonstrate variousaspectsofmaintaining pavements inaroutineperformingminimal
maintenance andfixingthe “worstfirst” approach, overtime.   

Chart1belowdepictstheimpactontheservicelifeforpavements thataremaintained regularlywith
sealcoating andbituminous overlay, versusperforming minimalmaintenance.   



Chart1

Inadditiontoextendingouttheservicelifeofthepavement, byperforming therequired sealcoating and
overlays, theoverall impactsofthecostsaremoreeffective, dollarfordollar.    

Chart2



Chart3belowdepictsthecommonremedies versuspavement conditions.  

Chart3

Thefollowingchartsarethecurrentpavement inventory.  While thetwosetsofdataarethe
samedata, thefirstsetissortedbyroadway name, andthesecondsetissortedbythe2021
latest) pavement rating.   

Council maynotethattheBoulderBridgeroadways, excepting BoulderCircle, isatacurrent
ratingof7.  Therefore, thesehavenotbeenslatedinthe5-yearCIP.  BoulderCirclehashad
extreme construction activity intheareaandCityStaff isworkingwiththebuilder forremedy
fortherecentdamage causedbytheirconstruction.   

Staffwillansweranyquestions regarding thisattheCityCouncilmeeting.   



PAVEMENT RATINGS SORTED BYSTREET NAME



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length ( 1)WidthDia. RadAreaAreaExist. Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021

FTFTCir. IslandSFSYCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto
3rd Avenue Christmas Lake RoadExcelsior city limits400 22.08,800 978 None1970 77777777777666
Academy Avenue Yellowstone TrailGrant Street650 28.018, 200 2,022 None1972 87766676610101099
Afton Road Smithtown RoadCathcart Drive990 22.021, 780 2,420 Bit1970 4444410109887766
Alexander Lane Strawberry LaneCul- de- sac310 20. 0962712, 862 1,429 Sur2013 10710101099
Amlee Road Manitou LaneCul- de- sac750 25. 05421, 039 2,338 None1970 444444333333310
Anthony Terrace Vine StreetCul- de- sac260 22. 0588, 361 929 None1972 66666776667767
Apple Road Mill StreetSouth city limits ( Chan) 1,730 26.044, 980 4,998 None1972 771099999998888
Arbor Creek Lane Grant Lorenz RoadCul- de- sac W440 28. 07016, 167 1,796 Sur2005 101010101010109999888
Ayrshire Ln Smithtown RdBentgrass Way852 24.020, 448 2,272 Sur2018 10101010
Barrington Way Excelsior BoulevardCul- de- sacs ( 2) 2004 PRIVATE
Bayswater Road Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1, 050 22.523, 625 2,625 Sur1982 77666777677666
Bentgrass Way West Cul- de- sacClub Valley Road2, 475 24.08865, 479 7,275 Sur2018 10101010
Bentgrass Way Club Valley RoadEast Cul- de- sac878 24. 08827, 151 3,017 Sur2015 10101010
Beverly Drive Cathcart DriveCul- de- sac1, 180 22.06028, 786 3,198 Bit1972 655510987776666
Birch Bluff Road Grant Lorenz RoadEureka Road2, 280 21.047, 880 5,320 None1970 86676667664101010
Birch Bluff Road Eureka RoadTonka Bay city limits730 22.016, 060 1,784 None1972 55576667664101010
Blue Ridge Lane Lake Virginia DriveLake Virginia Drive900 22.019, 800 2,200 None1972 641099988777777
Boulder Bridge Drive Smithtown RoadSmithtown Road3, 030 19.559, 085 6,565 Sur1978 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge DriveBoulder Bridge Lane300 19.55,850 650 Sur1983 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge LaneNorth Cul- de- sac400 19. 5802712, 252 1,361 Sur1983 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge DriveCul- de- sacs ( 2)720 19. 5802718, 492 2,055 Sur1983 77777777777777
Boulder Circle Boulder Bridge DriveCul- de- sac1, 050 22.07026, 947 2,994 None1983 44476557777655
Bracketts Road Apple RoadCul- de- sac960 25.024, 000 2,667 Cul- Sur1987 77776777777777
Brand Circle Christmas LaneCul- de- sac360 21. 0622510, 087 1,121 Cul- Sur1972 766666666766610
Brassie Circle Club Valley RoadCul- de- sac126 24. 0605, 850 650 Sur2015 1010109
Brentridge Drive Howards Point Road ( S)Howards Point Road ( N)2,107 25.052, 675 5,853 D-4121987 87777777776666
Broms Boulevard Old Market RoadVine Hill Road South3, 170 29.593, 515 10,391 B-6121996 77776777777667
Brynmawr Place Howards Point RoadCul- de- sac1, 020 24.0954729, 831 3,315 Sur1993 88887777777777
Burlwood Court Shorewood Oaks RoadCul- de- sac555 25. 08719, 817 2,202 Sur1986 88888888777777
C.R. 19 Frontage Rd ( w )Country Road 19End ( S ) Flooring Store200 24.04,800 533 B-6122005 109999888888877
Cajed Lane Smithtown RoadBeverly Drive780 21.016, 380 1,820 Bit1972 555510987777777
Cardinal Drive Murray StreetSouth city limits ( Chan) 770 21.016, 170 1,797 None1972 57777776676101010
Carrie Lane Radisson RoadCul- de- sac1983 PRIVATE
Cathcart Drive Smithtown RoadLRT2, 610 22.057, 420 6,380 None1972 441099988877777
Charleston Circle Yellowstone TrailCul- de- sac580 22. 08017, 784 1,976 Sur1986 67766571010109988
Chartwell Hill Old Market RoadCul- de- sac810 23. 07222, 699 2,522 Sur1984 87777777777777
Chaska Road MayflowerTH 71,100 24.026, 400 2,933 None1972 6865557610109988
Chaska Road TH 41Mayflower1, 000 24.024, 000 2,667 None1972 6865557610109978
Chestnut Court Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac290 23. 07511, 086 1,232 Sur1986 87667777777777
Chestnut Terrace Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac130 23. 0757, 406 823 Sur1986 877777777777710
Christmas Lake Point Radisson RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Christmas Lake Road 3rd AvenueChristmas Lane2, 790 20.055, 800 6,200 None1970 87666776677665
Christmas Lane W Christmas Lake RoadDead End W300 16.04,800 533 None1970 87666776677666
Christmas Lane E Christmas Lake RoadDead End E300 16.04,800 533 None1970 87666777777633
Christopher Road Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac610 22. 08018, 444 2,049 Bit1989 5557610107777777
Church Road West 62nd StreetCul- de- sac610 21. 08618, 616 2,068 B-6121971 88777777766665
Clover Lane Minnetonka DriveCul- de- sac290 22. 058. 59, 066 1,007 None1970 867655109887777
Club Lane Smithtown RoadDead End620 12.07,440 827 1972 444765109777777
Club Valley Road Bentgrass WayYellowstone Trail1, 717 24.041, 208 4,579 Sur2015 1010109
Club Valley Road Yellowstone TrailWood Drive650 22.014, 300 1,589 None1965 87765471010108877
Country Club Road Smithtown RoadYellowstone Trail2, 330 26.060, 580 6,731 None1972 88766677555888
Covington Court Vine Hill RoadCul- de- sac130 23. 0757, 406 823 Sur1985 77777777777777
Covington Road Radisson RoadOld Market Rd2, 784 20.557, 072 6,341 None1970 887777667666610
Covington Road Old Market RdVine Hill Rd2, 260 22.550, 850 5,650 None1970 887777667656610
Deer Ridge Koehnen Circle Cul- de- sac319 32.010, 208 1,134 Sur1993 99988888877777
Dellwood Lane Enchanted DriveCul- de- sac590 18. 05512, 995 1,444 None1973 7766765544761010
Devonshire Circle Knightsbridge RoadLoop1981 PRIVATE
Division Street Excelsior city limitsDead End325 18.05,850 650 None1972 77777766665555
Duck Island No ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Echo Road County Road 19Country Club Road1, 960 21.041, 160 4,573 None1970 655444764410101010
Edgewood Road Howards Point RoadGrant Lorenz Road3, 800 24.793, 860 10,429 None1970 8777777765410109
Elbert Point McKinley PlaceCul- de- sac360 23. 07512, 696 1,411 Sur1988 87667761010109987
Elder Turn Minnetonka DriveCul- de- sac290 17. 0587, 571 841 None1970 876654109987777
Elmridge Circle Edgewood RoadCul- de- sac230 20. 071. 58, 613 957 None1973 410999999888888
Enchanted Cove Enchanted DriveCul- de- sac150 20. 0504, 963 551 None1973 7777776644641010



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length ( 1)WidthDia. RadAreaAreaExist. Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021

FTFTCir. IslandSFSYCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto
Enchanted Drive Enchanted LaneCul- de- sac1, 600 20.05033, 963 3,774 None1973 7777776644641010
Enchanted Lane Minnetrista city limitsShady Island Bridge3, 430 18.061, 740 6,860 None1973 7766666444771010
Enchanted Point Enchanted LaneDead End1, 270 14.017, 780 1,976 None1973 AGGREGATEROADWAY
Eureka Road ( North) Smithtown RoadBirch Bluff Road2, 750 22.060, 500 6,722 None1970 87676557666555
Eureka Road ( South) Smithtown RoadState Highway # 73, 250 21.068, 250 7,583 None1972 76671010109887777
Eureka Way Smithtown RoadDead End            --           None1972 PRIVATE
Excelsior Boulevard St. Albans Bay RoadManor Road1, 553 22.034, 166 3,796 None1972 66666777577777
Excelsior Boulevard Manor RoadEast city limits ( Deephn) 2,132 22.046, 904 5,212 None1972 66666777764101010
Fairway Drive Smithtown RoadEnd Cul- de- sac ( n )731 28.020, 468 2,274 Sur2003 1010998888888888
Fatima Place Minnetonka BoulevardDead End500 20.054. 512, 332 1,370 None1972 65544101010988888
Featherie Bay Bentgrass WayCul- de- sac308 24. 08813, 471 1,497 Sur2015 10101010
Ferncroft Drive Minnetonka BoulevardForest Drive1, 230 17.321, 279 2,364 None1987 55551010109887777
Forest Drive Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1, 000 20.020, 000 2,222 None1972 55551010108777777
Frog Island No ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Gales Island NO ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Galpin Lake Road State Highway # 7Mayflower Rd/ So city limits 2,230 21.046, 830 5,203 None1972 57766676676555
Galpin Lane Galpin Lake RoadCul- de- sacNone1972 PRIVATE
Garden Road Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1, 240 12.014, 880 1,653 None1972 544446543109999
Gideons Lane Glen RoadCul- de- sac1998 PRIVATE
Gillette Curve Minnetonka DriveCul- de- sac640 22.014, 080 1,564 None1970 657555444108887
Glen Road County Road 19Manitou Ln1, 500 20.030, 000 3,333 None1972 444444454433310
Glen Road Manitou LnDead End850 16.013, 600 1,511 None1972 444444454433310
Glencoe Road North city limits ( Exc) Dead End1, 200 18.021, 600 2,400 None1972 57776677777777
Goose Island No RoadsIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Grant Lorenz Road Smithtown RoadBirch Bluff Road2, 930 25.574, 715 8,302 None1970 666665475444410
Grant Street Excelsior city limitsDead End600 20.012, 000 1,333 None1966 77777677777777
Harding Avenue Wedgewood DriveHarding Lane285 8.02,280 253 Bit1985 654101010101010109888
Harding Lane Harding AvenueCul- de- sac ( South) 130 30. 0889, 979 1,109 Bit1985 432101010101010109888
Harding Lane Harding AvenueCul- de- sac ( North) 570 30. 08823, 179 2,575 Bit1988 432101010101010109888
High Pointe Road State Highway # 7Cul- de- sac ( North) 2003 PRIVATE
Hillendale Road Mill StreetDead End930 18. 04418, 260 2,029 None1972 87777777677777
Holly Lane Mill StreetDead End1970 MAINTAINEDBYCHANHASSEN
Howards Point Road Edgewood RoadDead End1, 300 16.020, 800 2,311 None1970 86666667651010109
Howards Point Road Smithtown RoadEdgewood Road4, 110 23.094, 530 10,503 None1970 8766666665101099
Idlewild Path Rustic WaySuburban Drive660 22.014, 520 1,613 None1972 765557664766510
Island View Road Howards Point RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Ivy Lane Ferncroft DriveRustic Way700 20.614, 420 1,602 None1972 66544101010877777
Kathleen Court Woodside RoadCul- de- sac300 22. 058. 59, 286 1,032 None1977 6666666766101098
Kelsey Drive Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac360 24. 050 1,17810, 603 Sur2000 99999999998877
Kensington Gate Knightsbridge RoadDead End1981 PRIVATE
Knightsbridge Road Manor RoadManor Road1, 870 27.751, 799 5,755 B-6121881 4766661010988887
Lafayette Avenue Excelsior city limitsDead End1971 MAINTAINEDBYEXCELSIOR
Lagoon Drive Enchanted LaneDead End1973PRIVATE

10101099999998888Lake Linden Court Yellowstone TrailCul- de- sac672 24. 010023, 978 2,664 Sur2003

Lake Linden Drive Yellowstone TrailState Highway # 71, 550 26.040, 300 4,478 None1999 8877778765510109
Lake Virginia Drive Smithtown RoadDead End1, 570 21.032, 970 3,663 None1972 55555441010108877
Lakeway Terrace Minnetonka BoulevardCul- de-sac1, 200 22.56029, 826 3,314 None1972 6655551010877777
Lawtonka Drive Timber LaneCul- de- sac550 24. 07617, 734 1,970 Sur1992 87777777777777
Lee Circle Birch Bluff RoadCul- de- sac240 22.15,304 589 None1970 88888887777777
Lilac Lane Mill StreetDead End1, 070 22.824, 396 2,711 2 Sur 1/2 No197276555765577765
Linwood Road Minnetonka BoulevardDphn city limits217 20.04,340 482 None1972 MAINTAINEDBYDEEPHAVEN
Mallard Lane Wedgewood DriveCul- de- sac430 29. 59720, 071 2,230 Bit1974 81010101010109999988
Manitou Lane Amlee RoadGlen Road360 21.57,740 860 None1970 333333333333310
Mann Lane Eureka RoadSeamans Drive660 21.013, 860 1,540 None1972 644755476510101010
Manor Road Excelsior BoulevardSt. Albans Bay Road950 20.719, 638 2,182 None1972 610998887677777
Manor Road St. Albans Bay RoadEast city limits ( Dphn) 3,650 20.775, 555 8,395 None1972 610998887677766
Maple Avenue Strawberry LaneDead End400 14.05,600 622 None1972 AGGREGATEROADWAY
Maple Leaf Circle Shorewood Oaks DriveCul- de- sac300 26. 08613, 606 1,512 Sur1985 88888887777777
Maple Ridge Lane Lake Virginia DriveCul- de- sac260 20. 063. 68, 375 931 None1972 88777778888877
Maple Street Lake Linden Dr.End East450 22.09,900 1,100 None1972 54654444444444
Maple View Court Eureka RoadCul- de- sac660 22. 010014, 520 1,613 Sur1997 10101099999988888
Marsh Point Drive Smithtown Rd ( E Ent) Smithtown Rd. ( W Ent) 2,549 28.071, 372 7,930 Sur1995 98888888887777
Marsh Pointe Circle Marsh Point DriveEnd Cul- de-sac ( n )291 28. 0100208, 148 905 Sur1995 99888888887777
Marsh Pointe Court Marsh Point DriveEnd Cul- de-sac ( n )496 28.01002013, 888 1,543 Sur1995 99888888887777
Mary Lake Trail Country Club RoadCul- de- sac999 32. 010031, 968 3,552 Sur1999 99999998888888



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length ( 1)WidthDia. RadAreaAreaExist. Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021

FTFTCir. IslandSFSYCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto
Mayflower Road Chaska RoadGalpin Lake Road660 22.614, 916 1,657 None1972 8765557710109888
McKinley Circle McKinley CourtCul- de- sac260 23. 07510, 396 1,155 Sur1987 87666661010108777
McKinley Court Vine Hill RoadCul- de- sac890 23. 07524, 886 2,765 Sur1987 8766777710108877
McKinley Place ( North) Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac560 23. 07517, 296 1,922 Sur1988 876677777108878
McKinley Place ( South) Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac600 23. 07518, 216 2,024 Sur1988 877777777108877
McLain Road Minnetonka DriveCul- de- sac400 20. 06211, 018 1,224 None1970 867654410998888
Meadowview Road Valleywood LaneWild Rose Lane660 21.514, 190 1,577 2010 5437101010101099888
Merry Lane Radisson RoadCul- de- sac770 20. 69522, 947 2,550 None1972 88888888888777
Mill Street Excelsior city limitsChanhassen city limits1972 COUNTYRD
Minnetonka Blvd. St. Alban' s Bay RoadDphn city limits2, 990 28.083, 682 9,298 None1972 88777887988777
Minnetonka Drive County Road 19Yellowstone Trail2, 050 22.045, 100 5,011 None1970 810988777787777
Muirfield Circle Old Market RoadOld Market Road2, 080 23.047, 840 5,316 Sur1986 88778877877777
Murray Court Murray StreetCul- de- sac450 23. 510118, 583 2,065 Bit1993 88877887787766
Murray Street Galpin Lake RoadDead End1, 790 20.737, 053 4,117 Bit1972 78766777776666
Murry Hill Road Chanhassen City LimitChaska Road520 24.012, 480 1,387 None1970 5755577710108888
Near Mountain Boulevard Vine Hill RoadSouth city limits ( Chan) 2,255 30.067, 650 7,517 Sur1989 887777767766610
Nelsine Drive Eureka RoadCul- de- sac460 20.273. 513, 533 1,504 None1971 433710101010988887
Niblick Alcove Club Valley RoadCul- de- sac451 24. 08816, 903 1,878 Sur2015 1010109
Noble Road Grant Lorenz Road670' West670 24.016, 080 1,787 Bit1993 87777767777666
Noble Road 670' WestEdgewood Road2, 530 21.07056, 977 6,331 Sur1995 98777778887777
Oak Leaf Trail Shorewood Oaks DriveShorewood Oaks Drive1, 500 26.09646, 235 5,137 Sur1985 88777777766666
Oak Ridge Circle Grant Lorenz RoadCul- de- sac420 26.378. 815, 920 1,769 None1971 66666657661010109
Oakview Court Chaska RoadCul- de- sac188 24. 0809, 536 1,060 Sur2003 1010999999997877
Old Market Road State Highway # 7Covington Road2, 400 31.575, 600 8,400 1991 777677667666610
Orchard Circle Eureka RoadCul- de- sac150 24.597. 511, 137 1,237 Bit1978 66676557777777
Park Lane Eureka RoadEnd Road ( w)901 32.028, 832 3,204 Sur2000 99999988877777
Park Street Glencoe RoadPleasant Avenue917 22.020, 174 2,242 None1972 887777877109988
Parkview Lane Suburban DriveCul- de- sac 417 28. 05011, 676 1,297 Sur2005 1010101010101010999988
Peach Circle Strawberry LaneCul- de- sac440 25. 04012, 256 1,362 Bit1989 87666657665444
Pine Bend Howards Point RoadHowards Point Road990 22.522, 275 2,475 1972 88888877776666
Pleasant Avenue Yellowstone TrailState Highway # 7580 21.012, 180 1,353 None1970 876666109877777
Pond View Drive Park Lane ( E Ent) Park Lane ( W Ent)-            -           2000 PRIVATE
Prestwick Ct Bentgrass WayLoop1, 118 24.026, 832 2,981 Sur2018 10101010
Radisson Entrance Radisson Inn RoadCul- de- sac616 20.691. 519, 262 2,140 None1972 87655761010108888
Radisson Inn Road Covington RoadRadisson Entrance1, 780 21.037, 380 4,153 None1972 777667666655510
Radisson Road Old Market RdCovington Road1, 350 29.539, 825 4,425 B-6181972 877667777777710
Radisson Road Covington RoadChristmas Lake Road2, 410 14.033, 740 3,749 None1972 777667767776610
Rampart Court Wood DriveCul- de- sac100 25. 0787, 276 808 Bit1990 65554477777777
Regents Walk Knightsbridge Road ( E Ent) Knightsbridge Road ( W Ent) 1978 PRIVATE
Ridge Point Circle Country Club RoadCul- de- sacBit1987 PRIVATE
Ridge Road Covington RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Riviera Lane Yellowstone TrailCul- de- sac900 20. 07222, 069 2,452 None2018 547654476610101010
Rustic Way Forest DriveSuburban Drive1, 180 23.527, 730 3,081 None1972 55555101010987777
Rustic Way Sunset LaSuburban Drive190 23.54,465 496 None1972 55555101010987766
Sams Way                - 366            -           1972 PAPERSTREET
Seamans Drive Yellowstone TrailMann Lane1, 800 19.034, 200 3,800 None1972 444555477644410
Shady Hills Alley Shady Hills RoadBroms Boulevard1, 850 16.530, 525 3,392 None1972 55557655777777
Shady Hills Circle Shady Hills RoadShady Hills Road1, 555 24.538, 098 4,233 1972 466677655109999
Shady Hills Road Vine Hill RoadShady Hills Alley1, 330 24.031, 920 3,547 Bit1972 655576510997777
Shady Island Circle Shady Island RoadShady Island Road1, 020 20.020, 400 2,267 Bit1973 7766766655751010
Shady Island Point Shady Island CircleDead End360 12.04,320 480 None1973 5555765555551010
Shady Island Road Shady Island BridgeDead End ( lift Overlaid) 1,500 21.031, 500 3,500 None1973 6666666555551010
Shady Island Trail Shady Island CircleDead End300 11.03,300 367 None1973 7777766665761010
Shady Lane Shady Hills RoadCul- de- sac215 24. 569. 29, 027 1,003 None1972 666666510987777
Shore Road Radisson Inn RoadDead End625 19.512, 188 1,354 None1972 776576610988888
Shorewood Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac840 30.025, 200 2,800 Bit2018 446544775410101010
Shorewood Oaks Drive Strawberry LaneState Highway # 72, 240 26.058, 240 6,471 Sur1985 88888888777777
Sierra Circle Silver Lake TrailCul- de- sac500 27. 57217, 819 1,980 Sur1989 87777766777777
Silver Lake Trail Sweetwater CurveNear Mountain Boulevard1, 195 28.534, 058 3,784 Sur1989 76667766777666
Smithtown Circle Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac130 24.099. 310, 860 1,207 Bit1979 87554437766666
Smithtown Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac600 15.09,000 1,000 Bit1972 543101010109888877
Smithtown Road CR No. 19LRT Trail4, 090 30. 0122, 700 13,633 None2005 109888888888877
Smithtown Road LRTGrant Lorenz Road1, 420 30.042, 600 4,733 None2005 109888888888777
Smithtown Road Grant Lorenz RoadHowards Point Road3, 950 30. 0118, 500 13,167 None2005 109888888888777
Smithtown Road Howards Point RoadBoulder Bridge Dr w1, 920 30.057, 600 6,400 Bit2005 109888888888877
Smithtown Road Boulder Bridge Dr wSouth city limits ( Vict) 1,250 30.037, 500 4,167 None2005 109888888888777



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length ( 1)WidthDia. RadAreaAreaExist. Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021

FTFTCir. IslandSFSYCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto
Smithtown Way Smithtown Rd Cul- de- sac ( s)897 25.022, 425 2,492 Sur1995 109888888888887
Spencer Lane Minnetonka BoulevardMinntonka Blvd2004 PRIVATE
Spray Island NO ROADSIsland NOROADWAYS
Spring Circle Excelsior BoulevardCul- de- sac1994 PRIVATE
Spruce Hill Court Yellowstone TrailCul- de- sac670 22. 09621, 975 2,442 B-6121992 87666666667777
St. Albans Bay Circle St. Albans Bay RoadCul- de- sac1994 PRIVATE
St. Albans Bay Road Excelsior BoulevardSt Albans Bay Cir1, 730 21.737, 541 4,171 None1972 610987777777777
St. Albans Bay Road Manor RoadMinnetonka Blvd1, 870 28.052, 360 5,818 None1972 66666777777777
Star Circle Star LaneCul- de- sac130 24. 754. 55, 543 616 Bit1974 43374331010109999
Star Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac730 24.692. 524, 675 2,742 Bit1974 43374331010109999
Stratford Place Apple RoadCul- de- sac710 23.573. 620, 937 2,326 B-6121978 5755101099998888
Strawberry Circle Cathcart DrCul- de- sac ( e) 1985 PRIVATE
Strawberry Court Strawberry LaneCul- de- sac700 25. 09624, 735 2,748 Sur1991 88777767765555
Strawberry Lane Smithtown RoadWest 62nd Street2, 650 22.058, 300 6,478 None1995 87655557775555
Suburban Drive Rustic WaySt. Albans Bay Road2, 600 19.550, 700 5,633 None1972 710999999777777
Summit Avenue Murray Hill RoadSouth city limits ( Chan) 940 12.711, 938 1,326 Bit1972 476547666610101010
Sunnyvale Lane Meadowview LaneEureka Road650 23.515, 275 1,697 None1970 44474331010109998
Sussex Place Knightsbridge RoadCul- de- sac1981 PRIVATE
Sweetwater Circle Sweetwater CurveCul- de- sac460 23. 57515, 226 1,692 Sur1986 77667777777777
Sweetwater Court Sweetwater CurveCul- de- sac110 23. 5757, 001 778 Sur1990 776677777776610
Sweetwater Curve Covington RoadCul- de- sac4, 130 27. 2112, 336 12,482 Sur1990 776677777777710
Sylvan Lane Wild Rose LaneCul- de- sac260 19. 8587, 789 865 None1970 66676667777777
Teal Circle Wedgewood DriveCul- de- sac160 29.597. 712, 213 1,357 None1974 41010101010109999999
Tee Trail Yellowstone TrailWood Drive360 24.08,640 960 None1972 655555109877777
Tiffany Lane Radisson RoadLoop1982 PRIVATE
Timber Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac1, 730 19.06235, 888 3,988 None1992 5565556101098777
Valleywood Circle Valleywood LaneCul- de- sac500 23.011, 500 1,278 None1970 433744310101010999
Valleywood Lane Eureka RoadDead End1, 310 21.027, 510 3,057 None1970 433744310101010999
Vine Hill Road State Highway # 7South city limits ( Chan) 7,300 15. 1110, 230 12,248 None1985 6533710109988777
Vine Ridge Road Covington RoadConvington Road2, 150 29.262, 780 6,976 Sur1972 77777777777777
Vine Street Manor RoadEast city limits ( Dphn) 800 20.616, 480 1,831 None1984 87777777777777
Virginia Cove Smithtown Rd Cul- de- sac ( e )917 28. 010025, 676 2,853 Sur2006 99999999999888
Waterford Circle Waterford PlaceCul- de- sac360 23. 07512, 696 1,411 Sur1984 87777777777777
Waterford Court Old Market RoadWaterford Ct. ( Loop ) 1,918 28.053, 704 5,967 Sur1994 88777777777777
Waterford Place Old Market RoadVine Hill Road2, 490 24.059, 760 6,640 Sur1984 88777777777777
Wedgewood Drive Smithtown Road LRT Trail935 29.527, 583 3,065 Bit1972 41010101010109999888
Wedgewood Drive LRT TrailCul- de- sac1, 860 29.554, 870 6,097 None1972 41010101010109999888
West 62nd Street Cathcart DrStrawberry Lane1, 330 24.031, 920 3,547 None1970 865555555576610
West 62nd Street Cathcart DrDead End1, 320 16.021, 120 2,347 None1972 865555555577610
West Lane Rustic WayGarden Road790 12.59,875 1,097 None1970 64444754477766
Whitney Circle Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac290 23. 57511, 231 1,248 Sur1988 88777766777777
Wild Rose Lane Grant Lorenz RoadMeadowview Ln2, 310 22.050, 820 5,647 None1970 44475557767666
Wild Rose Lane Meadowview LaneEureka Road654 24.015, 696 1,744 Sur2010 4447101010101099999
Wiltsey Lane Pleasant AvenueCul- de- sac520 17. 010016, 690 1,854 None1972 AGGREGATEROADWAY
Wood Drive State Highway # 7Cul- de- sac1, 440 25. 01002243, 470 4,830 None1990 7676551010997777
Wood Duck Circle Smithtown RoadCul- de- sac900 25. 06425, 715 2,857 None1980 4754441010987777
Wooden Cleek Drive Smithtown RoadBentgrass Way616 24.067. 718, 382 2,042 Sur2015 10101010
Woodend Place St Albans Bay RoadForest Drive340 20.56,970 774 None1972 87666777777766



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length ( 1)WidthDia. RadAreaAreaExist. Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021

FTFTCir. IslandSFSYCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto
Woodside Lane Woodside RoadCul- de- sac240 30. 07511, 616 1,291 None1972 6666665764441010
Woodside Road Howards Point RoadCul- de- sac2, 900 18.052, 200 5,800 None1972 6666665755441010
Yellowstone Trail Seamans DrAcademy Avenue 6,700 22. 0147, 400 16,378 None1970 65761010109998877

Reutiman Ln Eureka RdParking Lot Dead end 66
Freeman Park Lot Park LaneDead end 685, 4056, 168, 645 88
East Water Tower Old Market RoadDead End 77
Silverwood Park Lot Parking Lot 77
Southshore Community Park Parking Lot 77
Carhcart Park Lot Parking Lot 77
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76

umber of Cul-de-sacs84

LEGEND

Newly Constructed = N
Deferred = D

Reconstruct = R PARTIAL
Reclaim = M PARTIAL
Overlay = O YEAR PRIOR
Sealcoat = S YEAR PRIOR

Private or No Roads
Aggregate Road

Private Aggregate Rd

NOTES



PAVEMENT RATINGS SORTED BY2021RATING



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Christmas Lane E Christmas Lake RoadDead End E300 None1970 87666777777633
Maple Street Lake Linden Dr.End East450 None1972 54654444444444
Peach Circle Strawberry LaneCul- de-sac440 Bit1989 87666657665444
Boulder Circle Boulder Bridge DriveCul- de-sac1,050 None1983 44476557777655
Christmas Lake Road 3rd AvenueChristmas Lane2,790 None1970 87666776677665
Church Road West 62nd StreetCul- de-sac610 B-6121971 88777777766665
Division Street Excelsior city limitsDead End325 None1972 77777766665555
Eureka Road ( North) Smithtown RoadBirch Bluff Road2,750 None1970 87676557666555
Galpin Lake Road State Highway # 7Mayflower Rd/So city limits 2,230 None1972 57766676676555
Lilac Lane Mill StreetDead End1,070 2Sur 1/2No197276555765577765
Strawberry Court Strawberry LaneCul- de-sac700 Sur1991 88777767765555
Strawberry Lane Smithtown RoadWest 62nd Street2, 650 None1995 87655557775555
3rd Avenue Christmas Lake RoadExcelsior city limits400 None1970 77777777777666
Afton Road Smithtown RoadCathcart Drive990 Bit1970 4444410109887766
Bayswater Road Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1,050 Sur1982 77666777677666
Beverly Drive Cathcart DriveCul- de-sac1,180 Bit1972 655510987776666
Brentridge Drive Howards Point Road ( S)Howards Point Road ( N)2,107 D-4121987 87777777776666
Christmas Lane W Christmas Lake RoadDead End W300 None1970 87666776677666
Manor Road St. Albans Bay RoadEast city limits (Dphn)3,650 None1972 610998887677766
Murray Court Murray StreetCul- de-sac450 Bit1993 88877887787766
Murray Street Galpin Lake RoadDead End1,790 Bit1972 78766777776666
Noble Road Grant Lorenz Road670' West670 Bit1993 87777767777666
Oak Leaf Trail Shorewood Oaks DriveShorewood Oaks Drive1,500 Sur1985 88777777766666
Pine Bend Howards Point RoadHowards Point Road990 197288888877776666
Rustic Way Sunset LaSuburban Drive190 None1972 55555101010987766
Silver Lake Trail Sweetwater CurveNear Mountain Boulevard1, 195 Sur1989 76667766777666
Smithtown Circle Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac130 Bit1979 87554437766666
West Lane Rustic WayGarden Road790 None1970 64444754477766
Wild Rose Lane Grant Lorenz RoadMeadowview Ln2,310 None1970 44475557767666
Woodend Place St Albans Bay RoadForest Drive340 None1972 87666777777766
Anthony Terrace Vine StreetCul- de-sac260 None1972 66666776667767
Blue Ridge Lane Lake Virginia DriveLake Virginia Drive900 None1972 641099988777777
Boulder Bridge Drive Smithtown RoadSmithtown Road3,030 Sur1978 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge DriveBoulder Bridge Lane300 Sur1983 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge LaneNorth Cul-de-sac400 Sur1983 77777777777777
Boulder Bridge Lane Boulder Bridge DriveCul- de-sacs (2)720 Sur1983 77777777777777
Bracketts Road Apple RoadCul- de-sac960 Cul-Sur1987 77776777777777
Broms Boulevard Old Market RoadVine Hill Road South3, 170 B-6121996 77776777777667
Brynmawr Place Howards Point RoadCul- de-sac1,020 Sur1993 88887777777777
Burlwood Court Shorewood Oaks RoadCul- de-sac555 Sur1986 88888888777777
C.R. 19 Frontage Rd ( w )Country Road 19End ( S ) Flooring Store200 B-6122005109999888888877
Cajed Lane Smithtown RoadBeverly Drive780 Bit1972 555510987777777
Cathcart Drive Smithtown RoadLRT2, 610 None1972 441099988877777
Chartwell Hill Old Market RoadCul- de-sac810 Sur1984 87777777777777
Chestnut Court Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac290 Sur1986 87667777777777
Christopher Road Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac610 Bit1989 5557610107777777
Clover Lane Minnetonka DriveCul- de-sac290 None1970 867655109887777
Club Lane Smithtown RoadDead End620 1972444765109777777
Club Valley Road Yellowstone TrailWood Drive650 None1965 87765471010108877
Covington Court Vine Hill RoadCul- de-sac130 Sur1985 77777777777777
Deer Ridge Koehnen Circle Cul-de-sac319 Sur1993 99988888877777
Elbert Point McKinley PlaceCul- de-sac360 Sur1988 87667761010109987



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Elder Turn Minnetonka DriveCul- de-sac290 None1970 876654109987777
Eureka Road (South) Smithtown RoadState Highway # 73,250 None1972 76671010109887777
Excelsior Boulevard St. Albans Bay RoadManor Road1,553 None1972 66666777577777
Ferncroft Drive Minnetonka BoulevardForest Drive1,230 None1987 55551010109887777
Forest Drive Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1,000 None1972 55551010108777777
Gillette Curve Minnetonka DriveCul- de-sac640 None1970 657555444108887
Glencoe Road North city limits (Exc)Dead End1,200 None1972 57776677777777
Grant Street Excelsior city limitsDead End600 None1966 77777677777777
Hillendale Road Mill StreetDead End930 None1972 87777777677777
Ivy Lane Ferncroft DriveRustic Way700 None1972 66544101010877777
Kelsey Drive Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac360 Sur2000 99999999998877
Knightsbridge Road Manor RoadManor Road1,870 B-6121881 4766661010988887
Lake Virginia Drive Smithtown RoadDead End1,570 None1972 55555441010108877
Lakeway Terrace Minnetonka BoulevardCul- de-sac1,200 None1972 6655551010877777
Lawtonka Drive Timber LaneCul- de-sac550 Sur1992 87777777777777
Lee Circle Birch Bluff RoadCul- de-sac240 None1970 88888887777777
Manor Road Excelsior BoulevardSt. Albans Bay Road950 None1972 610998887677777
Maple Leaf Circle Shorewood Oaks DriveCul- de-sac300 Sur1985 88888887777777
Maple Ridge Lane Lake Virginia DriveCul- de-sac260 None1972 88777778888877
Marsh Point Drive Smithtown Rd (EEnt) Smithtown Rd. (W Ent)2,549 Sur1995 98888888887777
Marsh Pointe Circle Marsh Point DriveEnd Cul-de-sac ( n )291 Sur1995 99888888887777
Marsh Pointe Court Marsh Point DriveEnd Cul-de-sac ( n )496 Sur1995 99888888887777
McKinley Circle McKinley CourtCul- de-sac260 Sur1987 87666661010108777
McKinley Court Vine Hill RoadCul- de-sac890 Sur1987 8766777710108877
McKinley Place (South) Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac600 Sur1988 877777777108877
Merry Lane Radisson RoadCul- de-sac770 None1972 88888888888777
Minnetonka Blvd. St. Alban'sBay RoadDphn city limits2,990 None1972 88777887988777
Minnetonka Drive County Road 19Yellowstone Trail2,050 None1970 810988777787777
Muirfield Circle Old Market RoadOld Market Road2,080 Sur1986 88778877877777
Nelsine Drive Eureka RoadCul- de-sac460 None1971 433710101010988887
Noble Road 670' WestEdgewood Road2,530 Sur1995 98777778887777
Oakview Court Chaska RoadCul- de-sac188 Sur2003 1010999999997877
Orchard Circle Eureka RoadCul- de-sac150 Bit1978 66676557777777
Park Lane Eureka RoadEnd Road (w)901 Sur2000 99999988877777
Pleasant Avenue Yellowstone TrailState Highway # 7580 None1970 876666109877777
Rampart Court Wood DriveCul- de-sac100 Bit1990 65554477777777
Rustic Way Forest DriveSuburban Drive1, 180 None1972 55555101010987777
Shady Hills Alley Shady Hills RoadBroms Boulevard1, 850 None1972 55557655777777
Shady Hills Road Vine Hill RoadShady Hills Alley1,330 Bit1972 655576510997777
Shady Lane Shady Hills RoadCul- de-sac215 None1972 666666510987777
Shorewood Oaks Drive Strawberry LaneState Highway # 72,240 Sur1985 88888888777777
Sierra Circle Silver Lake TrailCul- de-sac500 Sur1989 87777766777777
Smithtown Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac600 Bit1972 543101010109888877
Smithtown Road CR No. 19LRT Trail4,090 None2005 109888888888877
Smithtown Road LRTGrant Lorenz Road1,420 None2005 109888888888777
Smithtown Road Grant Lorenz RoadHowards Point Road3,950 None2005 109888888888777
Smithtown Road Howards Point RoadBoulder Bridge Dr w1,920 Bit2005 109888888888877
Smithtown Road Boulder Bridge Dr wSouth city limits (Vict)1,250 None2005 109888888888777
Smithtown Way Smithtown Rd Cul-de-sac (s)897 Sur1995109888888888887
Spruce Hill Court Yellowstone TrailCul- de-sac670 B-6121992 87666666667777
St. Albans Bay Road Excelsior BoulevardSt Albans Bay Cir1,730 None1972 610987777777777
St. Albans Bay Road Manor RoadMinnetonka Blvd1,870 None1972 66666777777777
Suburban Drive Rustic WaySt. Albans Bay Road2, 600 None1972 710999999777777



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Sweetwater Circle Sweetwater CurveCul- de-sac460 Sur1986 77667777777777
Sylvan Lane Wild Rose LaneCul- de-sac260 None1970 66676667777777
Tee Trail Yellowstone TrailWood Drive360 None1972 655555109877777
Timber Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac1,730 None1992 5565556101098777
Vine Hill Road State Highway # 7South city limits (Chan)7,300 None1985 6533710109988777
Vine Ridge Road Covington RoadConvington Road2,150 Sur1972 77777777777777
Vine Street Manor RoadEast city limits (Dphn) 800 None1984 87777777777777
Waterford Circle Waterford PlaceCul- de-sac360 Sur1984 87777777777777
Waterford Court Old Market RoadWaterford Ct. ( Loop )1,918 Sur1994 88777777777777
Waterford Place Old Market RoadVine Hill Road2,490 Sur1984 88777777777777
Whitney Circle Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac290 Sur1988 88777766777777
Wood Drive State Highway # 7Cul-de-sac1,440 None1990 7676551010997777
Wood Duck Circle Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac900 None1980 4754441010987777
Yellowstone Trail Seamans DrAcademy Avenue 6,700 None1970 65761010109998877
Apple Road Mill StreetSouth city limits (Chan)1,730 None1972 771099999998888
Arbor Creek Lane Grant Lorenz RoadCul- de-sac W440 Sur2005 101010101010109999888
Charleston Circle Yellowstone TrailCul- de-sac580 Sur1986 67766571010109988
Chaska Road MayflowerTH 71,100 None1972 6865557610109988
Chaska Road TH 41Mayflower1, 000 None1972 6865557610109978
Country Club Road Smithtown RoadYellowstone Trail2,330 None1972 88766677555888
Elmridge Circle Edgewood RoadCul- de-sac230 None1973 410999999888888
Fairway Drive Smithtown RoadEnd Cul-de-sac ( n )731 Sur2003 1010998888888888
Fatima Place Minnetonka BoulevardDead End500 None1972 65544101010988888
Harding Avenue Wedgewood DriveHarding Lane285 Bit1985 654101010101010109888
Harding Lane Harding AvenueCul- de-sac (South) 130 Bit1985 432101010101010109888
Harding Lane Harding AvenueCul- de-sac (North)570 Bit1988 432101010101010109888
Kathleen Court Woodside RoadCul- de-sac300 None1977 6666666766101098
Lake Linden Court Yellowstone TrailCul- de-sac672 Sur2003 10101099999998888
Mallard Lane Wedgewood DriveCul- de-sac430 Bit1974 81010101010109999988
Maple View Court Eureka RoadCul- de-sac660 Sur1997 10101099999988888
Mary Lake Trail Country Club RoadCul- de-sac999 Sur1999 99999998888888
Mayflower Road Chaska RoadGalpin Lake Road660 None1972 8765557710109888
McKinley Place (North) Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac560 Sur1988 876677777108878
McLain Road Minnetonka DriveCul- de-sac400 None1970 867654410998888
Meadowview Road Valleywood LaneWild Rose Lane660 2010 5437101010101099888
Murry Hill Road Chanhassen City LimitChaska Road520 None1970 5755577710108888
Park Street Glencoe RoadPleasant Avenue917 None1972 887777877109988
Parkview Lane Suburban DriveCul- de-sac 417 Sur2005 1010101010101010999988
Radisson Entrance Radisson Inn RoadCul- de-sac616 None1972 87655761010108888
Shore Road Radisson Inn RoadDead End625 None1972 776576610988888
Stratford Place Apple RoadCul- de-sac710 B-6121978 5755101099998888
Sunnyvale Lane Meadowview LaneEureka Road650 None1970 44474331010109998
Virginia Cove Smithtown Rd Cul-de-sac ( e )917 Sur2006 99999999999888
Wedgewood Drive Smithtown Road LRT Trail935 Bit1972 41010101010109999888
Wedgewood Drive LRT TrailCul- de-sac1,860 None1972 41010101010109999888
Academy Avenue Yellowstone TrailGrant Street650 None1972 87766676610101099
Alexander Lane Strawberry LaneCul- de-sac310 Sur2013 10710101099
Brassie Circle Club Valley RoadCul- de-sac126 Sur2015 1010109
Club Valley Road Bentgrass WayYellowstone Trail1,717 Sur2015 1010109
Edgewood Road Howards Point RoadGrant Lorenz Road3,800 None1970 8777777765410109
Garden Road Minnetonka BoulevardDead End1,240 None1972 544446543109999
Howards Point Road Edgewood RoadDead End1,300 None1970 86666667651010109
Howards Point Road Smithtown RoadEdgewood Road4,110 None1970 8766666665101099



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Lake Linden Drive Yellowstone TrailState Highway # 71,550 None1999 8877778765510109
Niblick Alcove Club Valley RoadCul- de-sac451 Sur2015 1010109
Oak Ridge Circle Grant Lorenz RoadCul- de-sac420 None1971 66666657661010109
Shady Hills Circle Shady Hills RoadShady Hills Road1,555 1972466677655109999
Star Circle Star LaneCul- de-sac130 Bit1974 43374331010109999
Star Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac730 Bit1974 43374331010109999
Teal Circle Wedgewood DriveCul- de-sac160 None1974 41010101010109999999
Valleywood Circle Valleywood LaneCul- de-sac500 None1970 433744310101010999
Valleywood Lane Eureka RoadDead End1,310 None1970 433744310101010999
Wild Rose Lane Meadowview LaneEureka Road654 Sur2010 4447101010101099999
Amlee Road Manitou LaneCul- de-sac750 None1970 444444333333310
Ayrshire Ln Smithtown RdBentgrass Way852 Sur2018 10101010
Bentgrass Way West Cul-de-sacClub Valley Road2,475 Sur2018 10101010
Bentgrass Way Club Valley RoadEast Cul-de-sac878 Sur2015 10101010
Birch Bluff Road Grant Lorenz RoadEureka Road2,280 None1970 86676667664101010
Birch Bluff Road Eureka RoadTonka Bay city limits730 None1972 55576667664101010
Brand Circle Christmas LaneCul- de-sac360 Cul- Sur1972 766666666766610
Cardinal Drive Murray StreetSouth city limits (Chan)770 None1972 57777776676101010
Chestnut Terrace Near Mountain BoulevardCul- de-sac130 Sur1986 877777777777710
Covington Road Radisson RoadOld Market Rd2,784 None1970 887777667666610
Covington Road Old Market RdVine Hill Rd2,260 None1970 887777667656610
Dellwood Lane Enchanted DriveCul- de-sac590 None1973 7766765544761010
Echo Road County Road 19Country Club Road1,960 None1970 655444764410101010
Enchanted Cove Enchanted DriveCul- de-sac150 None1973 7777776644641010
Enchanted Drive Enchanted LaneCul- de-sac1,600 None1973 7777776644641010
Enchanted Lane Minnetrista city limitsShady Island Bridge3, 430 None1973 7766666444771010
Excelsior Boulevard Manor RoadEast city limits (Deephn) 2,132 None1972 66666777764101010
Featherie Bay Bentgrass WayCul- de-sac308 Sur2015 10101010
Glen Road County Road 19Manitou Ln1,500 None1972 444444454433310
Glen Road Manitou LnDead End850 None1972 444444454433310
Grant Lorenz Road Smithtown RoadBirch Bluff Road2,930 None1970 666665475444410
Idlewild Path Rustic WaySuburban Drive660 None1972 765557664766510
Manitou Lane Amlee RoadGlen Road360 None1970 333333333333310
Mann Lane Eureka RoadSeamans Drive660 None1972 644755476510101010
Near Mountain Boulevard Vine Hill RoadSouth city limits (Chan)2,255 Sur1989 887777767766610
Old Market Road State Highway # 7Covington Road2,400 1991777677667666610
Prestwick Ct Bentgrass WayLoop1, 118 Sur2018 10101010
Radisson Inn Road Covington RoadRadisson Entrance1, 780 None1972 777667666655510
Radisson Road Old Market RdCovington Road1,350 B-6181972 877667777777710
Radisson Road Covington RoadChristmas Lake Road2,410 None1972 777667767776610
Riviera Lane Yellowstone TrailCul- de-sac900 None2018 547654476610101010
Seamans Drive Yellowstone TrailMann Lane1,800 None1972 444555477644410
Shady Island Circle Shady Island RoadShady Island Road1,020 Bit1973 7766766655751010
Shady Island Point Shady Island CircleDead End360 None1973 5555765555551010
Shady Island Road Shady Island BridgeDead End (lift Overlaid) 1,500 None1973 6666666555551010
Shady Island Trail Shady Island CircleDead End300 None1973 7777766665761010
Shorewood Lane Smithtown RoadCul- de-sac840 Bit2018 446544775410101010
Summit Avenue Murray Hill RoadSouth city limits (Chan)940 Bit1972 476547666610101010
Sweetwater Court Sweetwater CurveCul- de-sac110 Sur1990 776677777776610
Sweetwater Curve Covington RoadCul- de-sac4,130 Sur1990 776677777777710
West 62nd Street Cathcart DrStrawberry Lane1,330 None1970 865555555576610
West 62nd Street Cathcart DrDead End1,320 None1972 865555555577610
Wooden Cleek Drive Smithtown RoadBentgrass Way616 Sur2015 10101010



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Woodside Lane Woodside RoadCul- de-sac240 None1972 6666665764441010
Woodside Road Howards Point RoadCul- de-sac2,900 None1972 6666665755441010
Barrington Way Excelsior BoulevardCul- de-sacs (2)2004 PRIVATE
Carrie Lane Radisson RoadCul- de-sac1983 PRIVATE
Christmas Lake Point Radisson RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Devonshire Circle Knightsbridge RoadLoop1981 PRIVATE
Duck Island No ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Enchanted Point Enchanted LaneDead End1,270 None1973 AGGREGATEROADWAY
Eureka Way Smithtown RoadDead EndNone1972 PRIVATE
Frog Island No ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Gales Island NO ROADSIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
Galpin Lane Galpin Lake RoadCul- de-sacNone1972 PRIVATE
Gideons Lane Glen RoadCul- de-sac1998 PRIVATE
Goose Island No RoadsIsland NOROADWAYSN/A
High Pointe Road State Highway # 7Cul-de-sac (North)2003 PRIVATE
Holly Lane Mill StreetDead End1970 MAINTAINEDBYCHANHASSEN
Island View Road Howards Point RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Kensington Gate Knightsbridge RoadDead End1981 PRIVATE
Lafayette Avenue Excelsior city limitsDead End1971 MAINTAINEDBYEXCELSIOR
Lagoon Drive Enchanted LaneDead End1973PRIVATE
Linwood Road Minnetonka BoulevardDphn city limits217 None1972 MAINTAINEDBYDEEPHAVEN
Maple Avenue Strawberry LaneDead End400 None1972 AGGREGATEROADWAY
Mill Street Excelsior city limitsChanhassen city limits1972 COUNTYRD
Pond View Drive Park Lane (EEnt)Park Lane (W Ent)2000 PRIVATE
Regents Walk Knightsbridge Road (EEnt)Knightsbridge Road (WEnt)1978PRIVATE
Ridge Point Circle Country Club RoadCul- de-sacBit1987 PRIVATE
Ridge Road Covington RoadDead End1972 PRIVATE
Sams Way 1972366 PAPERSTREET
Spencer Lane Minnetonka BoulevardMinntonka Blvd2004 PRIVATE
Spray Island NO ROADSIsland NOROADWAYS
Spring Circle Excelsior BoulevardCul- de-sac1994 PRIVATE
St. Albans Bay Circle St. Albans Bay RoadCul- de-sac1994 PRIVATE
Strawberry Circle Cathcart DrCul- de-sac (e)1985 PRIVATE



Pavement Rating and Record ofAction
Date of Last Revision7/ 22/2022

Length (1)Exist.Date20052006200820092010201120122014201520162018201920202021
FTCurbInstall RatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingRatingStreet Namefromto

Sussex Place Knightsbridge RoadCul- de-sac1981 PRIVATE
Tiffany Lane Radisson RoadLoop1982 PRIVATE
Wiltsey Lane Pleasant AvenueCul- de-sac520 None1972 AGGREGATEROADWAY

Reutiman Ln Eureka RdParking Lot Dead end 66
Freeman Park Lot Park LaneDead end 88
East Water Tower Old Market RoadDead End 77
Silverwood Park Lot Parking Lot 77
Southshore Community ParkParking Lot 77
Carhcart Park Lot Parking Lot 77
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76
Public Works Lot Parking Lot 76

Cul-de-sacs

LEGEND

Newly Constructed = N
Deferred = D

Reconstruct = R PARTIAL
Reclaim = M PARTIAL
Overlay = O YEAR PRIOR
Sealcoat = S YEAR PRIOR

Private or No Roads
Aggregate Road

Private Aggregate Rd


	Agenda
	2A 9-26-2022 Work Session Minutes
	2B 9-26-2022 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	2C 9-27-2022 Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	2D Verified Claims List
	2E Approve Hire of Park/Recreation Director
	2F Tobacco License Renewals
	2G Grant Street Drainage Project Change Order 1
	2H LMCIT Insurance Renewal
	4A CUP for Special Purpose Fence at 25140 Glen Road
	4B High Pointe Estates Second Addition Preliminary and Final Plat
	5A SLMPD JPA Revisions
	5B Public Works Director Job Description 
	5C SCEC Landscaping Expenditure
	6A1 Stream Restoration Project Update
	6A2 Paving Rating Methodology and Inventory



